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Chairman F/&

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the Annual Report of China Internet Investment Finance
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company
is an investment company pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Net asset value is a typical key performance indicator for the
investment industry. As at 31 December 2021, our net asset value
amounted to about HK$83.5 million and decreased by about
HK$1.4 million. During the year, the Group suffered from a loss of
about HK$9.6 million. The net proceeds from the Rights Issue in
the amount of about HK$8.2 million, however, strengthened the
net asset position.
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment portfolio was
about HK$42.8 million and decreased by HK$17.4 million as
compared to that of prior year. The portfolio comprised a mix of
HK-listed equities which were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. The current and non-current portions
of the listed equities portfolio were in the amount of about
HK$18.6 million and HK$24.2 million, respectively.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

According to the Research Paper No. 70: A Review of the Global
and Local Securities Markets in 2021 issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in February 2022, major stock indices in the
U.S. advanced, with the Dow and Nasdaq rising 26.9% and 21.4%
respectively. However, in Hong Kong, the Hang Seng Index and
Hang Seng TECH Index underperformed and dropped 14.1% and
32.7% respectively. It was mainly attributed to the corrections in
large-cap Mainland technology stocks which were subject to
tightened regulatory policies on the Mainland.

In the first quarter of 2021, sustained economic recovery was
expected because of the large-scale fiscal stimulus measures, the
accelerating rollouts of vaccines and the stabilising pandemic
situation. Nevertheless, the inflation concerns caused worries over
sooner-than-expected interest rate hikes. The China market also
performed well because of the government policies to boost
domestic consumption and support for small enterprises. However,
investors were still cautious about the tightening measures in the
property sector and the policies to contain fluctuations in the
commodity prices.
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Despite of the above-mentioned factors, trading in the local stock
market was active. The increase was mainly driven by the active
trading of newly listed companies in Hong Kong and strong
southbound trading through Stock Connect trading. In February
2021, the Hang Seng Index reached a record high of over 31,000
points following the optimism about economic recovery. But it
adjusted downward thereafter as pandemic risks still persisted
because of the emergence of new variants of COVID-19 and the
resurgence of inflections in certain parts of the world.
Furthermore, inflation risks increased and there were expectations
of possible shift of monetary policies of major central banks. Thus,
rate-sensitive technology stocks underperformed. Uncertainties on
the relations between the Mainland China and the U.S. also
affected the market sentiment.

In the second half of the year, regulatory risks increased for
Mainland companies and there were greater restrictions imposed
in various areas by the Chinese regulatory authorities. The
Cyberspace Administration of China announced a cybersecurity
inspection on certain ride-hailing platforms in early July because
the “Measures for Cybersecurity Review"” has already been in
effect since 2020 aiming to ensure the security of critical
information infrastructure and safeguard national security. Around
the end of July, China implemented new rules barring after-school
for-profit tutoring in core school subjects to ease financial
pressures on families.
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The sharp spike in policy risk premium kept China Internet stocks
volatile in the near future. In the last quarter of the year, market
sentiment turned negative because of the following developments.

First, carbon reduction targets and urgent shortage of coal forced
many local provincial governments in China to impose widespread
power cuts and energy rationing and caused the nation-wide
power supply crunch. These power cuts affected the normal
operations of factories across China, adding a new threat to PRC's
slowing economy and potentially further snarling global supply
chains.

Uncertainties on the Mainland-based property stocks also
influenced market sentiment. Default risks in the Chinese property
sector had been increasing since the last quarter of the year. Great
concerns arose on the credit conditions of Mainland developers
with liquidity issues, and there existed default on loan and bond
repayments of the heavily indebted property developer China
Evergrande which might cause systemic implications to China
Evergrande’s business associates/financiers. There have been
several recent measures, since early 2022, that could alleviate the
challenges faced by the PRC property developers. The debts raised
for acquisition of distressed assets of another PRC property
developer will be excluded when calculating the three red lines.
New rules will be implemented to allow property developers to
have easier access to the pre-sale proceeds in the escrow accounts
for repaying debt, paying suppliers and financing their operations.
Moreover, the People’s Bank of China reduced the 1-year and
5-year Loan Prime Rates by 10bps and 5 bps, respectively. It is
generally hoped that the risks could be well managed to avoid a
property crisis.
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The gross proceeds from the disposal of investments decreased
from HK$167.6 million to about HK$136.8 million because trading
activities were significantly reduced since the second quarter of the
2021. During the first half of 2021, trading in the local stock
market was active and the Mainland stocks remained the most
actively traded. The technology sector had heavy HSI weighting,
and accounted for about 33% of total market capitalisation and
about 30% of total trading in Hong Kong. However, the
technology sector was then negatively affected by the interest rate
hike expectations and the regulatory policies on the Mainland; as
such the large-cap Mainland technology stocks underperformed
which impacted the Hong Kong market. The volatility of
technology stocks also increased significantly. Thus, our trading
activities on technology stocks had been reduced to mitigate the
equity price risk.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue of the Group
of HK$0.5 million (2020: HK$1.3 million) primarily comprised
dividend income from our equity investments. Such decrease of
dividend income was partly caused by the lower dividend payments
received therefrom.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss from operations
decreased from HK$43.9 million to about HK$9.5 million, thanks
to the HK$8.9 million gain on disposal of fixed assets (2020: Nil).
Moreover, the net fair value loss on our equity portfolio of about
HK$20.2 million in prior year, turned to a net fair value gain of
HK$1.1 million for the current financial year.

Administrative expenses were reduced from about HK$24.5 million
to HK$18.6 million. The decrease was mainly attributed to the cost
control measures taken during the year and the resulting drop in
salaries expenses. Other operating expenses mainly comprised of
the investment management fee to the Investment Manager of
about HK$505,000 (2020: HK$560,000) and finance costs
represented the mortgage interest on the office premise.
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In the current year, the Group disposed its entire equity interest in
Cll Capital Limited (“Cll Capital”) at a consideration HK$458,000
to its existing majority shareholder and there was no material gain
or loss arisen on the disposal. Cll Capital had not yet commenced
business prior to the above disposal and such disposal could reduce
the administrative costs incurred. After the above disposal, the
interests in associates representing our interests in the 30%
shareholdings of Superb Kingdom Limited and its subsidiaries had
no carrying value at the reporting date.

PROSPECTS

The geopolitical tensions between Russia and Ukraine have
heightened since February 2022. The sharp escalation of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict has driven significant spike in oil prices and
market volatility. The military tensions and the latest sanctions
announced by the US and EU against Russia have raised investor
concerns about the economic and market implications. The
profound geopolitical and strategic implications of the
Russia-Ukraine conflict may bring broader impact on inflation,
central bank policy and global growth outlook. Russia ‘s invasion
of Ukraine has also fueled a risk-off market sentiment globally, and
it has impacted the global capital markets and commodity markets.
The conflict between Russia and Ukraine has significant
ramifications for the world economy, including exacerbating
already high inflation.

In Hong Kong, the fifth wave of COVID-19 pandemic had seen
unprecedented rise in infection cases. The health facilities were
overloaded by the spread of Omicron variant of Covid-19
infections. Hong Kong authorities have adhered to Mainland
China’s policy of stamping out the smallest outbreak with mass
quarantine, widespread tracking, and prolonged social distancing
measures since the start of the pandemic. This also affected much
the investor sentiment.
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The global economy seems to move from the post-pandemic
recovery to the mid-cycle phase. However, inflation uncertainty
and the high expectation of interest rate hike remain in focus and
investment in fixed income securities will not be preferred in such
environment. Chinese Premier Li Kegiang announced a 2022 GDP
growth target of around 5.5%. To achieve this target, China is
expected to roll out more accommodative fiscal and monetary
policies with support for technology upgrade, advanced
manufacturing, SMEs and green transformation, and consumption
recovery. China’s growth model is also expected to shift from
property construction towards technology upgrade and green
investments. These could be the investment themes in near future.

The Russia-Ukraine conflict is driving significant turbulence across
global financial markets with investor concerned about elevated
geopolitical risks and negative impacts from the global energy
supply shock. Pandemic risks increased amidst the emergence of
new and infectious COVID-19 variants such as Omicron. Renewed
lockdown measures and travel restrictions have raised worries
about the path of economic recovery. In view of the market
uncertainties, we will adopt a more conservative approach and
maintain a higher cash level to preserve the liquidity. During the
financial year 2021, the Company completed the capital
consolidation and reorganisation, to streamline the capital
structure. This could allow us to have greater flexibility in equity
fund-raising if necessary. The disposal of fixed assets with net
proceeds of about HK$8.9 million in the financial year 2021 could
also further strengthen our financial position.
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In view of the market volatility in the stock markets, we will also
consider the thematic investing which focuses on predicted
long-term trends and could enable investor to access structural or
paradigm shifts. Environmental, social and governance is one of
such key themes for investors, which include climate change,
resource scarcity, and demographic and social change. In particular,
investments in sustainable agriculture, green food, and biotech,
driven through new technological breakthrough are anticipated to
generate good returns. During the financial year 2021, we signed
two memorandum of understandings for investment opportunities
in biotech and live e-commerce marketing platform businesses.
Both of them lapsed as the due diligence reviews have not been
completed satisfactorily. We would cautiously consider and study
opportunities in details as appropriate.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ("AGM")

The AGM of the Company will be held on 27 June 2022. The
notice of AGM will be published and dispatched to the
shareholders of the Company in the manner as required by the
Listing Rules in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 22
June 2022 to 27 June 2022, both days inclusive, for the purpose of
determining the entitlement of the shareholders of the Company
to attend and vote at the AGM. No transfer of shares may be
registered during the said period. In order to qualify to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than on 4:30 p.m. on 21 June 2022.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Company, | would express my heartfelt gratitude
towards all of the directors, management and staff members for
their support and contribution to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited
Lam Man Chan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2022
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2021, the bank and cash balances amounted
to approximately HK$35.3 million (2020: HK$18.4 million) and the
net current assets amounted to approximately HK$49.9 million
(2020: HK$38.9 million). The increase in bank and cash balances
was mainly attributed to the realization of certain listed equities
and the proceeds from disposal of fixed assets. As at 31 December
2021, the Group had no material capital commitment (2020: Nil).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the Group maintained a low level of
gearing ratio of 2.0% (as defined by total borrowings divided by
total equity) (2020: 2.5%).

USE OF PROCEEDS

During the year, the actual net proceeds raised from the Rights
Issue was approximately HK$8.2 million. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group has fully utilised the net proceeds as follows:

Intended uses of net

Net Proceeds proceeds as stated
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R=B=—f
BREMR-E-—-F7xA+/RB2 BE-B--%+-A=+-H +Z=RA=+-H
B“RMERERE BREBMEMGREFEZ2HERE LEERRRERECERAE 2#HE
Approximately HK$8.2 (@)  Approximately 50% for possible investments in listed Fully utilised as intended, Nil

million
#)8,200,00078 7T

bonds, listed equities and/or various private equity

a medical diagnostic company and (ii) a live
e-commerce marketing platform company; and

#50% A B IREN ETHES - EHRAR/SEETL
AR R (i) —

BhERE  BEREN)-HEEDY
MERERZHTELA: R

(b)  Approximately 50% for general working capital

including general administrative expenses of the Group
which mainly comprise of employee benefits expense

H50%MIE—REBES  BRXNAREZ R

BAX EREIEAREEBMAX

investments to be identified including investment in (i)

including (i) about HK$4.2 million 4
for investment in listed equities;

and (ii) the balance as general
administrative expenses of the

Group which mainly comprised
employee benefits expense
PHRBTEREER  EP0H
4,200,000 TTRER WA ¢ F(ii)
BEREINTREZ —RITHR

X ERFEREERIIFAX

TREMEREcHERERAA




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
As at 31 December 2021, property, plant and equipment amounted
to approximately HK$9.4 million (2020: HK$10.3 million).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
held as at 31 December 2021 to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements amounted to approximately
HK$10.4 million.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year, certain fixed assets (mainly related to a yacht)
were disposed of and a gain of about HK$8.9 million was recorded.
Moreover, the entire interest in an associate company was disposed
of. Save for the above, there was no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries by the Group.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The investment portfolio primarily comprises listed equities in Hong
Kong stock market, and other funds were usually maintained in the
banks. Majority of them were denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Board considered the Group had no significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation as at the balance sheet date.

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP'S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the office premises with a carrying
amount of about HK$9.3 million (2020: HK$9.9 million) was
pledged for an instalment loan.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

To facilitate equity fund raising activities, the Company changed its
capital structure in March 2021 and increase its capital base in July
2021, through a rights issue. As at 31 December 2021, the
authorised share capital of the Company was HK$200,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 shares at par value of HK$0.01 each
while the number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares was
141,423,187 at par value of HK$0.01 each.

ME- - BERZE
R-ZE-—&F+-A=+—8 9% BEK
KB ZEBELNA9,400,0008 T (ZE_FF
10,300,000/ 7T) °

REHPEREE
R-E-_—F+_A=Z+—BHEBZERARE
FFABm s SREE - DA B EREIOE A H
1E - E1BF 8 49/510,400,000 7T ©

EXKEBEREE

FR AFERETETRATEE (T ZHER
BH) WS W25 #78,900,00058 7T ° LM &
TR—EBEAR 22 ER - B LiliEN - K
E@EPEETIMANBRARTIZERKRERHE -

SMEE | B

KREMATERTERM 2 EMBRAEK - HAf
B —RENVRT EBUBTAE EFTER
A ARERGE B ERHEEINERE R -

SEEEKH
RZB-—F+-_A=+—8 ' —B5HEX
I A RE(E 49,300,000 T (ZE_Z 4 :
9,900,000/ 7T) 2 HREWE ©

BEXRERE

BARETKRASEEEY AR R T —
FZRAREBTEEAERE UTR=-ZT=-—F+
AEBHBREMERER RZ2T=Z—F+=
A=+—H " &XRAEERKRZ /200,000,000
JT * 99 420,000,000,000/% & R E1E0.01E T 2
Bip EREETRBERA 2L BREE R
141,423,1870% - GREEOC.01E T °
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CAPITAL REORGANISATION

Details of the Capital Reorganisation were set out in the

IRAEA
%$E@%Fﬁ%a%#—%——¢—ﬂ—+ﬂ
BZRE ZT_—F_A+N\BZBRHE_-F
——H=ZATHRBAZRE -

announcement dated 29 January 2021, circular dated 18 February
2021 and announcement dated 15 March 2021, respectively.

RIGHTS ISSUE g

To increase the capital base, the Company implemented the Rights BIEXERNEM  NARIIREGMIRIR B R D IERE
— AR« BEEETHR - BB ERERHE
RRMD02ET - HRFBEHRRARA T —
FEAZTHZAE  ZT-—FXA+RBZ
HEREEBE-ZE-_—FtANBZRE -

Issue on the basis of one Rights Share for every two existing shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.2 per Rights Share. Details of the
Rights Issue are set out in the announcement dated 20 May 2021,
prospectus dated 16 June 2021 and announcement dated 9 July
2021, respectively.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME B R et &l

(i)  Details of the adjustments to the exercise prices and numbers () LB ASER-_Z-_—F=ZA%KEY
MARITE 2 EREZITEEREE ELH
BeABERBRA-_ZE-_—5=A+H
AzRE  EREZEREHINOT :

of the outstanding share options upon the completion of the
above Capital Reorganisation in March 2021 were set out in
the announcement dated 15 March 2021, and the key
particulars are set out as follows:

Before the completion of After the completion of

the Capital Reorganisation the Capital Reorganisation

RS HFTHA RAEHTHE

Number of Adjusted Adjusted
outstanding Exercise price number of exercise price
Date of grant Share Options per Share Share Options per Share
i RATEZ AR AER
FH B BREHRE BRTEE BREHE BRITEE
29 November 2018 7,800,000 HK$0.241 780,000 HK$2.41
—N\F+t—AZ+AhA 0.241%8 T 2418 7T
16 September 2019 7,800,000 HK$0.137 780,000 HK$1.37
—NFEAA+XA 0.137# 7T 1.378 7T

15,600,000 1,560,000

CEEHARASRERNGRAR | —B-—S5H




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E 5w B D AT

(i)  Details of the adjustments to the exercise prices and numbers
of the outstanding share options upon the completion of the
above Rights Issue in July 2021 were set out in the
announcement dated 9 July 2021, and the key particulars are
set out as follows:

(i) AELAHER-_T-_—FLtAZKREY
WARTTEZBREZTEERBBELA
EZHABERBHPA-_T-_—FtANA
ZRE EPTIERARTHEINET

Before the completion of After the completion of
the Rights Issue the Rights Issue
8RR 52 BE A iR &
Adjusted
Number of number of Adjusted
outstanding Exercise price outstanding exercise price
Date of grant Share Options per Share Share Options per Share
R
o RATEZ CEIFRE EEE23t 3wl
BHBEE BRERE BRTEE BRERE BRITEE
29 November 2018 780,000 HK$2.41 921,064 HK$2.0409
—\Ft+t—A=t+hA 241587 2.04097% 7T
16 September 2019 780,000 HK$1.37 921,064 HK$1.1601
—NFNATRE 1.378 7T 1.16018 7T
1,560,000 1,842,128

During the year, 956,490 share options lapsed and no share
options were granted, exercised and cancelled. There were
885,638 shares options outstanding as at 31 December 2021.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had 21 employees (2020:
23). The remuneration packages for the employees and the
directors are in line with the prevailing market practice and are
determined on the basis of performance and experience.

FN - B956,49010 AR HE R - W EEEAR
BERL -1TEREEH R —F
+ = A=+—H%E885,6380 i ARITEZE
A o

ADER

R-Z-—F+=-A=+—0 XRAFAH2%
(ZZ=F4F:23%) B8 - REREEFHAAS
BIETTSEG B WRREREREE -
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
ARERAZERREZHFR

Disclosure required under the Listing Rules in relation to each
of the major investments held by the Group as at the balance
sheet date are mainly set out in the note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements in pages 234 to 239 of this
report.

Our major investments included equity securities of issuers
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The performance of such listed issuers
during their respective latest financial period/year, material
factors underlying their respective results and financial
position, significant events, if any, during their respective
financial periods under review, and their respective future
prospects are disclosed in their respective announcements/
reports made available on the website of HKEX. To facilitate
a review on the performance of the significant investments
held by the Group, the relevant information is extracted from
such announcements/reports and provided below for easy
reference. The Company has not independently verified the
information published by such listed issuers. All monetary
and percentage figures cited below are approximate figures
only.

These significant investments are held for achieving capital
appreciation or generating interest or dividend income. To
meet our investment objective, listed securities are managed
and reviewed on a portfolio basis. Regarding listed equities,
the buy-and hold strategy and short-term trading tactics are
used to enhance the investment returns. Investment in
unlisted equities is reviewed on an investment -by-investment
basis and can typically provide a high return if there is a
successful exit.

BEITTRUBEEASEREEREEZ
BEFERENBEETBHNAREE234
E239E AW TERMEMNTE22 -

BANEZREBERETERERSABR
NA([BRFT]) EMETAZRARES
ZELMETARKES A RIOH B
SEEZRR RERSEACEERY
BRAZEARERE RESFSEEMBEE
HEBELECEREH(WH)ARKEES
ZARAE  YRBEESBZRE/WE
MR HAREEBRXMEHLERN - B
BERBEAEREMFEAREZRE
B Lt AE REREAABER LN T
X RS E - ARBAREBRIZEF
EHETAMTEZER - TXMAEIAZ
E¥ BN LEFYBMOEF -

REBERREDRHENEELRRA L %K
BEBAMER - RERKMNEKERR -
tHESDRAEEEEE R L E
MRREME  HET BEAFHREKEH
RREARTHRE R - M IELTRE
ZRETRBFAREREEETRS - T
BRY —RAEKEER -
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
AREFAECEEREZHE

1. CHINA ORIENTED INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED (“CHINA ORIENTED") (STOCK CODE: 1871.

HK)
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

China Oriented and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of driving training services in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). China Oriented
operated two driving schools located in Zhumadian
City, Henan Province, the People’s Public of China
("PRC") namely Tong Tai School and Shun Da School.
Its revenues are mostly depending on the demand for
the driving training services in Henan Province and
particularly Zhumadian City. The key factors which drive
the demand for driving training services include
population growth, expansion of logistics industry and
increase in household income and living standard in
Zhumadian City.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, China
Oriented’s revenue increased 69.2% to RMB35.5 million
(2020: RMB21.0 million) and its net profit was RMB4.0
million (2020: net loss of RMB2.9 million). Its
turnaround performance was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of (i) the increase in the number of
trainees and training hours; (ii) the higher gross profit
margin of Large Vehicles; (iii) the increase in other
income; and (iv) decreased operating expenses.

The net asset value as at 30 June 2021 was
approximately RMB214.2 million (31 December 2020:
RMB210.1 million).

The share price of China Oriented on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2021 rose to
HK$0.255 (2020: HK$0.243), up about 4.9%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of China Oriented’s
shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31
December 2021 were HK$0.385 and HK$0.22,
respectively.

During the year, there were no major transactions
undertaken by China Oriented.

A BEREZERERLAT (R ])
(B 1X5% - 1871.HK)

1.1

1.5
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1.6

In March 2022, China Oriented made a profit warning
announcement that its profit for the year ended 31
December 2021 was anticipated to decline by less
than 70% as comparing to that for the year ended
31 December 2020, because the decrease in gross
profit margin from its driving training service business
as a result of downward price adjustment on its
driving courses fee. This was mainly attributable to (i)
regulatory changes with effect from the third quarter
of the FY2021 relating to setting-up of driving schools
in the PRC, which lowered the threshold for entry
into the industry and increased the number of driving
training service provider for Large Vehicles; and (ii)
keen competition following the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic in adjusting course fees to capture market
shares, and eventually resulted in decrease in the
average course fee per hour for the driving courses.
Moreover, other income decreased due to the absence
of the one-off government grants of approximately
RMB5.0 million in the financial year of 2021. Changes
in the threshold for provision of driving training services
for Large Vehicles could cause the conventional sources
of competitive advantage to be no longer relevant. We
would closely monitor the financial performance of
China Oriented in the coming financial periods.

1.6

RZE-Z—F=ZA mPBEXR—0NHE
HMBaNEEsR E  BREFERE
EZEB-_—F+-A=+—HItFE
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MBMEMFHETARERE @ 5|8
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SHREWREBTRE 1IN T =—F
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

AREBFBAEZER

REZHIB

2. MUI'INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (“MUJI
INTERNATIONAL") (STOCK CODE: 1715.HK)

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Miji International and its subsidiaries are mainly
engaged in the development, manufacturing and selling
of kitchen appliances in the PRC. They considered the
economic conditions in the China and the demand for
their products are the key factors affecting their results
and financial position.

During the six months ended 30 June 2021, Miji
International’s revenue decreased from RMB97.3 million
to RMB67.9 million, down about 30.2%, which was
explained by the decrease in sales revenue from
television platforms. Accordingly, the net loss was
RMB16.2 million (2020: RMB12.3 million), together
with the recognition of an exchange loss.

The net asset value as at 30 June 2021 was
approximately RMB156.7 million (31 December 2020:
RMB173.0 million).

The share price of Miji International on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2021 rose to
HK$0.21 (2020: HK$0.19), up about 10.5%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of Miji International’s
shares on the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31
December 2021 were HK$0.27 and HK$0.12
respectively.

During the year, there were no major transactions
undertaken by Miji International.

2.

KEERZERERATE ([KEE
BR ) (B 1X5% © 1715.HK)

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5
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2.6

2.7

In early 2022, Miji International made a profit warning
announcement that they expected a net loss after tax of
approximately RMB38.7 million incurred for the year
ended 31 December 2021(2020: approximately
RMB20.0 million). The projected increase in net loss was
primarily attributed to the decline in its revenue, the
increase in the costs of raw materials, the recognition
of an exchange loss and the share of losses of an
associate. The deteriorating financial performance has
warranted further attention.

Miji International suffered from losses for two financial
years consecutively and the loss for FY2021 was
increasing. We will closely monitor its loss-making
situation of Miji International.

TENCENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“TENCENT") (STOCK
CODE: 0700.HK)

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Tencent and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of value-added services (“VAS"), online
advertising and fintech and business services. Tencent is
one of the market leader in the PRC internet market.

For the six-month ended 30 June 2021, Tencent’s
revenue increased by 20% to RMB273.6 billion on a
year-on-year basis. Profit attributable to equity holders
of Tencent increased by 46% to RMB90.4 billion from
RMB62.0 billion for the first half of 2021 on a
year-on-year basis.

Revenues from VAS business and online advertising
increased by 13% to RMB144.5 billion and 23% to
RMB44.7 billion, respectively for the first half of 2021
on a year-on-year basis. Revenue from fintech and
business services increased by 44% to RMB80.9 billion,
mainly driven by higher revenues from commercial
payment services and business services.

The net asset value as at 30 June 2021 was
approximately RMB926.9 billion (31 December 2020:
RMB778.0 billion).

26 RZTEZZFH) KEBEEERT —
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
AREFAECEEREZHE

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

In November 2021, Tencent reported its third quarterly
results and during the third quarter, the Internet
industry, including the domestic games industry, and
certain advertiser categories, adapted to new regulatory
and macroeconomic developments. Tencent proactively
embraced the new regulatory environment; in the
domestic games market, its industry-leading efforts in
fully complying with new regulations significantly
reduced minors’ game time and spending, fostering a
healthier gameplay environment. Revenues increased by
3% to RMB142.4 billion for the third quarter of 2021
on a quarter-on-quarter basis. Profit attributable to
equity holders decreased by 7% to RMB39.5 billion for
the third quarter of 2021 on a quarter-on-quarter basis.
Non-IFRS profit attributable to equity holders of Tencent
decreased by 7% to RMB31.8 billion for the third
quarter of 2021.

In late December 2021, Tencent declared a special
interim dividend in the form of a distribution in specie
of a majority of the Class A ordinary shares of JD.Com
Inc. (Stock Code: 9618.HK) (“JD.com”) indirectly held
by Tencent on the basis of 1 Class A ordinary share of
JD.com, for every 21 Tencent Shares held. Immediately
following the completion of such distribution, the
shareholding percentage in JD.com was reduced to
approximately 2.3% only (based on the total number of
issued shares as at 31 December 2021).

The share price of Tencent on the Stock Exchange at
the end of December 2021 dropped to HK$456.8
(2020: HK$564), down about 19.0%. The highest and
lowest trading prices of Tencent's shares on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2021
were HK$775.5 and HK$412.2 respectively.

During the year, there were no other major transactions
undertaken by Tencent.

The revenue growth slowed down, partly because of
the compliance with the new regulations on minors’
game time and spending. However, it is generally
expected the leading position of Tencent in the PRC
internet industry can be maintained in the future.

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9
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HUASHENG INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
("HUASHENG INTERNATIONAL") (STOCK CODE:
1323.HK)

4.1 Huasheng International and its subsidiaries are mainly
engaged in the (i) production and sales of ready-mixed
commercial concrete business; (ii) wholesale and retail
of household consumables business; and (iii) provision
of money lending business.

4.2 Huasheng International’s revenue from continuing
operations for the six months ended 30 September
2021 decreased by approximately 19.4% to HK$402.5
million (2020: HK$499.1 million). The decrease is mainly
attributable to the drop in its Concrete Business.
Huasheng International recorded a profit before income
tax from continuing operations of approximately
HK$21.3 million for the interim period as compared to
a loss of approximately HK$0.7 million during the
corresponding period in 2020. Its turnaround
performance was mainly due to the combined effect of
increase in gross profit of approximately HK$1.3 million
from the Household Consumables Business; decrease in
finance costs of approximately HK$10.3 million as
Tencent had fully settled the convertible bonds during
the year ended 31 March 2021 and; the gain on
disposal of subsidiaries of approximately HK$9.7 million
during the interim period.

4.3 The net asset value as at 30 September 2021 was
approximately HK$934.9 million (31 March 2021:
HK$919.2 million).

4.4 The share price of Huasheng International on the Stock
Exchange at the end of December 2021 significantly
rose to HK$2.04 (2020: HK$0.81), up about 151.9%.
The highest and lowest trading prices of Huasheng
International’s shares on the Stock Exchange during the
year ended 31 December 2021 were HK$2.10 and
HK$0.76 respectively. In view of the rising price trend
of Huasheng International’s shares during the year, the
Company had disposed of a majority of our investment
holding therein and realized the investment.

4.
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4.5 During the year, there were no major transactions
undertaken by Huasheng International.

4.6 The management of Huasheng International indicated
that Concrete Business would continue to act as the
main growth driver to sustain it's profitability of the
Group in the long term. Huasheng International would
continue to expand the market share of Concrete
Business in Hainan Province to provide quality products
to customers, secure better results and increase
shareholders’ return.

4.7 Unfortunately, in early January 2022, Huasheng
International’s shares suffered from an abrupt price
decline of about 95%. Huasheng International
subsequently explained that significant amount of
shares previously held by their chairman were forced to
be sold on the market by certain stockbrokers due to
the sharp decrease of the share price.

4.8 Given the significant downward fluctuation in share
price, we will continue to monitor its share price
movement.

5. JD.COM, INC. (“JD.COM") (STOCK CODE: 9618.HK)

5.1 JD.com is a leading technology-driven e-commerce
company transforming to become a leading supply
chain-based technology and service provider.

5.2 In December 2021, JD.com modified its existing share
repurchase program and increased the repurchase
authorization from US$2.0 billion to US$3.0 billion and
such program has been extended to March 2024.

During the year, JD.com had pursued a spin-off and
separate listing of JD Logistics, Inc. on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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5.6

For the year ended 31 December 2021, JD.com’s net
revenue was RMB951.6 billion, an increase of 27.6%
year-over-year. Net loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of JD.com for the year of 2021 was
RMB3.6 billion, compared to a net income of RMB49.4
billion for the full year of 2020. Non-GAAP net income
attributable to ordinary shareholders for the full year of
2021 was RMB17.2 billion, compared to RMB16.8
billion for the full year of 2020. Annual active customer
accounts increased by 20.7% to 569.7 million in 2021
from 471.9 million in 2020.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2021 was about
RMB245.6 billion (2020: RMB204.5 billion).

The share price of JD.com on the Stock Exchange at the
end of December 2021 dropped to HK$274.0 (2020:
HK$342.0), down about 19.9%. The highest and lowest
trading prices of JD.com’s shares on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were
HK$422.8 and HK$236.4 respectively.

As one of the market leader in China e-commerce
market and a leading supply chain-based technology
and service provider, JD.com maintained a healthy
growth momentum and contributed to the high-quality
expansion of China’s consumption amid a dynamic
external environment. This was driven by its resilient
business model as a new type of real economy based
enterprise and persistent focus on serving users and
supporting business partners. JD.com’s open ecosystem
and supply chain capabilities created exceptional value
for business partners by enabling high-efficiency
operations and continued growth.

5.3

54

55

5.6

BHE-_ZE-_—F+=-HA=+—H
FEFE ZRREEBRZFEAA
R #951,600,000,0007C * [A t
R276% R_-_T-—F ZTEE
BEBRBRAEMGERFEAA
R #3,600,000,0007T Btk = &
TEFE2FHARKBKAFEARE
49,400,000,0007 c —E = —F 2 F
FAREFAHRATEBENEBRR
RZFWRABARK17,200,000,000
T MHEZZTEEF2FERARE
16,800,000,0007c - FEER R
RPE BT ZFF 2471,900,000
F®mM207%% — &8~ —F 2
569,700,000/ °

R—ZEZ—F+=HA=+—8H
B 2EEFENAARE
245,600,000,0007T (ZFEZFF : A
R #204,500,000,0007T) °

RZE-_—F+_AK REEH
R R REBKE274.07
T(ZT_T4F 34208 7L) * KIE
49199% - BE-_ZT-—F+=-A
=+ —HIEFE  RESERGO N
RS &xmREREZSERD
75422 .87 70 ) 236.478 7T ©

ERTEERMGcMIBEEEZ —
Ko RBUST HO LA (L8 8 7 B 2 B iy B2 i
B mRREEEHINFARELZ
B KRRFTRENIERBE
WiHERETFBHEZEAEE - &
BERNRREEERMNERLEY
ERHmBEEZAERN - ARHER
BRAPEXFHAIERHFZTBENR -
RREBRMOERLHEREN R
BIERHHRRERE 2RI RFFE
VEEERE FAitalE T BRNE
-

THEEEAREASRERARAR | B —FF5HK



PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP
AREFAECEEREZHE

5.7

However, JD. Com is one of the US dual-listed Chinese
stocks and the United States implemented the
provisions of a new law, the Holding Foreign Companies
Accountable Act (HFCAA) which could cause the
delisting of Chinese companies from American stock
exchanges if their audit records remain unavailable for
inspection three years in a row. This delisting risk has
caused concern to investors.

6. HONG KONG EXCHANGES AND CLEARING LIMITED
("HKEX") (STOCK CODE: 0388.HK)

6.1

6.2

HKEX and its subsidiaries own and operate the only
stock exchange and futures exchange in Hong Kong
and their related clearing houses, a clearing house for
clearing over-the-counter derivatives contracts in Hong
Kong, an exchange and a clearing house for the trading
and clearing of base, ferrous and precious metals
futures and options contracts operating in the United
Kingdom, and a commodity trading platform in the
Mainland.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total revenue
and other income of HKEX reached a record high of
HK$21.0 billion, up 9% against 2020. The increase was
driven by higher trading and clearing fees but partly
offset by the lower net investment income. Stock
Connect revenue and other income reached a record
high of HK$2.7 billion, up 41% against 2020,
accounting for 13% of the total revenue and other
income. Net investment income from Corporate Funds
down 16% compared with 2020, reflecting reduced
interest income and lower fair value gains of collective
investment schemes. The profit attributable to
shareholders reached a record high of HK$12.5 billion,
9% higher than that in the corresponding year of 2020.
The net asset value as at 31 December 2021 was
HK$49.6 billion.

57 A RREESNEEESE LM
REIBE SR MEBEE Z#AR -
GIMERRIBER) AIEEEHPEQ
FIEEE = F R R P E R HRER
L MREBERHFR SR - R
ERBEHIREEERTERE -

/|

BREREEFRERLT ([ 78
Frl) (B4 K55 - 0388.HK)
BRI RENEATEE L CLES
M—— R R HA % 5 B % H
BEF - TEEBEE —REEBI
PTEERADNEERN  EREEY
—RRGR—REEMBEREY
EASE ZE4BRELEBUER
HRAEA 40 0 AR RIS L — (B S

RHFEE -

X A
O L\
y—

o

62 HBEZ-_—F+-A=+—HIHF
B BRIz EREMKABREE
21,000,000,000/8 0 » - — T4
EHO%  BIEELEH S BHEERR
MR 5 REEBEIL N (F 5 % E I
ANFRERADATIKE) - BFEEBHIK
5 N E b I A #£2,700,000,000/%8 7T
| BT A% WL
Rl REMBAREN13% A
RIESHMRERAFER S _ZTF
TE16% @ REFBU AR K &8
BEF BN R R ERERD - BREE
fi  F1) 2 B 42 8% 2 12,500,000,0007%8
T BIECEFRPLEAI% - R
E-—F+-_A=Zt+—HHBzEE
JF{8 549,600,000,000/%8 7T °

m CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

The share price of HKEX at the end of December 2021
rose to HK$455.4 (2020: HK$425), up about 7.2%. The
highest and lowest trading prices of HKEX's shares on
the Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 December
2021 were HK$587.0 and HK$421.0 respectively.

During the year, there were no major transactions
undertaken by HKEX.

With China’s capital markets expected to grow from
their current size of around US$30 trillion to more than
US$100 trillion within a decade or so, management of
HKEX expected to see the release of Mainland domestic
savings, increasing investment flow in and out of China,
and accelerating corporate innovations in China in years
to come. International participation in the China
economy and capital markets is expected to increase at
a faster rate than ever. Given this, HKEX considered
that its role become more vital to the ongoing
development of capital markets both in the region and
around the world.

Given the tightened relationship between China and
U.S., the expectation of more U.S.-listed Chinese stocks
returning to Hong Kong for listing will be a positive
factor to HKEX.

CHINA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
("CHINA LIFE") (STOCK CODE: 2628.HK)

7.1

7.2

China Life and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the writing of life, health, accident and other types of
personal insurance business; reinsurance business for
personal insurance business; fund management business
permitted by national laws and regulations or approved
by the State Council of the PRC.

For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the total
revenue of China Life increased to RMB537.1 billion
(2020: RMB504.4 billion). Net profit attributable to
equity holders of China Life for the six months ended
30 June 2021 was approximately RMB41.0 billion (2020:
RMB30.5 billion), because of the positive impact of
investment income. The shareholder’s equity increased
to about RMB471.4 billion (31 December 2020:
RMB450.1 billion).
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7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

An alternative measure of the value and profitability of
a life insurance company can be provided by the
embedded value method, From the embedded value
report of China Life, its new business margin of half
year's sales of individual agent business dropped from
39.3% to 36.5% and the value of new business was
only RMB29.8 billion. Due to the impact of COVID-19
pandemic and the slowdown of demands for insurance
consumptions, gross written premiums from new
policies were RMB133,914 million, a decrease of 8.4%
year on year.

The share price of China Life on the Stock Exchange at
the end of December 2021 dropped to HK$12.92
(2020: HK$17.10), down about 24.4%. The highest and
lowest trading prices of China Life’s shares on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2021
were HK$18.46 and HK$12.22 respectively.

During the year, there were no major transactions
undertaken by China Life.

In view of the challenging operating environment and
the declining new business value generated, the share
price of China Life had underperformed. We would
closely monitor the COVID-19 situation and the impact
on China Life.
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7.6
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CHINA MOBILE LIMITED (“CHINA MOBILE") (STOCK
CODE: 0941.HK)

8.1

8.2

China Mobile and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of telecommunications and
related services in the mainland of China and in Hong
Kong.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, China
Mobile’s operating revenue reached RMB768.1 billion,
up by 3.0% compared to the year before. Of this,
telecommunications services revenue amounted to
RMB695.7 billion, representing growth of 3.2%
year-on-year. Its two growth drivers, the “"Home"”
market and the “Business” market, delivered
outstanding performance. Wireline broadband revenue
increased by 17.4% year-on-year and reached RMB80.8
billion. Revenue from applications and information
services increased by 22.4% year-on-year and reached
RMB101.0 billion. Revenue contribution from new
businesses (non-traditional telecommunications services)
continued to grow and the revenue structure comprising
the “Customer” (C), “"Home" (H), “Business” (B) and
“New"” (N) markets has further optimized. Total number
of mobile customers was 942 million and total number
of wireline broadband customers was 210 million.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of China
Mobile was RMB107.8 billion, up by 1.1%. 5G is
playing an increasingly important role in supporting
information flow within society, accelerating industry
transformation and upgrade, and driving the
development of digital society. As the key 5G network
constructor, advocate and service provider, it will
further implement the “5G+" plan to speed up the
application of 5G across sectors to serve wider society.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the total
revenue of China Mobile increased to RMB443.6 billion
(2020: RMB389.9 billion). Net profit attributable to
equity holders for the six months ended 30 June 2021
was approximately RMB59.2 billion (2020: RMB55.9
billion). As at 30 June 2021, the shareholder’s equity of
China Mobile increased to about RMB1,178.0 billion (31
December 2020: RMB1,148.9 billion).

The share price of China Mobile on the Stock Exchange
at the end of December 2021 rose to HK$46.8 (2020:
HK$44.2), up about 5.9%. The highest and lowest
trading prices of China Mobile's shares on the Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2021
were HK$59.2 and HK$39.0 respectively.

The shares of China Mobile have been listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX")
since 23 October 1997 and the American Depositary
Shares (“ADSs"”) of China Mobile had been listed on the
New York Stock Exchange LLC (the “NYSE") since 22
October 1997. In January 2021, the NYSE announced to
commence delisting proceedings of the ADSs of China
Mobile and on 7 May 2021, the NYSE filed a Form 25
with the US Securities and Exchange Commission to
strike China Mobile’s ADSs from listing and registration.
The delisting of the China Mobile’s ADSs became
effective on 18 May 2021. China Mobile, on 5 January
2022, completed its initial public offering of its RMB
ordinary shares (A shares) on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The final number of RMB Shares issued under
the RMB Share Issue was 902,767,867 shares,
representing 4.22% of its total number of issued shares
immediately after the exercise of the over-allotment
option.

8.3

8.4

8.5
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8.6

The proceeds from the RMB Share Issue will be used in
the following projects: the development of premium 5G
networks, the development of new infrastructure for
cloud resources, the development of gigabit broadband
and smart home, the development of smart mid-end
platform, the research and development of the
next-generation information technology and digitalized
and intelligent ecosystem.

To fully protect the rights and interests of its
shareholders, to provide a sustainable, stable and
reasonable investment return to its shareholders, to
further improve the profits distribution mechanism, and
to enable shareholders to supervise its profits
distribution, a shareholder return plan within three
years following the RMB Share Issue and Listing was
approved. In addition, shares buy-back up to
2,047,548,289 shares listed on the HKEX was approved
in April 2021.

China Mobile has attached great importance to
shareholder returns, and it is generally anticipated a
high dividend payment will be maintained in the coming
three years.

ALIBABA GROUP HOLDING LIMITED ("“ALIBABA
GROUP") (STOCK CODE: 9988.HK)

9.1

Alibaba Group and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in core commerce, cloud computing, digital
media and entertainment, and innovation initiatives.
The marketplaces of core commerce business attract
and retain a large number of consumers and merchants
and its revenue are primarily generated from merchants
in China.
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Revenue for the nine months ended 31 December 2021
was RMB649.0 billion, an increase of about 22.4%
year-over-year. Income from operations was RMB52.9
billion, a decrease of about 45.6% year-over-year. The
decrease was attributable to (i) the impairment of
goodwill in relation to their Digital media and
entertainment segment of about RMB25.1 billion and
(ii) the increased in sales and marketing expenses of
about RMB36.3 billion on increased investment in
growth initiative and increased spending for user
growth, as well as their support to merchants.

The net asset value as at 31 December 2021 was about
RMB1,109.5 billion (31 March 2021: RMB1,075.0
billion).

The share price of Alibaba Group on the Stock Exchange
at the end of December 2021 dropped to HK$118.9
(2020: HK$232.6), down about 48.9%. The highest and
lowest trading prices of Alibaba Group’s shares on the
Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 December
2021 were HK$270.0 and HK$109.2 respectively.

Alibaba Group has the largest consumer platform in
China and, being one of the market leaders in the
China E-commerce market, its core business in China
retail marketplace has also expanded into cloud
computing. Annual active consumers of the Alibaba
Ecosystem across the world reached approximately 1.28
billion for the twelve months ended 31 December 2021,
an increase of approximately 43 million from the twelve
months ended 30 September 2021. This included 979
million consumers in China and 301 million consumers
overseas, representing a quarterly net increase of over
26 million and 16 million, respectively.

The suspension of its proposed listing of Ant Group and
the delisting threats in U.S. have caused regulatory
concerns on Alibaba Group, resulting in the
underperformance of its share price.
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10.1

10.2

Xiaomi and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the development and sales of smartphones, internet of
things (“1oT") and lifestyle products, provision of
internet services and investments holding in the PRC
and other countries or regions.

In the first half of 2021, Xiaomi’s total revenue
amounted to RMB164.7 billion (2020: RMB103.2
billion),
year-over-year. The revenue from its smartphones
segment increased by 78.5% to RMB110.6 billion
(2020: RMB62.0 billion). Such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in smartphones units sold,
from 57.5 million in the first half of 2020 to 102.3
million in the current interim period. Revenue from its

representing an increase of 59.5%

loT and lifestyle products segment increased by 38.0%
to RMB39.0 billion (2020: RMB28.2 billion), primarily
due to the growth in sales of certain loT products, such
as smart TVs, robot vacuums and electric scooters.
Revenue from Internet services segment increased by
15.2% from RMB11.8 billion in the first half of 2020 to
RMB13.6 billion in the first half of 2021, primarily due
to the increase in revenue from the advertising business,
offset by the decrease in revenue from gaming and

other value-added services.

The net profit for the first half of 2021 was RMB16.1
billion (2020: RMB6.7 billion), an increase of 141.3%
year-over-year.

The net asset value as at 30 June 2021 was about
RMB136.0 billion (31 December 2020: RMB124.0
billion).

10.1

10.2
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PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY THE GROUP

AREBFBAEZER

10.3

10.4

10.5

REZHIB

The share price of Xiaomi on the Stock Exchange at the
end of December 2021 dropped to HK$18.9 (2020:
HK$33.2), down about 43.1%. The highest and lowest
trading prices of Xiaomi’s shares on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2021 were
HK$35.9 and HK$17.5 respectively.

During the year, there were no major transactions
undertaken by Xiaomi.

Xiaomi announced that they had a strong growth of
global smartphone shipment in recent years. The
management was optimistic that performance in its
future business development. Since the last quarter of
2021, there emerged global shortage of key
components and the resurgence of the COVID-19
variant Omicron. These issues negatively affected the
investor sentiment resulting in the decrease in Xiaomi's
share price.

10.3

10.4

10.5
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining and implementing a

high standard of corporate governance and recognises that good
governance can help the business to deliver its strategies, generate
shareholder value and meet its obligations towards shareholders
and other stakeholders. The Company has established a
governance structure, and embeds governance and principles in
the business to ensure accountability, fairness, integrity and
transparency.

The Board adheres to corporate governance practices by adopting
and complying with the established rules, codes, guidelines under
the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has followed the
CG Code and formulated its own policies and procedures
regarding the corporate governance practices. During the financial
year of 2021, the Company complied with all of the provisions
under the CG Code except for the following:

1. Code provision A.4.1
All the Non-executive Directors were not appointed for a

specific term, however, their appointment are subject to
retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting as
specified in the bye-laws of the Company.

EXREBRER
AAAFARET AL BT AR % A
RERFEEAYEHERHLRE  EMBRE

BEMETEYREREMA=HEEE CEET - A
RNAERMERLEE  UWHBEARRBIBAZER
FoRBRREE AF  HEMERZESEIE
5 .

EEeRMEMARAME T OB EXERT
Al (TEERTAD XETEMEZRA - 57
AlRtES  BTREERER - AARIEEBRDE
%%ﬁ?%'%i$%ﬁ%¢%amﬁﬁ2ﬁ
KigF - R-ZB-_—FPRFEHHE - AR
SEREARTAET ZABHRI ﬁTWIR%
B

1. SFRMERXEALIE
%ﬁ#ﬁﬁ%%iﬂﬁé&ﬁii%'%
i e EEEERAARDRARMALR
ﬁ%%%%ﬁik?i%@%io

CEEHARASRERNGRAR | —B-—S5H



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A A s
= E/D#&%

2. Code provision A.7.1
The code provision A.7.1 requires an agenda and
accompanying board papers should be sent, in full, to all
Directors for regular board meetings and as far as practicable
in all other cases. These papers should be sent in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
board or board committee meeting (or other agreed period).

Due to the practical reasons, agenda and related board
papers have not been sent, in full, in 3 days in advance to
certain meetings of the Board or Board Committee. The
Company Secretary continues to use its best endeavours to
send the agenda and accompanying board paper, in full to
the Board or Board Committee at least 3 days in advance to
the extent practicable.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, having made specific
enquiry of all the Directors, all the Directors of the Company have
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards as
set out in the Model Code regarding the securities transactions by
the Directors and there have been no incidents of non-compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of the
Company and the implementation of its investment policy, which
includes, inter alia, the adoption of long-term corporate strategies,
assessment of investment projects, supervision of its management
and review of its financial performance to ensure that the
Company’s investments are conducted in accordance with its
objectives. The Company appoints the professional investment
manager to manage its investment portfolio. With effect from 25
January 2021, Success Advance Investments Limited had been
appointed as the Company’s investment manager. For details,
please refer to Company’s announcement dated 21 January 2021.
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BOARD SIZE AND COMPOSITION

There are currently five Directors in the Board: the Chairman and
Non-executive Director, one Executive Director, and three
Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"”). The roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separated. The Board
regularly reviews its size and composition to ensure that the Board
can have a breadth of perspective from time to time and that it
always has the necessary diversity of skills and attributes required
to oversee and govern in the ever-changing operating environment.
The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section of
“Biography of Directors and Chief Executive Officer” on pages 150
to 157. During the year, the board size and composition were
reviewed by the Nomination Committee.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2021 and as
at the date up to this report were:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director
Dr. Lam Man Chan

Executive Director
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

Ms. Florence Ng

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year at
approximately quarterly intervals in addition to other Board
meetings that are required for significant and important issues,
and for statutory purposes. The Board meetings are attended by a
majority of the Directors in person or through other electronic
means of communication. Appropriate and sufficient information is
provided to the Board members in a timely manner to keep them
abreast of the Group’s latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, other than resolutions
passed in writing by all the Directors, the Board held a total of 15
Board meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company convened an annual general meeting (“AGM") and one
special general meeting (“SGM").
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The attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and General
Meetings for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as
below:

Name of Directors

BE-_Z-—F+-A=t+—HIIF5EEEee
FEBRERASZERHEBRAIENNOT

Number of meetings attended
HESHERH
Board
Meetings AGM SGM

BEENA EETEE RREFAET RREBIKE
Chairman and Non-executive Director FERIEHTES

Dr. Lam Man Chan MR L 15 1 1
Executive Director HITES

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung FEIRE A 14 1 1
Independent Non-executive Directors I FHTES

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REBEL 15 1 1
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy ERAELAE 15 1 1
Ms. Florence Ng REBFHLZ+ 15 1 1

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business
or family relationship among members of the Board as at 31
December 2021. All of them are free to exercise their individual
judgment.

Independent Non-executive Directors
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has met with

the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules, relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors, representing at least one
third of the Board, and with at least one possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company received
the written annual confirmation from each of the independent
Non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company considered each of
them was independent.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. To ensure a balance of power
and authority, Dr. Lam Man Chan and Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong
have been appointed as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company respectively. The major duties of the Chairman are
to provide leadership to the Board and spearhead overall corporate
development and strategic planning whilst the Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for implementing the decisions and strategy
approved by the Board and managing day-to-day operations of the
Group with the support of the Executive Director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1, Non-executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Although the
current Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term, all
Directors (including Executive and Non-executive) of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
as specified in the bye-laws of the Company.

Meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors

Code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code states
that the chairman of the board of directors of a listed issuer should
hold meetings with the independent non-executive directors at
least annually without the presence of other directors.

During the year, the Chairman had held a meeting with the
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (this “Policy”)

The Company has set out the approach to achieve diversity of its
Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Internet Investment
Finance Holdings Limited (the “Company”). The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance and to maintain high standards of
corporate governance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diverse
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service with the Group. The ultimate decision will be based on
merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board. The nomination committee of the Board (the
“Nomination Committee”) will review this Policy and the
measurable objectives, at least annually as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required, recommend any such
revisions to the Board, and monitor the implementation of this
Policy.

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the Board’s
composition under diversity perspectives in the corporate
governance report of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (“this Policy”)

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Internet Investment
Finance Holdings Limited (the “"Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) has adopted this Policy which aims to
provide stable returns to its shareholders and to maintain a healthy
financial position which allows the Company to take advantage of
any investment opportunities that may arise from time to time.

Subject to the applicable laws in Bermuda and the Company’s
bye-laws, the Board may propose final dividends on an annual
basis and/or may declare interim dividends or special dividends
from time to time. The Board will consider, inter alia, the
Company’s and the Group's operating results, accumulated and
future earnings, dividends received from the Group companies,
gearing, liquidity position, capital commitment requirement and
investment opportunities of the Group, the volatility expected in its
future earnings, financial flexibility, tax considerations, flotation
costs and contractual and legal restrictions. General economic
conditions and relevant external factors will also be taken into
account.

The dividend payout ratio may vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.

Subject to the applicable laws in Bermuda and the Company’s
bye-laws, dividends may be paid in cash or to be satisfied wholly or
partly in the form of allotment of shares by the Company. The
Board may also consider the issuance of bonus shares or
distribution of specific assets of any kind, including debentures or
warrants to subscribe securities of the Company or any other
company, on a basis permitted by the applicable laws and
regulations and in such manner as the Board thinks expedient.

The Board will regularly review the dividend policy and will amend
and/or modify the dividend policy if necessary.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES

1.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company was established with

its written terms of reference formulated in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
currently consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk
Sang, Sammy and Ms. Florence Ng. Mr. Tam Yuk Sang,
Sammy is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are in line with the
CG Code. The Audit Committee met regularly during the year
to review the completeness, accuracy and fairness of the
Company’s financial statements, the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures, the scope
and nature of the external audit and matters concerning the
engagement of external auditors. The Audit Committee is
also responsible for reviewing the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements and making recommendations as
to the approval of the Company’s interim and annual
financial statements by the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings

and the detail of attendance of the members at the meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as below:

Name of Members
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Number of
meetings attended

BEHA HEEERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BAUEHITES

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) BREXE(EE) 4
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REHE L 4
Ms. Florence Ng REBEZT 4
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee of the Company was

established primarily to review and make recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the remuneration of the
Directors and the senior management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ng Chi
Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and Ms. Florence
Ng. Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee’s
terms of reference are in line with the CG Code mainly to
review the remuneration policy and remuneration packages
of the Directors. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting and has reviewed the level of
Independent non-executive directors’ fees by making
comparison to peers.

The detail of attendance of the members at the meeting for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as below:

Name of Members

FHEES
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Number of
meetings attended

HEEHERE

MEKR

Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFEBITES
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy (Chairman) BIBE K E (F/FE)
Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon REHE T+

Ms. Florence Ng REBEHLZ+
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3. Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee currently consists of one

Executive Director, namely, Mr. Lee Kwok Leung and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ng Chi
Yeung, Simon, Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and Ms. Florence
Ng. Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon is the Chairman of the
Committee. During the year, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the composition, structure, size of the board and
the board diversity.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two

meetings and the attendance of the members at the meeting
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as below:

Name of Members

3. REZE®

REZBEHEH - BHNTES AFH
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Number of
meetings attended

BEHA HEE R R
Executive Director HiITES

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung ZTEREE 2
Independent Non-executive Directors BAUEHITES

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon (Chairman) REHBELT (EE) 2
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy BIBELAE 2
Ms. Florence Ng REBEZLT

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fee paid/payable in
respect of audit services and non-audit services to the Company’s
auditor, RSM Hong Kong, was approximately HK$400,000 and
HK$61,000 respectively.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board as to the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditors, which is subject to the approval by the Board
and at general meetings of the Company by the shareholders.

% B8 B % A
BE-_Z-—H+-_A=1+—RBUEEE 2/
JER R R BIZ AN & R X G TR E 75 P 2 B % R
BRIFEZRD 2B A5 R4 /400,000 T &
61,000/ 7T °

EREZECAEHREMR  EFEERBILINER
BEMmMEESELREREER  BRALET EFZ
ERBBRZFEAREFERNAARZBERA
G LERRIE - HAHER -
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Company and ensure that they
are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of such financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, RSM Hong
Kong, with regard to their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 173 to 177.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
internal control for the Company and has regularly reviewed the
internal control policy so as to safeguard the Group’'s assets.
During the year, the Company identified and evaluated its key risks
and likely uncertainties. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
findings and risk profile of the Company.

Internal audit function

Given its small operations, the Company’s internal audit function
has been primarily provided by professional firms or individual
consultants. During the year, BT Corporate Governance Limited
reviewed the internal control procedures relating to the areas of
“Investment Operation and Risk Management Cycle” and
“Financial Reporting Cycle” of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS [ By B & A R BE

1. Framework of risk management 1. BREEEZLR
Risk management is defined as the overall process of RBREEZEEAETHILTHAEAR S
identifying and understanding its own risks and taking BB RIS TR 2o BT o LB E
informed actions. This is to help it achieve its strategic B P 2R BE B AR - JRIE 2K BRAT Be 1t R R
objectives, reduce the likelihood of failure and decrease the FRAS IR 30 S NAABAE = o

uncertainty of overall business performance.

(a) Responsibility of the board and the (a)

management

The Company adopts a simple and practical approach

towards the risk management process. The Company

embeds the risk management features within our

investment management as well as operational areas

(including finance, human resources, and information

technology) and these operating units adopt the risk
management systems on a day-to-day basis.

These systems are designed to mitigate the risk of
failure to achieve relevant objectives, and provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or
loss. Moreover, the management annually reviews and
updates its risk profile, aiming to provide assurance to
the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management
systems, and the Board will oversee the Company's risk
management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basic.

(b) Risk management working group and (b)

supporting role of the Audit Committee

A risk management working group (“Risk Management
Working Group”) was formed in 2020, comprising of
the CEO, CFO and other operational staff. The function
of the Risk Management Working Group is mainly to
advise the Board on the Group's risk profile and risk
assessment; to consider current and emerging risks and
risk exposures relating to the Group's business and
strategies to ensure that appropriate arrangements are
in place to control and mitigate the risks effectively; and
to review the Group's risk management policy on a
regular basis.
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The Audit Committee supports the Board in monitoring
the risk exposure, the design and operating
effectiveness of the underlying risk management and
internal controls systems. The Audit Committee, acting
on behalf of the Board, oversees the following process:

- regular reviews of the risk management report, in
particular for the principal business risks, and
related control measures, the strengths and
weaknesses of the overall internal controls system
and action plans for improvement;

- regular reviews of internal audit reports, including
action plans to address the identified control
weaknesses, status update and its
implementations; and

- regular reports by the external auditor of any
control issues identified in the course of their
work and discussion with the external auditors of
the scope of their respective review and findings

The Audit Committee will then report to the Board after
due review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls. The Board considers the works and
findings of the Audit Committee in forming its own
view on the effectiveness of the system.

Risk profile

Our approach for managing risk is underpinned by our
understanding of our current risk exposures, and how our
risks are changing over time. The risk assessment includes
identifying relevant objectives, identifying events that could
affect the achievement of objectives, determining risk
tolerance, assessing the likelihood/significance of risks and
evaluating the portfolio of risks. Internal controls and risk
management are integrated into our investment operations.

The Risk Management Working Group had performed the
continuous risk assessment, and maintained and updated the
Group's risk register. It had also reviewed emergent risks.
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3. Principal Risks identified
The following highlights the major risks to the Group based

on the annual risk assessment conducted in 2021.

Risks [k

3. BRAZEERR
TXIEHER T - —FETZFER
patEmEN A ASEEEZRR -

Mitigation Plan(s) 4% & &t &I

1. Market Risk T35 @8
Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or
affects ability to meet business objectives arising from
the movement in market prices, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.
SRR EREETISER (MEX - FXLRBRAERSE
HYMERABRMNENIBIXRXEENRKEZE 28
o

2. Equity Price Risk IR A< {E 1% EL I

Price risk arises from fluctuation in market prices of our
investment in listed equity securities. The management
manages the exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
listed equity securities with different risk exposure.
EBRERRRARRAIRE ETRAESZ mi@f’f#‘
KE - EREFRFAEITRARBIEE 2 ETRAE
HBAEREEZER -

3. Concentration Risk £ # &

Concentration of equity price risk may arise if the
Group has a significant investment in a single equity
investment. Details of the major investments are
disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BAEREFRRRRNAEE EAE AR E R 2 &%
BEELER - FEREZHBRES P BREWT22
BEE -

4. Volatility Risk 3% i /& i
It arises from the change of value of an investment or
portfolio as a result of the volatility of the underlying
assets.
BKBRBRRNREEEAZEENDMERZRER
SBEZD -

Regular update of capital market expectations
and monitoring the exposures to implement
appropriate measures on a timely and effective
manner.
THEMBEARAMSEAREREARR -
TR Be M B R BGE B i -

Constantly reviewing the investment strategies
with the Investment Manager and consider to
devise appropriate equity investment strategy.
HKEKBIHEERERK TEEHES
B IR B RS

Regularly monitoring the position sizing limits
and reviewing the concentration analysis.

THEERUENRERBERTIEEIN -

Monitoring the volatility of the underlying
investments and considering using appropriate
financial instruments with Investment Manager.
HEEKBERBAREZRITERERE
HeRTA -
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Risks 2 [

Mitigation Plan(s) #& #% &t 2l

Liquidity Risk i 8/ & £ B k&

It is the potential risk that our Group will be unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due because of an
inability to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets.
NPELRARREASERRGLESERNESHKE
EEE MmMEBEIBTIHEEZEERR -

Strategic Risk 5% B &k

Strategic risk may arise from the pursuit of an
unsuccessful business plan, failed business decision or
from a failure to respond well to changes in the
business environment.

B REBIRNAREKINEBRERE - MERELR
FARREHEEOEERREE L -

Health and Safety Risks {2 2 2 2 E &
Occupational health and safety risks mainly arise from
hazards such as the pandemic of infectious diseases. It
can lead to harm, injury, death or iliness of an employee
in a workplace.
BXRREZzERIEREZELSET  HIWART
BER - ZERFASIBEENIESHEEG XF -
T SHAERR ©

Political Risk B4 &M
Political risk is a form of exogenous shock and mainly
arises from significant political events.

BoaRBR BN ETE —E  TERNEABUASEM

Regulatory risk 52 &

Regulatory risk is the risk that a change in regulations
or legislation will adversely affect a security, company,
or Industry.
EERRRIEERIENZEEHES
AN E 2 BB -

CRBEIRITEE

Holding sufficient liquid assets to ensure that
sufficient cash flows are available to meet all
financial commitments and to capitalize
opportunities for business expansions.

FRARARAIRDEE HREGRHEER
SERNABMEEE  URIEBBEBERERS -

Reviewing the strategic asset allocation and
regular update of capital market expectations
together with the Investment Manager.
HREEERERREERBELTHEHRER
miGTaE] -

Monitoring the virus situation and implementing
additional precautionary measures. Staying alert
to novel infectious diseases and encouraging
staff to take vaccination.

ERREBEN BiefEINAlEiE - BTG
ARRFEG  UTEBEIERRES -

Closely monitoring the political environments.
B ERBUAIRE ©

Regular reviewing the Industry/Sector
concentration.

EHMEETE/MRAZETRE -
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Risks & B Mitigation Plan(s) #& fi# 51 2|
10. Interest rate risk ¥ 2= [@ &

11.

12.

13.

Our Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a
dynamic basis and considers managing this risk in a
cost-effective manner when appropriate, through a
variety of means. Interest rate risk arises from the
unexpected changes in the interest rate.
AEEBRPEUEESTEMNERER - WEEREE K
FRAREFR UAKAMGm 2 TAETEZER 7
KRR TR B2 M RES -

Investment risk 3% & JE b§

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of
occurrence of losses on any particular unlisted
investment.
KRERBAIREREMAERNELTIREZFEBEERZA

BEME ©

Cyber security 42 2 E K

Cyber security remains a key risk trend to most
operating enterprises.
WELRE2HARBOLECERARTERARBY -

Credit Risk 5 E Bk

Credit risk arises when the counterparty would fail to
discharges its obligations under the terms and cause a
financial loss to the Group.
EERBRIRYEF T RERGRBETERY
SERTHMBEEARLR ZERE -

LR EIN

Monitoring the interest rate exposures to
implement appropriate measures.
ERFEER - LREUEE R -

Monitoring and assessing the development of
investee companies.

ERLFEREHRARIZER -

(@)  Ongoing cyber security control enhancement
to align with industry practices and
standards.

FERABBL 2GR ARFETE
BRI FIIRAE o

(b)  Regular reviewing the data integrity and the
effectiveness of data recovery procedures.
THEETHBE B RBBRERF 2K
R e

Monitoring the credit exposures on a continuous
basis.

FEEREERR -
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Mitigation Plan(s) 48 f# 5+ &l

14.

Climate change risk 5 1% £ {t & i%

Whether asset owners invest directly or through asset
managers, asset owners bear the potential transition
and physical risks to which their investments are
exposed.
THEERFEACEEECS S REEKIBETRE -
BERBAAAREEREEHEMEG 2 ELRERE
R o

According to the HKEX's guide on how to prepare ESG
report, climate change-related impacts present financial
risks to many sectors. Under the framework provided by
the TCFD Recommendations, financial risks from climate
change can arise from two primary channels or “risk
factors”: physical and transition. Physical risks resulting
from climate change can be event-driven (acute) or
longer-term shifts (chronic) in climate patterns. Physical
risks may have financial implications for companies,
such as direct damage to assets and indirect impacts
from supply chain disruption.

BBMIMABNAGRERE L@ REREES ZHES

g RIREBCHBZEEHHRZTERRMEES
%BZEH*H@WETFTCFDZL PRI E ZHER - RR
BlER M ERRBRAREMATERESLARE

| BERKBE - RERB(MEIBZERBRARAIIAZE
R B %¢b$1¢ (M)A RIEEEARZE( (181) -
EREARIEECEERMBLE  PINEEXBE
E’JE&%@“&( EEPEHRETE -

Regarding transition risks, transitioning to a
lower-carbon economy may entail extensive policy,
legal, technological, and market changes to address
mitigation and adaptation requirements related to
climate change. Depending on the nature, speed, and
focus of these changes, transition risks may pose
varying levels of financial and reputational risk to
companies.

EREERR  BEEEREER  BX E2 B
M5 EL A EE R ZIEREEE RALE - AT
ELREERAGKECZTE ZEEPHSBNBER
- BFHUE FEMNEHNREEZVBLEE
wERTREE 2R

We will conduct risk assessment process
and consider how climate-related risks and
opportunities can be factored into relevant
investment strategies as appropriate.
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BUSINESS AWARENESS, DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
Under code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, all
directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Through the course of their directorship, Directors are updated on
any developments or changes affecting the Company and their
obligations to it at regular Board meetings. In order to ensure that
Directors continue to further their understanding of the issues
facing the Group, the Company will further strengthen the
provision of Board training, ranging from corporate governance to
regulatory issues.

Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development by studying materials
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. The Company Secretary
also provided relevant training materials for the self-study of
Directors.

During the year, relevant reading materials, including regulatory
updates, seminar handouts and briefings, have also been provided
to the Directors for their reference and studying to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

DIRECTORS' LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal actions against the
Directors arising out of corporate activities of the Group pursuant
to code provision A.1.8 of the new CG Code. Such directors’
liability insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.
Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, no claim has been
made against the Directors.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The joint company secretaries of the Company, Mr. Leung Yiu Wah
and Ms. Cheng Suk Fun, have duly complied with the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

An issuer must demonstrate how the domestic laws, rules and
regulations to which it is subject and its constitutional documents,
in combination, provide the shareholder protection standards set
out in the Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules. For this purpose, the
Exchange requires the issuer to amend its constitutional documents
to provide them. An issuer must further monitor its on-going
compliance with these standards and notify the Exchange if it
becomes unable to comply with any of these after listing.
Transitional arrangements for existing issuers listed on the
Exchange's markets as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: they
would have until their second annual general meeting following 1
January 2022 to make necessary changes to their constitutional
documents to conform to the core shareholder protection
standards set out in the Appendix 3.

Our company secretaries have conducted a preliminary review of
the Bye-Laws and other relevant rules and laws. The core
shareholder protection standards as required under the Appendix 3
of the Listing Rules are expected to be well fulfilled by a Bermuda
company except for the Core Standards 5 and 14 which typically
demands attention. Core Standard 5 is about the right to speak
and the Core Standard 14 is about super-majority vote for
voluntary winding-up. In this regard, the right to speak of eligible
members at general meetings will be considered to be added and
amendment to our Bye-Laws will be proposed at the AGM after
consultation with appropriate professionals.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose
contact details are as follows:

Address: Unit 18, 9/F., Block B, Focal Ind. Centre, 21 Man Lok
Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Email: info@hk0810.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’

meeting
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution

at the shareholders’ meeting. The number of shareholders shall
represent not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of
all shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to vote
at the shareholders’ meeting, or who are no less than one hundred
shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by
a statement of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution of the business
to be dealt with at the shareholders’ meeting. It must also be
signed by all the shareholders concerned and be deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 18,
9/F., Block B, Focal Industrial Centre, 21 Man Lok Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the shareholders’ meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the shareholders’ meeting in case of any other requisition.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving
the notice for the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned under applicable laws
and rules.
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Procedures for shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (the “SGM")

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
upon which all calls or other sums then due have been paid,
forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposits the Board fails to
convene the SGM, the requisitions or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so convened shall not
be held after three months from the date of the original deposit.

The Company continues to improve its corporate governance and
believes it is fundamental for the development of the Company as
well as for the benefits of the shareholders. The Board is pleased
to confirm that the Company has complied with the Code
applicable during the year.
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On behalf of China Internet Investment Finance Holdings
Limited, | am pleased to present the seventh Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021. This report demonstrates our
ongoing efforts and commitment enhancing our sustainability
performance in areas such as employee care and community
participation. We are committed to fulfilling societal
obligations by fostering a collaborative and inclusive
workplace culture and creating a positive impact on the
community where we operate.

According to the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of
2021 issued by the United Nations, the SDGs are more
important now than ever. Now is the time to secure the
well-being of people, economies, societies and our planet.
During the global pandemic, millions of lives have been lost,
the human and economic toll has been unprecedented, and
recovery efforts so far have been uneven. The current crisis is
threatening decades of development gains, further delaying
the urgent transition to a greener, more inclusive economies,
and throwing progress on the SDGs even further off track.
Historically, pandemics have served as catalysts for political,
economic and social change, and that should still hold true
today.
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During the year, we have managed to maintain our
operations as usual. In March 2021, the Company successfully
implemented capital reorganisation and in July 2021, the
Company also completed a rights issue exercise. Our
achievement could not have been accomplished without the
dedication of our employees. Regarding the global concern
on carbon reduction, we have decisively disposed of our
yacht which consumed much fuel. The disposal could
significantly reduce our Scope 1 emission. As we advance, we
continue to show our commitment to understanding the
needs of our stakeholders, and hope to build a better
community where we operate.

The mission of China Internet Investment Finance Holdings
Limited (“the Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as “the Group”) is to become a
well-known investment company in Hong Kong. Our business
philosophy is “to benefit Employees, Shareholders and
Community.”

We believe that sustainable development is the key to our
success, and the positive impact on the community as well as
the environment will bring long-term value to all key
stakeholders. As an investment company, our primary
objective is to achieve capital appreciation as well as
generating stable income from interests and dividends. The
Company also concerns about the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") risks and their impacts on our
operations. Exclusionary screening is the oldest ESG method
and refers to avoiding securities of companies or countries
based on the traditional values and standards and norms
(e.g., those relating to human rights and environmental
protection as defined under the United Nation Global
Compact). Thematic investing refers to investing that is based
on social, industrial and demographic trends. ESG related
investment themes become increasingly popular and include
green energy, EV cars and healthcare.

In the course of our investment operations, we also
implement various tasks of sustainable development, and
employees care to ensure adherence to our business
philosophy.

FA-BARNERKLEEEE R-_FT_—
F=A > ARBKRDETTRAEE  R=
F_—F+H - RRFEFERT HEBOES -
HPIEG PR REE TR R B MR - T3
2 IREAE AR - T PIE RETH BB
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An ESG working group (“ESG Working Group”) was
established in 2020 to follow up the ESG-related matters and
it mainly comprises key management members. This report
was prepared by the ESG Working Group in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governmental Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the internal data of the Group.

All important areas were identified through stakeholder
engagement and materiality assessment. We approached
stakeholders via various channels to obtain opinions on ESG
issues in our business, and set priorities on the important
areas to be reported by reference to their impacts on the
environment, economy and society and on stakeholders. We
aim to provide objective, accurate and fair information in this
report.

The reporting period is from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021. Unless otherwise specified, the report covers the
investment operations of our office in Hong Kong and the
office operation is considered to be small in terms of
headcounts and office space.

A detailed content index of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Stock Exchange is
included in the end of this report. Regarding the information
of our corporate governance, please refer to the corporate
governance report.
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1.5 Reporting Principles
We adopt the four reporting principles outlined in the ESG

Reporting Guide, aiming to respond to ESG matters that are
relevant to the stakeholders and our operations.

8 Materiality EEt# N

Through regular communication regularly
with stakeholders, we strike to better
understand their concerns about sustainability
issues that affect them. Based on the results
of the communication, we re-examine and

confirm the material issues of this report.

1.5 EHRER
RIMEACGEE g REBRSE)P

Bt ey IR E R R A - B £ 8 T B R 25 48
ELERMAXBHEBORE HERER
ERER

4 Quantitative £kt N
We have developed data collection procedures
to record and monitor ESG metrics with the
coordination of the ESG working group.
Where applicable, this report discloses the
quantitative data for the year to allow
stakeholders to understand our performance.

ik e

BEEMENZABERR  RABHEL
T RRENTEREAFEERENRET
REBBENGR  RAEMERALERAR

FHEARE -

-

Balance 1

In order to disclose our ESG performance in

an impartial manner, we maintain a balance

of reporting and disclosure of the progress
and ongoing challenges in the key areas.

RALFERMNERE  HERERRE &
PR E MR TR A5 R A R R DB
Z R T e

BRE @ RERTHENENRET - &2
HEBIRIRER T - RSB RERIRE 8k
BIRIER - RERMBEAT ABREREAF
MEERE - WEFZEARE THRMANKSR

o

Y,

Consistency — 2 1* h
In accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange, the quantitative information in this
Report has been prepared in a consistent
manner to allow readers to compare with the
previous reports of the Company.

REEBZHACGRE  HE@RERKRSHES) -
ABEMBNECEHNC AT AR

\_

Feedback
This report is published in both Chinese and English. If there

_J

1.6

is any discrepancy, the English version shall prevail. Your
feedback will help us to improve the content disclosed in the
report and you are welcome to provide us with your valuable
comments.

Email: info@hk0810.com
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EFEFE : info@hk0810.com
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SECTION 2 SUSTAINABLE STRATEGY F2H S ERRERRE
2.1 Sustainable Development Goals 20 IREREARE

“ R d QAT
PUVERTY 8 LRI B

Rt

DECLR| WORK KD
[0 GRIHWTH

CUMATC it ! 5 1 i
ACTiE ) SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

GOALS

'

Sustainable development is stated by the World Commission HeEt RIRFEEREZSSHAFELRE
on Environment and Development of the United Nations as EERIAMEERANTE  XAHER
“Development that meets the needs of the present AREEFTENREIEBEXREENERE](KRK
generation without compromising the ability of future B ERKD) o

generations to meet their own needs (“Our Common

Future”).

In simple words, it means the development that meets the sz AIFEEREREREENRNRE
needs of both the present and future generations. Our world KEEZNERE - BMANEREAXRZRHR
is increasingly feeling the pressures of population growth, MEMARER - BREZ RAGEELE
resource scarcity, and climate change. In response to these 7o BIEHILENLE - BEaRRN_Z—AF
challenges, the United Nations launched the Sustainable MR T A S B E B 1Z(SDGs) » (b EEIRR
Development Goals (SDGs) in 2015. Companies are HAa B ERABEETCEXEBEEE U
encouraged to align their corporate priorities with their REHTP - EERMNEBEBEENES - I
sustainable goals to enable them to better engage them with ESKEXARTRTHEMNEESE -

their customers, employees, and stakeholders. Companies
should look to collaborate with others both within their
sector and across different industries.

tEapErEeneasRad | —t=—554 IR
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In 1998, the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region R—NUNANE  BEEFRTHER (55
(“HKSAR") introduced the concept of sustainable EDRETERABEZXENHRS - 2
development of Hong Kong. It needs full integration of the SEIEEEMTtEERE E}\]ﬁ'ﬁztgﬁiiafﬁﬁ(
needs for economic and social development with that to ENSExDESIERK -

environmental protection.

The Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) are a collection of AFEEEEZHI17EMBEEEN B 24
17 interlinked goals designed to be a “blueprint to achieve a K BEEKABIABBABREELG - &1
better and more sustainable future for all”. The SDGs were SERRIRMEER | - AJiHERREBIZHE

/—\Iﬁﬁ‘ﬁ’\\_?*ﬂﬁ%ﬂm d Iaf%ﬂﬁé\_
E=TFAER ZEABEHEIA—IE
ZR-IZZEFERNBEEBUARETR &
HEBEHC030FAIHERRZAERE)

set in 2015 by the United Nations General Assembly and are
intended to be achieved by the year 2030. They are included
in a UN Resolution called the 2030 Agenda or what is
colloquially known as Agenda 2030.

The 17 SDGs are: (1) No Poverty, (2) Zero Hunger, (3) Good 17 ERRBEZANERE « 2)Z5
Health and Well-being, (4) Quality Education, (5) Gender & (3 )Eéz}&ﬁ?ﬂ%@ﬁt CAVEEHE - (5)
Equality, (6) Clean Water and Sanitation, (7) Affordable and \“}[Elj L2 (6)a 2K B AR - (1)K
Clean Energy, (8) Decent Work and Economic Growth, (9) aﬁﬁE’]/ﬁ,ﬁ%ﬂgw,\ « (8)BE M T 15 A 45 7% 1%
Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure, (10) Reducing R QOEXE gz MEMZNE - (10)RE D
AEE - (DAFERTHER - (12)BE
EHEEBERMAE  (13)REITE - (14K T4

Inequality, (11) Sustainable Cities and Communities, (12)
Responsible Consumption and Production, (13) Climate

Action, (14) Life Below Water, (15) Life On Land, (16) Peace, )« (15)EEHL A Y ~ (16)F1F ~ IE % Ed g K
Justice, and Strong Institutions, (17) Partnership for the W 1)VREEEERNBHEE- - I

Goals. Not all 17 SDGs are equally relevant to our business
operations. Therefore, we have given due regard to
identifying the current or potential impacts arising from our
business operations. The following are the key areas:

FrBE17TEAFEERBRGERFINES
LERFHERE B RAERD FAR
IR EBEEMEENERNHNEEY
B2-PTRIESHE:
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EQUALITY

DECENT WORK AND
ECONOMICGRONTH

o

SDG 5 Gender Equality

This is achieved by recognizing the importance of creating
and maintaining a culture of inclusion in our workplace and
implementing female and family-friendly incentives.

However, the social and economic impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic have adversely affected progress towards gender
equality. Violence against women and girls have intensified
and women have suffered a disproportionate share of job
losses and increased care work at home. Women have played
a central role in the response to the COVID-19 as frontline
health workers, care providers and as managers and leaders
of recovery efforts. Yet, they remain underrepresented in
leadership positions and their rights and priorities are often
not explicitly addressed in response and recovery measures.
The crisis presents an opportunity to re-shape and rebuild
systems, laws and institution to advance gender equality.

SDG 8 Decent working and economic growth

Even before the pandemic global economic growth had
slowed. The COVID-19 crisis disrupted economic activities
around the world and caused recession. According to the
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) of 2021 issued by the
United Nations, 8.8 percent of global working hours were
lost in 2020 (relative to the fourth quarter of 2019)
equivalent to 255 million full-time jobs. The pandemic has
put workers in informal employment at risks. Youth workers
and women have been particularly affected by the crises.
With the roll-out of COVID-19 vaccines and continued fiscal
and monetary support, the US and China are expected to
experience strong growth in 2021. However, for many other
countries, economic growth will remain below pre-pandemic
levels for a prolonged period.

We strive to maintain a safe workplace for all employees,
promote economic growth and create job opportunities for
the younger generations. Related policies such as Employee
Policies and health and safety policies and guidelines have
been implemented and are periodically reviewed with
reference to industry best practices. Please refer to the
section “Health and Safety” for further details.
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2.2 Management Approach and Structure 22 BBERFERRE

An efficient management structure and regular
communication with stakeholders are important to lead our
sustainable development. An ESG management structure has
been developed with a dedicated ESG Working Group in
place to ensure the effective implementation of ESG policies
and measures. We gather the feedbacks and expectations of
internal and external stakeholders through regular
engagement. This helps us to evaluate our operations,
mitigate the ESG-related risks and seize business
opportunities.

The Company is dedicated to sustainable business
development, thus fulfilling its mission of becoming a
well-known investment company and our business philosophy
of “to benefit Employees, Shareholders and Community”.

2.2.1 Board statement on oversight and

management of ESG Issues

The following is a statement from the Board of Directors
("Board”) of China Internet Investment Finance
Holdings Limited explaining the oversight of
Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG”) issues
and how the Group approaches the management of
ESG issues.

Governance Structure and Board'’s Oversight

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
strategy and reporting. It provides oversight of ESG
issues with an emphasis on the Group’s long-term
development and positioning, through the Sustainability
Governance Structure outlined below.

BMHEEERE R EN AR E T RS
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2.2.2 Sustainability Governance Structure 22 ERRERER
The Board is responsible for steering our ESG's overall EEeRECERMBE Heke
direction. The Executive Committee is charged with the AHER TR - HMITEESAERE
responsibility to guide the ESG Working Group in BIE e BRI IE J\iﬂaﬁmf&
implementing ESG policies and measures, and oversee B odgkERBELREHR LEE
the running of our ESG system. RE g REBRSHET
Responsible party 8 &7 Core responsibility %0 E{E

Shareholders and
other Stakeholders

PRRR HAth RIS 1E B &
Board of Directors o Provides strategic advice to the Executive Committee
g MTZE2RERBER

o Implements ESG-related procedures and internal control measures
MITIRIER - w2 RERHAREF LA REHIEE
Executive Committee o Oversees work of the ESG working Group
#iTEES EEIRE g RERIIENENTIE
o Approves ESG Reports, and ensures the accuracy of the key
performance indicator data

FHRIE - LG RERARE - URREREIEESEN LR

o Facilitates the implementation of ESG policies across business units
BB EKIFIEHRERE L REBHE
o Collates ESG key performance indicator data

ESG Working Group BB e RELHRENEENRE
RIE - HERER e Prepares ESG Reports
TEE BRBE e REARE

o Reports to the Executive Committee on the implementation status
of ESG initiatives

APATRZEEREEMRE L@ RERBENUTIER
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The Sustainability Governance Structure is mainly
supported by the ESG Working Group, constituted by
senior representatives from a cross-section of
departments. The structure also includes:

° Executive Committee;

° Risk Management Working Group reporting to the
Board and Audit Committee.

2.2.3 ESG Management Approach and Strategy

The Board approve the Sustainability Framework
including sustainability priorities, as well as the
long-term sustainability goals and targets for each of
the sustainability priorities, after taking into
consideration such factors as international benchmarks
and best practices for the real estate sector.

The approved Sustainability Framework covers the
following four sustainability priorities:

o Climate Resilience: Adapt to climate change and
decarbonize the business

o Resource Management: Optimize the use and
management of natural resources (energy, water
and materials)

o Wellbeing: Sustain a healthy, inclusive and safe
environment and promote social wellbeing

o Sustainable Investment: Promote sustainability
practices in investment.

We have formulated our environmental policy in 2020
which can support the above sustainability objectives,
particularly on climate change.

] CHina INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANGE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Environmental Policy

14

Policy Statement

China Internet Investment Finance Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
committed to minimising the environmental
impacts of their business. The Group recognises
that good business practices can have a
fundamental effect on environmental protection.
It seeks to conduct its activities in an
environmentally responsible manner and to
develop a range of management practices aimed
at promoting sustainable development.

Sustainable Development

The Group endeavors to achieve a high standard
of environmental care in developing its business
and to give due consideration to environmental
risks that would damage the natural and built
environment in conducting its business. We
believe that such conduct would add value to the
Group and its stakeholders, and contribute to the
enhancement of the environment and the
well-being of the society.

Management Practices

The Group seeks to implement sound
environmental programmes that use resources
more efficiently and effectively. These include the
following:

o Promote energy efficiency

o Improve consumption of materials to
minimise waste generation and dispose of
waste in an environmentally acceptable
manner

o Promote recycling and the use of recycled or
environmentally friendly materials

o Give preference to suppliers and contractors
who adopt environmentally friendly practices

° Meet all relevant environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations

° Support environmental initiatives, partly
through the Group ‘s community programmes
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Promoting Environmental Awareness

The Group seeks to promote public awareness of
the importance of environmental protection and
of the responsibility of management, employees
and other stakeholders to work in partnership for
the benefit of the environment. It is committed to
communicating environmental practices externally.

Business Operations

The Group believes that its sustainable
performance is linked to good environmental
practices and pays attention to environmental
factors in its decision-making processes.

We strive to incorporate environmental risk
assessments into investment decisions. Investees
are expected to fulfil the appropriate compliance
obligations applicable to their business. References
are made to the “ESG issues in Investing” issued
by the CFA Institute.

All employees are encouraged to conduct their
duties in an environmentally responsible manner.

The Group’s environmental policy has been
approved by the Board of Directors and forms an
integral part of its corporate social responsibility.
Senior executives are tasked with its
implementation. The environmental policy will be
monitored and periodically reviewed in the light
of new developments.

ESG risks and opportunities are identified by the
ESG Working Group. ESG risks are managed by
the Risk Management Working Group and ESG
opportunities are addressed by the relevant
departments and functions as directed by the
management.

CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANGE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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2.2.4 Review of Progress and Relevance to Business
The Sustainability Framework, sustainability priorities,
long-term sustainability goals and targets, and KPIs are
set with reference to the Group’s principal business in
the financial sector. The Board reviews progress on the
implementation of the sustainability goals and targets
with reference to the KPIs principally through regular
reporting of the ESG Working Group to the Executive
Committee.

“Materiality” is one of the keystone Reporting Principles for
preparing a quality ESG report. In the HKEX's ESG Reporting
Guide, materiality is defined as the threshold at which ESG
issues are determined by the Board to be sufficiently
important to investors and other stakeholders that they
should be disclosed. International standards/guidance (such
as the GRI Standards and the TCFD Recommendations) and
the Guide address many environmental and social issues, but
not all of these issues are relevant to all companies.

An internal materiality assessment was conducted by our ESG
Working Group together with the senior management. We
have taken into our account of the following factors:

a. overall mission and, corporate values, policies and
procedures manual, its risk management framework,
risk register and related studies/analyses.

9): Laws, regulations, international agreements, or
voluntary agreements of strategic significance to the
Company.

C. Main topics and future challenges for the investment
companies, particularly considering relevant guidance
and resources.
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Regarding external materiality assessment, stakeholder
engagement is an important tool that a company can use to
identify, develop and achieve accountable and strategic
responses to ESG issues. In order to understand the
significant operational subjects that are sufficiently concerned
by the stakeholders, our ESG Working Group has adopted a
systematic approach of identification, prioritization and
review and conduct surveys or interviews with internal and
external stakeholders to identify the sufficiently important
and relevant ESG issues which are the sustainable focuses
that the Group needs to pay close attention.

The following flowchart summarises the materiality analysis

BRI EZ NG R —HEEFR
RMNERBESE  HATEPRARRERE
HegkERZEE# HEREEAER
ARBUENEE - STHEMNSHEBEETD
FEMNBEAKERE - HFINERE - HERk
ERTENADERR—ERSICAREA
BEKFREES L  YHAINEFEE
BMEETHESETA  ABNERNER
REBENENRE HE8REAHE  &F
FZER/AKEFTETYBINATHEER
B -

AT 57 A2 B 1 28 B 5 4 032 ¢

process:

Updated ESG issues based on the results of the internal materiality assessment
IDENTIFICATION and the Company’s 2020 ESG Report with reference to the HKEX's ESG
ol Reporting Guide, non-financial disclosure of the peers and focus areas of
media coverage
BEBERNBEEUTHERRAARAN_Z_SFRR - HGRER/RBE 12
EEBBMZN (RE - £ RERREES)  AXFEVBEERBEARER
HRENERES - FHRE LG RERRHE
ASSESSMENT
oy Collected the materiality scores of ESG issues rated by both internal and
external stakeholders mainly through a questionnaire survey
T2REMGAE  WERIBMSEFEELRE HEghERBENERNT
B
PRIORITISATION Based on the responses to “importance to stakeholders” and “importance to
BsHF the Company” the materiality scores of stakeholders were compiled, each and
every ESG issue ranked and the results presented in a materiality matrix
BEY (BN RERENERL] M [HRARNEZN] MEEE - BEMNR
HEENEEMND B —ERRE L REAMBETHF - LHERNA
BER2MHBERNTAZR
CONFIRMATION
e After an analysis of the results, a further review was conducted by the ESG
Working Group
RE g kEARAIHENMNIMERETHOMERBIEE—FES

BPERAIL=EEERE  DhlR[ER
EEI] - TREBIRIEREE]  R¥
PGB NEIRE e RERMNER
WENKRERE HENEARE -

We have identified three material topics: “Development and
Training”, “Anti-corruption” and “Community Investment”.
In the future, we will continue to enhance our ESG
management and strive to optimize our ESG performance.
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Stakeholders are entities or individuals that can reasonably be
expected to be significantly affected by our activities,
products and services; and/or whose actions can reasonably
be expected to affect our ability of to successfully implement
its strategies and achieve its objectives.

Depending on our investment business, the industry and
other factors, external stakeholder groups include but are not
limited to: Investors/shareholders/members Suppliers/business
partners, Employees, Government and regulators, NGOs and
lobby groups, Local communities, Competitors/peers and/or
Experts and specialists (e.g. professional/industry associations
and academia). When engaging with stakeholders, we
generate a full and complete list of stakeholders by consulting
various departments and reduce the list of stakeholders into
a workable size. If the ESG Working Group does not have the
resources to contact representatives from every stakeholder
group, we focus on key stakeholders only.

MEAEEREASERRAIRMNESR
B ERRRBBEELE RXHET
R AEREHNETERMAKIIETRE R
ERBENENNERKERAL-

RERMANRERE TXREMEE
SNEMEAEEREEEAEIRY  RE
E/BRR /&8 HER EBBH R
B BT REEHE - IEBUT A R
EE TR BEEF S RE R
ER(PINEE ERABRBE) - RN
TMEARE2EE  HMSHEASEED
F - BIEFATENNGAEERE A
MEAREEBEMR =AM EE &
o IR - LB RERT/NELER
WERBASEMNDBEERFEOLE
BHMREIRNTENZEEE -
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of major stakeholders and related communication channels: K iERE B A

The following table outlines the expectations and demands

Major communication Expectation and Communication

demand on of ESG

and responses

EilkyE o IRBERE HIRE HERERNRERER REREDE

Stakeholder channels

Employees

Shareholders
and investors

BRRREREE

. Regular meetings

. Remuneration and benefits o Encourage participation in

e

Performance appraisal

BMEG

Trainings

&3l

Employee caring activities

BEESEDY

Office publications/emails
WMAZHRY, EF

Online learning

EREE

Members' general
meetings

REAE

Annual and interim reports
FRERERTHES
Shareholders meetings
RREE

Corporate official website

REE T H

EEER

Career Development and
Training opportunities
BERRUTIRE
Anti-corruption

vt

Financial Performance
MBERR
Corporate Transparency
ATERE
Risk Control

BB
Development and Training
BRRE
Anti-corruption
K&
Community Investment

HERE

continuous training
FE2EREE

Competitive salary and

benefits
ARFNNE e KEF

Improve profitability
BEEME

Regular publication of NAV
per share and routine
information disclosure on
the website of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
EREREREEFER
BB B R
TERRE

Strive to improve risk
management and internal
control systems
EhERRERE RN
ERRG
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Major communication Communication

Expectation and
demand on of ESG
HIRR HEREANGERER BEREDE

Stakeholder channels

RSHERE IRBER

and responses

Service providers

Regular meetings

Development and Training

Promote timely

and suppliers fle BE R communication

PR3 42 4 7 T A E 7 Emails Anti-corruption (R ER
ot RES Fulfil contractual
Regular review and Community Investment obligations
feedback HERE BiTatzk
EHEERRE Build responsible supply
Corporate official website chain
RAEH A BUMEHEEE

Governments and

Websites of Government

Compliance of laws and

Adhere to the laws and

regulatory bodies and regulatory bodies regulations regulations
HEBBFREERE B R EE KRR NHRERER ETERER
Anti-corruption Pay and tax and duties in
RES full on time
Pay tax and duties in KIS 2 F &
accordance with the law
wEGBHE
Communities and Charity donations Community Investment Participate in charity
Non-governments el HERE activities
organisations (NGOs) Sponsorships Giving back to society REAZETH)
SMERFER T AR 2§ ElEME Committed to charities
Visits to NGOs Environmental protection ALAREE
Sh R FEBT AR A BIR Adhere to green operation
Volunteer activities and reduce the usage of
HRAEES fuel
1&STARE BB FOR DI
i
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Materiality Matrix EEMKEME

During the reporting period, the Group has identified a RRERR » REBEH#HFIZERE HE
number of environmental, social and operating-related issues, RAEHBEEE TEXEE0PE RS
and assessed their importance to stakeholders and the R SR EN SRS R AEE
Group, mainly through surveys and interviews. These MESM - =T ARG LR
assessments helped the Group to ensure that its development T IS T E e TS

could be in line with stakeholders’ expectations, and
demands. The matters of concern are set out in the following
materiality matrix:

BOIERHANATEEZ L ER :

Materiality Matrix

ERMER

=

5

o

S

(Y

o

< o

o8 \ g N
o8 al 2 =
S el B3 B8 :7
g = Developmentand ~ Community Investment  Anti-Corruption
v H Training HERE RES
s IE BRRE

€ ¥ ko o

= = (] i

= a\ =

£ 4 A1 A2 A3 B1 A4 B4

@ R Emissions  Use of Resources The Environmentand Employment Climate Change Labour standards

= -3¢ ZiRER Nature Resources &R RIREE HIE8

0w R RERXAER o

© = Y

I A\

= B2

& Health and Safety

= REEZ2

ow edum B

Internal assessment (importance to the Group)

AEMFE (HAKEHNEEY)

PRy T I
Environment i:R1E A\ Employment & 13 = Operations & i&
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The subject areas in the above Table are summarized below
by references to the guideline issued by the HKEX.

Subject Area A - Environment

Aspect A1: Emissions

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
Aspect A4: Climate Change

Subject Area B - Social (Employment and Operations)

Aspect B1: Employment

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Aspect B3: Development and Training
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

Aspect B8: Community Investment

We are committed to balancing operations and environment
protection, and aim to contribute to a green and
environmental-friendly society through energy conservation and

emissions reduction.

In order to meet the corporate citizen responsibilities, the Group
strives to promote sustainability and continuously employ new
technologies and new measures to minimize the environmental risk
and impact of its business operations, thus achieving sustainable
development. The Group strictly complies with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations. During the year, there were
no cases of violation of relevant regulations or code of conduct
within the Group.

bR A IS 1R B B S P AR AR O 15 5| Bt

S

BIEA—IR1E
EBEA1 : BERY
[EmA2 : BIREFA
BHEA3 : IRERRXAER

BEAL: AEE(L

BIEB-#HE (FRREE)

EmEB1 : BIE
[EHEB2 : f#EEE
[E B3 : %*J?e&i =JI|
[BEB4 : & T X8|
[EMEBS : HEEEIE
[EMEB6 : EMEE
[BEB7 - RES

JEMEBS : HRITE

BB INELERRERELHREFE > X
HAORNBEBMERBERFERFREEMEER

RETEEAREME  AREZNEDHAFKESR
B TEIRBAFH KM EHERE  HEFLENR
BRBAZERERE EMERAFEER -
AEBBERETHAERNREERESR - F
W AEERPAEBLEREBERKITRE
AlB1ER

+
=

S EBBRE SRS
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3.1 Environmental Responsibility 3 RIFEMFE
3.1.1 Management policy 3N EEBHE
The Group's small operations do not directly generate AREFBMEBFREN At T2 aE

significant air emissions, hazardous waste or waste
water discharge and thus environmental issues are
identified to be non-material aspects. The most
common emission from our daily business activities is
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission, mainly generated
from the consumption of purchased electricity and the
fuel.

Environmental protection is very important for our
sustainable development. The environmental
management system is spearheaded by the ESG
Working Group in accordance with our environmental
policy. Our policy strives to achieve a high standard of
environmental care in developing our business and to
give due consideration to environmental risks that
would damage the natural and built environment in

conducting our business.

Management practices are implemented to control GHG
emissions and reduce the generation of both hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes, so as to minimize the
environmental risk and impact of the Company’s
operations.

Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations

During the year, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance of environmental laws and regulations
in Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to emissions of waste gases and
greenhouse gases, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes. We were not subject to any
punishment for violating applicable laws and
regulations.
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3.1.3 Energy conservation

As energy consumption accounts for a major part of the
Group’s GHG emissions, we seek to implement sounds
environmental practices that can achieve energy
conservation. We also refer to the best practices under
the Green Office Best Practices Criteria Checklist of the
Green Office Awards Labelling Scheme of the World
Green Organisation.

We promote energy efficiency by deploying natural light
and use energy-saving lightings, where feasible.
Refrigerator is kept away from sunlight and well
ventilated. The air filters of air-conditioners are cleaned
regularly to improve cool air flow efficiency. We have
implemented switch off light policy and used energy
consumption equipment (e.g. computer will be switched
automatically while not in use). Energys saving mode of
vehicles is also compulsorily activated.

3.1.4 Waste reduction

The high population density and life-style in Hong Kong
generate serious municipal solid waste problem.
Improper disposal of the waste will cause land pollution.
According to the Environmental Bureau’s Hong Kong
Blueprint for Sustainable Use of Resources for 2013 to
2022, the Hong Kong Government aims to reduce Hong
Kong’s Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) disposal rate on a
per capita basis by 20%, from 1.27 kg per day to 1 kg
or below by 2017, and then further down to 0.8 kg or
below by 2022, representing a 40% from 2011.

By 2025, the World Bank estimates that there will be
4.3 billion urban residents generating 1.42 kg of MSW
per person per day. During this period of time, the total
quantity of MSW from urban residents will have
increased from 0.68 billion tons to 2.2 billion tons per
year. Some places, such as Taipei City and South Korea,
have made sustained efforts in recent years to prevent
and reduce waste with great success. Hong Kong needs
to catch up with the best-in-class cities.
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We have implemented procedures to ensure proper
disposal of solid waste and reduce waste at sources.
The Group’s wastes are mainly classified into two
categories in its business, including general wastes
(household wastes) and recyclable wastes. The Group
does not generate any hazardous waste in the ordinary
course of business because of our straightforward
investment operation.

3141 Waste of electrical and electronic equipment
Computers or office’s electrical and electronic
equipment are well maintained to prolong life
span. Staffs are encouraged to recycle the
electrical and electronic waste through EPD
assigned recyclers.

3142 Other office wastes
Staffs are encouraged to reuse stationeries, e.g.,
paper clips, folders, binders, envelopes. Recycling
bins to separate papers, metal and plastic are
available at office. We also encourage our staff to
avoid the consumption of paper cups and other
disposable utensils.

3143 Paper reduction

For environmental protection, we implement
policies to reduce the use of paper. We promote
electronic communications and “think before you
copy” attitude and encourage our employees to
use both sides of the paper for printing and
copying. We adopt double-sided printing and
photocopying. Sending email is suggested instead
of letters or fax when possible and the E-fax
system was adopted without fax printing.
Clouding computing system is used for access of
documents and emails.
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3.1.6

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations
The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the Waste Disposal Ordinance and other applicable
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharging into water and land, generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Group
during the year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations had been reported in
the year.

Emissions

The Group’s core business does not directly generate
significant air emissions. The greenhouse gases include
carbon dioxide, and nitrogen oxides, which can trap the
heat energy radiated from the Earth. The increasing
concentrations of greenhouse gases have led to global
warming. The most common emission from its daily
business activities is greenhouse gas (“GHG") and is
mainly generated from the consumption of purchased
electricity and the fuel consumed from the use of motor
vehicles.

The combustion of fossil fuels typically releases carbon
dioxide, nitrogen oxides and sulphur dioxide. The
increase in global carbon dioxide in the past has
affected the evolution of biodiversity and the regional
climate. Nitrogen oxides and sulphur dioxide are acidic
gases and can turn rain acidic.

3NS5 ETFHEBERER
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To illustrate our strong determination to reduce the
carbon emissions, during the year, we disposed of our
yacht.

Fuel consumption of motor vehicles and yacht is the
major source of air pollutants which include nitrogen
oxides (“NOx"), sulphur oxides (“SOx") and particulate
matter (“"PM") emissions. The calculation of each
emission is mainly based on the Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the HKEX and the
approximate estimation of kilometers travelled by
vehicles. Their figures illustrate their non-significance
and we may not report them in the coming annual
report. The fuel consumption mainly came from the use
of vehicles and our yacht.

After the yacht was disposed of during the year, we
would consider to replace the existing company cars
with more environmentally friendly ones, such as EV or
hybrid cars.
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Gaseous Emissions from the Use of Mobile Combustion

Sources

1 15 T BE 55 R B 2L e B HE K

Environmental Performance Year 2021 Year 2020
IRIERIA —B-—F —EEHF
NOx RE/y Kg 5= 21.83 22.79
SOx maly Kg T3 0.43 0.46
PM SBF R Kg 3= 1.59 1.65
GHG emission Year 2021 Year 2020
BEREEHEMK -S4 —ECoEF
GHG emission (Scope 1) BEREHER (FEE1)
It represents the petrol and BRARIBEHMERFA tCO,e 80.23 85.63
diesel consumption from 0 & B R AR A )T H WE—EikiiEE
company cars and vessel, N ESRIHFE ©
which was disposed during
the year.
GHG emission (Scope 2) BERBEHEK (FE2)
It represents the electricity BRENHLEEES tCO,e 9.69 11.66
purchased from power MEARE o WS LiRE S
suppliers.
Total GHG emissions BRERBHERAE tCO,e 89.92 97.29
—EkigE
Average number of FRFHREE AR Employee 22 23
employees for the year (==
GHG emission Intensity AEREHRRE tCO,e/Employee 4.09 4.23
WE — b fiR
22/ EE
Emission under Scope 3 is not disclosed as it is an optional BN EEREHN (SBEI) BrEIERERN
disclosure, and the activity data collection is often a laborious BX - BEHEBANEHKEETEREES -
step that may involve many operational staff in a company ARES N RZRAAEEAE  HEKRE
and pose an issue to corporates with small operations. NHIATIT S Al BE B A RE - B I E T

PAT %
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3.1.7 Environmental performance of hazardous BN EEBREYNRIERR
waste
The Group does not generate hazardous wastes AEBEHEEPITELLEER
including chemical wastes, clinical wastes and Y BRABEEYLRBEELNERERE
hazardous chemicals in its operations. REZEY) o
Non-hazardous wastes produced by the office are MAEEENBEZEEZEYHRLEEE
minimal and are mainly comprised of general office BYHIRBETESE AT EN — RN
consumables which have no material impact on the e B RAI B EIE -

environment. Therefore, no relevant figure is quantified.

3.1.8 Target for reduction of emissions 318 BEHEEE

In 2003, the two governments of Hong Kong SAR and —EE=F  FAFRBNNERE
Guangdong Province drew up the Pearl River Delta BRHETCGROI=AMNESEETE]) -
Management Plan to pursue certain emission reduction FE BT EBERANTRARE
measures targeting power plants, motor vehicles and WILEBERMT & TRBEEE - =
heavily polluting industrial processes. In 2012, these T——F ZMHBNER= AR
governments endorsed an emission reduction plan for N_Z_TFHRBE TFTUEE
the PRD region up to 2020 which includes emission BIENEXZESEY (ARaty |
reduction targets for four major pollutants, namely ftR - JRABZENIIERE LR
sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, respirable suspended L&) BREER F‘ﬁ U ZE=mE
particulate and volatile organic compounds to improve o MBS _SFHREEB
air quality. Their reduction target for 2020 was set to EEABBMN20%E30% °

be 20% to 30% for Hong Kong.

Regarding the problems of air FRE BN ZERSEM
pollution in Hong Kong, there are 78 - B T imim R B
measures to control the street-level B I L L GAT E s BERR ) B9 1 B 2R 5 ) AT
pollution by reducing emissions AR o ZEREBIESE
from vehicles. These include H ow TO RSB B MERERR
encouraging the use of electric BEEE -

vehicles and promoting the IAVO I D A
|

eco-driving habit. c L I M AT E
DISASTER

THE SOLUTIONS WE HAVE AND THE
BREAKTHROUGHS WE NEED
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As mentioned in the Hong Kong's Climate Action Plan
2030+, issued in 2017, the Paris Agreement, a
multilateral treaty agreed in December 2015, succeeded
the Kyoto Protocol that expired in 2020. China formally
signed it on Earth Day, 22 April 2016, and ratified it on
3 September 2016. The Paris Agreement came into
force on 4 November 2016. The key provisions of the
Paris Agreement call for global actions to achieve 'peak’
greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (referred to as carbon
emissions hereinafter) as soon as possible and achieve a
balance between carbon sources and sinks in the
second half, of the 21st century (i.e. to reach ‘carbon
neutrality’), and keep global average temperature
increase well below 2°C relative to pre-industrial levels
and to pursue efforts to limit it to 1.5°C. Per this
climate plan, Hong Kong will reduce its carbon intensity
by 65% to 70% by 2030 using 2005 as the base. This is
equivalent to 26% to 36% absolute reduction and a
reduction to 3.3-3.8 tonnes on a per capita basis.

In October 2021, the Hong Kong’s Climate Action Plan
2050 was issued which sets the vision of “Zero-carbon
Emissions, Liveable City, Sustainable Development”, and
commits to a more aggressive medium-term target to
reduce total carbon emissions of Hong Kong by half
against the 2005 level before 2035. In 2019, electricity
generation was the largest source of carbon emissions,
accounting for about two-thirds (66%) of the total
emissions in Hong Kong, followed by transport (about
18%), waste (about 7%, mainly from landfills), other
end-use of fuel (about 5%), and industrial processes
and product use (about 4%). It is an extremely
challenging target to achieve carbon neutrality before
2050, i.e. in less than 30 years. Hong Kong must
formulate a proactive, forward-looking and targeted
decarbonisation strategy, and strive to encourage the
participation of the whole community.

HhEE
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Carbon neutrality refers to achieving relative
“zero-carbon emissions” in a place or by an
organisation, etc. over a certain period of time. This can
be done by replacing conventional fossil energy,
conserving energy, green commuting, “use less, waste
less”, planting, afforestation, purchasing renewable
energy (RE) certificates and carbon trading, etc. to
reduce or offset the carbon emissions generated from
the activities of the place or the organisation. Achieving
carbon neutrality helps limit the rise in carbon
concentration and global temperature, and reduce the
risks and damages caused by climate change.

The use of zero-carbon energy for electricity generation
extensively can achieve carbon neutrality before 2050.
Not only will this address about two-thirds of the
current carbon emissions in Hong Kong, it will also
provide zero-carbon energy to an electrified transport
system. In addition, if the waste-to-energy facilities
required for replacing the development of new landfills
are in place, we can reduce about 90% of our carbon
emissions. As for the remaining carbon emissions of less
than 10%, they would be dealt with through the
development and application of low-carbon
technologies.

According to the Hong Kong’s Climate Action Plan
2050, our total carbon emissions have shown a
downward trend after reaching its peak in 2014 (i.e.
carbon emissions will decline after reaching the peak
and will not rise again), with the per capita carbon
emissions reduced from 6.2 tonnes in 2014 to 5.3
tonnes in 2019. The power companies have gradually
replaced coal with natural gas in electricity generation.
Based on preliminary estimation, the per capita carbon
emissions in 2020 would be reduced to around 4.5
tonnes. Energy, transport and waste account for more
than 90% of Hong Kong's total carbon emissions.
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We set out our GHG emission reduction targets in 2020
and would reduce the 3-year average total GHG
emissions by 5 to 10% for the two financial years 2021
to 2022. The target for 2021 reduction is about 2.5%
to 5% on a yearly basis. We strived to meet this
reduction target by the disposal of a yacht. This can
reduce the Scope 1 emission. However, the electricity
utilization had been increased during the year because
the operations have been back to normalization after
the vaccination, as compared to the financial year 2020.
Thanks to the reduction of emission factor for electricity
utilization in Hong Kong from 0.57 to 0.37 since March
2021, this reduced the Scope 2 emission. These two
factors helped us to work along with the target in
2021. The total GHG emissions for Scope 1 and Scope 2
decreased from 97.29 to 89.92 tonnes CO2e.

In 2022, we will review the target reduction for
financial year 2023 and thereafter.

3181 Decarbonization
We make reference to the above emission targets
of the Hong Kong Government when considering
our internal target for various emission reduction
targets. In the coming two fiscal years, we strive
to reduce the 3-year average total GHG emissions
by 5% to 10% and in the long term, we aim to
reduce by about 25% to 30% of the average GHG
emissions level.
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In December 2021, HKEX published a Practical
Net-Zero Guide for Business. This is a practical
implementation guide aims to facilitate companies
to develop a net-zero pathway in line with
national targets and global commitments.

Since the Group’s business does not involve any
manufacturing activities, combustion of fuels in
mobile sources (e.g. cars and vessels) is our major
source for direct emissions under Scope 1 and
electricity purchased from power companies is the
major source for indirect emissions under Scope 2.

In March 2021, the emission factor for electricity
utilization in Hong Kong was reduced from 0.57
to 0.37 which also helped the carbon reduction.

During the year, we disposed of the yacht which
could significantly reduce the Scope 1 emission in
coming years to illustrate our strong determination
for environmental protection.

CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANGE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RZZEZ—F+=F BB
RETHBECEEFTHRERIE
SI) - ZERESIEERERTA
RRER B EREFR G EE
FEFERERE o

REBNEBHT S RAEAEES
B MEEIEEER T
BB BIEB BRI IR (10
SR - TR E2 R
HTHEEIRARTE A TR
BEWES -

NZEBEZ—F=A BMARSE
BE R EHER RSN 5TRE
0.37 * INEBY T B AR °

FAR- HAEEELE - EAME
150 R 2R 8 6 1 6 B 1 B U R
Lo BRI T HAIHRENEAR
Ly ©



& AN W A W L L W

3182 Mitigation tactics 3182 AR
The total carbon emissions is not significant, and BRI B E N MR E -
the purchase of carbon credits will not be EfRERBLIEERNBEER
considered as a practical way for mitigation. % o BN G #E - RKRATREE I
Certain abatement measures may be implemented aTRBEERE - B

if appropriate in future. These may include:

1. To incorporate low-carbon criteria in 1. BERBCERMARERE
procurement specifications

2. To continue the green office procedures as 2. HBEEHIT T N3 3FTAYAR
mentioned in 3.3 below BRNREF
3. To transform company cars to electric/ 3. BRRE@HHAEH T
zero-emissions vehicles HEm B iR
3.1.9 Waste collection and storage points are set up to collect 31 9RMBEMRERTFHE - o5&
recyclable and non-recyclable waste separately. If the Bl A B W EEY) o I RIE R E) A
accumulated recyclable waste exceeds a certain amount, Bl EE MR — EEE - AFITHED
the Personnel and Administration Department invite e Aa B IR AR RIZAR U EEY) - 3]
bids from eligible companies for recycling of the waste. B BEEYHNHSEWTE o

Currently, the quantity of the waste is insignificant.
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3.2 Resources Conservation 32 BERRE
3.2.1 Management policy 321 BEEEK

The overall target of the Hong Kong Government is to
reduce the MSW disposal rate by 40% on a per capita
basis by 2022. Along this direction, we seek to
implement sound environmental policies that used
resources more efficiently and effectively. Key actions
are to reduce waste at sources and to promote energy
efficiency. The Group grasps every opportunity to
encourage its employees in supporting green initiatives
in daily operations to incorporate environmental
sustainability into its business operation.

Due to the nature of office’s operations and business,
the major resources consumed by the Group are
electricity, water and paper. Employees are required to
switch off the lights, electrical appliances and air
conditioning when not in use. Air conditioners are set
for indoor temperature of about 24 degrees Celsius, if
possible, to reduce electricity usage.

Our key water usage arises from toilet flushing, water
tap and drinking water. To avoid unnecessary water
consumption from daily operation, our staff are
encouraged to turn taps off tightly so they do not drip
and giving priority to effective water-saving products.

We will continue to look for opportunities to reduce
further emissions and wastes on an ongoing basis in
order to minimise the impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources. The implementation
of 4Rs rule can also reduce the use of resources and the
4Rs rule refers to reduce, reuse, recycle and replace.
The rule is also applicable to control air pollution and
water pollution.
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Reduce means reducing the use of resource that helps
reducing the generation of wastes. We encourage our
staff to buy office supplies with less package and
reduce the use of disposable items (e.g. paper cups,
paper plates), polystyrene foam lunch boxes and non-
rechargeable batteries. We also save water by turning
off the water tap promptly and checking for water
leakage from taps or pipes. We save energy by
switching off all electrical appliances when not in use
and utilize more appliances with Grade 1 Energy
Efficiency Label.

Reuse means use the items again or for more than one
purpose. Our staff is encouraged to use both sides of
paper for writing and printing, and wash and reuse
plastic and glass containers. Recycle means changing
waste material into usable goods. Recycling of wastes
can maximize the use of resources, decrease the rate of
exhaustion of resources and reduce the pollution.

We have recycling bins in place to collect waste paper,
plastic bottles and aluminum can separately. Replace
means use an alternative to replace the disposable or
wasteful products in order to produce less wastes or
use less natural resources. We also encourage the use
of LED lightings in future.

Our main environmental measures below aim at
protecting the environment and reducing the use of
resources.

o Promote energy efficiency

o Promote recycling and the use of recycled or
environmentally friendly materials

o Give preference to suppliers and contractors who
adopt environmentally friendly practices

o Meet all relevant environmental, health and safety
laws and regulations

& AN W A W L L W

MOBRZERBNR D EEDE
ENER BAXBETIREEXEE
BB ARm YWRD—XERAR
MM BRBE)  BRIKEBREHR
(REEBR) RN A TEEBH
8 o FfP9 8 i iR [ IS B B K BE BR AN
BEKERKREERT RKKREALH
KeBfBBENERKEMMEE
SRREOHAE - WEREZHH 1R
WIZHEE S

ERERARERBRERYRATER
REBEEMW - - HAHBETERER
ERMINE  WEXMEEERLER
MRS - D EIRICERT A&
A R Y an - B3 &Y B YA A A
AR AR E A ER - BRIEEIRA
HRER SR DI o

BMRAERKAE - DRIRERER - 2B
BHRMmaE SREEATREER
— RS EER  LUR D BRI E 8K
FEAELHRARER - KPINSES
1 FALEDHR AR °

BFATHEZRFERES ERER
B ERIER

e RERERAX

an

. RIBEHA KGR R
LRI

o BAEEEFEARRRENMEER
A

o TAMBHEBNES  RERZ
REER

cEawerdensasrss | —t=—=54% |ER



VI VI VAR VAN VAN VAN Vi *
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RBE - HEkERRSE

3.2.2 Energy and resource consumptions for the 3.22 AEEREREEIRER
Group
Environmental Performance Year 2021 Year 2020
RIERE —E-—%f —E-EE
Electricity consumption HE KWh 24,712 22,501
TRE
Average number of employee FREHEES NS Employee 22 23
for the year EE
Electricity intensity RE®E KWh/employee 1,277 978
TRE EE
Fuel consumption IRELEFE Litres 28,092 29,787
»F
Average number of employee FRTEHES AR Employee 22 23
for the year BB
Fuel intensity AR 8 E Litres/employee 1,123 1,295
2Tt/ ER
Water consumption K M3 44 40
K
Average number of employee ERNTHES AK Employee 22 23
for the year B8
Water intensity FBKEE M3/employee 2.0 1.8
NAKR/EBR
Paper consumption for printing HRHRE (AR Sheets of paper ("000) 84 106
of the financial statements ReFNeBHR AR (FTK)
materials related to general = TIMIAREE
meetings distributed to the ARATRRER)
shareholders of the Company
Average number of employee FRELEE NS Employee 22 23
for the year EE
Paper intensity R#aE Sheets of paper/ 3.8 4.6

employee ('000)
gR/EBE (TR)

Packaging material consumption BEMEERE Kg = -
=
Packaging material intensity BEMHRE Kg per unit produced = =

T (BEEEWN)
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3.2.3

3.24

Energy use efficiency target

We set out reduction target for 2021 and 2022 by
reducing the 3-year average energy consumption by 5%
in two financial years (i.e. about 2.5% per year) and in
the long term, we aim to reduce by about 25% to 30%
of the average level. Because of the disposal of the
yacht in November 2021 it is anticipated to meet the
reduction target for the fuel consumption. However,
the electricity consumption increased in 2021 because
of the normalization of office operations after the
vaccination. We strike to achieve the target in 2022 by
reducing the electricity utilization or revising the target
reduction as appropriate.

Water conservation

Water conservation is an important policy tool to help
accomplish the objectives on the Hong Kong
government’s Total Water Management Strategy 2019
issued by the development Bureau and Water Supplies
Department. This Strategy has laid out the goal to
reduce the average fresh water pcc (litre per capita per
day) by 10% by 2030 at the earliest using 2016 as the
base year.

Our water consumption is minimal and we will consider
means to improve the efficiency of water. We
implement 4Rs rules to reduce water consumption and
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance has been closely
monitored. However, the water consumption increased
during the year because of the normalization of office
operations after the vaccination. A 3% to 5% reduction
to the previous average consumption level will be
targeted by 2030. We will implement as necessary to
further save water, such as:

o Reduce spillage by keeping the water level in toilet
tanks to a minimum.

o Place posters and other publicity materials in
prominent places to encourage water conservation.

We are not engaged in any manufacture of goods, and
there is no packaging material used for finished
products
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3.3 Green Office 33 BN

331 EEBE

3.3.1 Management policy

We are committed to sustainability by seeking to reduce
the environmental impact of our operations, with a
particular focus on the reduction of greenhouse gas
emissions and conservation of resources. We
incorporate environmental responsibility into our daily
operations and will implement green operation and
green procurement policies to reduce the environmental
impact and consumption of natural resources. We will
continue to study the possible ways to reduce
emissions, including the use of electric vehicles as
replacement. We encourage the 4Rs rule which refers
to reduce, reuse, recycle and replace as mentioned in
3.2.1. The 4Rs rule can minimize pollution and reduce
the use of resources.

Environmental management system

To properly manage the office and effectively
implement environmental policies, we actively
implement an environmental management system, in an
effort to ensure compliance with relevant regulations,
improve environmental performance, and prevent
environmental pollution.

Promoting environmental protection

The Group encourages all employees to participate in
different kinds of recycling activities and minimizing the
use of natural resources. We also update our
management and staff on the ESG requirements
through attending online training sessions as provided
by the HKEX and other related bodies.

During the year, there is no significant impact on the
environment and natural resources from the operations.
Employees are well-informed of our green measures
through the regular circulation of relevant information
to advocate their awareness and behavioral change.

Externally, we strive to cooperate with relevant
environmental and societal bodies and consider
donations as necessary.
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3.3.4 Ecological conservation

We support environmental efforts, including protecting
biodiversity, reducing ecological footprint and raising
awareness of climate change. The Group has
implemented various measures to protect water
resources and reduce waste. The Group will continue to
encourage green office and resources conservation in
order to contribute to the sustainable development of
mankind.

3.4 Measures for Climate Change
3.4.1 Management policy

Nowadays, climate change is a major environmental
challenge and climate change poses both risks and
opportunities for business, now and in the future. As
the global temperature rises, increasingly common
natural disasters are disrupting ecosystems and human
health, causing unanticipated business losses, and
threatening assets and infrastructure. In response,
governments and private sector entities are considering
a range of options for reducing global emissions, which
could result in disruptive changes across economic
sectors and regions in the near term.

Limiting temperature rises to 1.5 degrees Celsius above
pre-industrial levels is the best chance of avoiding the
most dangerous impacts of climate change. The
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change warned
that the world must nearly reduce its carbon dioxide
emissions by 50% by 2030 and reach net-zero carbon
emission by 2050 to limit temperature rises to this level.
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China aims to achieve carbon neutrality goal in 2060.
The Hong Kong Government strives to achieve carbon
neutrality before 2050 and issued the Climate Action
Plan in October of 2021 to set out more proactive
strategies and measures to reduce carbon emissions.
The Chief Executive of the HKSAR announced in the
2020 Policy Address that Hong Kong would strive to
achieve carbon neutrality before 2050. In 2019,
electricity generation was the largest source of carbon
emissions, accounting for about two-thirds (66%) of
the total emissions in Hong Kong, followed by transport
(about 18%), waste (about 7%, mainly from landfills),
other end-use of fuel (about 5%), and industrial
processes and product use (about 4%). It is an
extremely challenging target to achieve carbon
neutrality before 2050, i.e. in less than 30 years. Hong
Kong has to formulate a proactive, forward-looking and
targeted decarbonization strategy, and strive to
encourage the participation of the whole community.

According to the HKEX's guide on how to prepare an
ESG report, climate change-related impacts present
financial risks to many sectors. As such, we need to
consider their actions today in light of how financial
risks from climate change may evolve in the future. We
will apply the specific guideline for asset owners under
the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD) recommendations which will be effective from
2025, and will review the climate change risk
continuously.

Likewise, the Group is concerned about climate change
issues and strives to take measures to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions from business operations in
order to combat climate change. To illustrate our strong
determination, we have disposed of the yacht in
November 2021 which could reduce the fuel
consumption and the direct emission under Scope 1.
Secondly, we plan to reduce emissions from business
travel, included under Scope-3 indirect emission that
occurs in a company’s value chain.
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3.4.2

We will carry out local procurement, use
environment-friendly materials to reduce the carbon
footprint and impact on climate change of our
operations, so as to create an ideal living place for our
next generation.

Monitoring climate-related financial disclosures
of our investments

According to the specific guideline for asset owners
under the TCFD recommendations, asset owners bear
the potential transition and physical risks to which their
investments are exposed. Similarly, asset owners can
benefit from the potential returns on the investment
opportunities associated with climate change.

Because asset owners sit at the top of the investment
chain, they have an important role to play in influencing
the organisations in which they invest to provide better
climate-related financial disclosures. Disclosure of
climate-related risks and opportunities by asset owners
allows beneficiaries and other audiences to assess the
asset owner’s investment considerations and approach
to climate change. This may include an assessment of
the asset owner’s integration of appropriate
climate-related financial information into its investment
activities in various ways, for example, in setting
investment strategy, making new investment decisions,
and managing its existing portfolio. Encouraging
climate-related financial disclosures by asset owners,
beneficiaries and other stakeholders will be in a position
to better understand exposures to climate-related risks
and opportunities. Further, climate-related financial
disclosures by asset owners may encourage better
disclosures across the investment chain from asset
owners to asset managers to underlying companies thus
enabling all organisations and individuals to make
better-informed investment decisions.
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Thus, climate change is often cited as a leading ESG
priority for investors and due consideration should be
made to the climate-related risks including transition
risks and physical risks. We will emphasize more about
these risks when investing. As an investment company,
we support the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD") and have prepared our first set of
TCFD report in this annual report on pages 127 to 149.
A better understanding of financial implications
associated with climate change can facilitate the
investors to channel investment to sustainable and
resilient solutions, opportunities, and business models.
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SECTION 4 OUR PEOPLE FAEH BPOAA

4.1 Talent Management 41 AT ER
4.1.1 Management policy 411 BEBER

We understand that it is essential to have a high-quality
and moral team of management to maintain
operational efficiency and improve overall performance
Our business success depends on our ability to attract,
retain and cultivate employees. Each employee is an
important family member to us and we strive to provide
employees with a work-life balance environment, in the
hope that they can firmly stand with the Group to
create the future together. The Group is committed to
creating a fair and comfortable working environment.

Management policies have been formulated in strict
compliance with relevant labour laws in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, including the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China. They cover relevant local laws and regulations
in respect of employees’ compensation, recruitment,
promotion, dismissal, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination, benefits
and welfare, so as to fully protect and respect
employees’ rights and create an ideal workplace for
employees.
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4.1.2

4.1.3

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group complied with applicable
local laws and regulations on compensation,
recruitment, promotion, dismissal, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, benefits and welfare, child labour
and forced labour. There were no major employee or
labour disputes that disrupted our normal business
operations, nor were we subject to any punishment for
violating applicable laws and regulations.

Recruitment and remuneration

Human resources are the valuable assets and
indispensable to our Company. We are committed to
providing our staff a fair and equitable workplace where
they are treated equally in every aspect of their work or
employment and the staff is motivated to grow with our
Company and meet our company goals to strive for the
excellence in the industry.

We adopt fair and non-discriminatory recruitment
policies and comply with the requirements of the
ordinances of the Anti-discrimination and Personal Data
and Privacy aiming to recruit the appropriate and
qualified staff to grow with the Company.

Based on the market rates and benefits, we offer
reasonable and competitive salary to attract candidates
to join us and retain them. We strictly adhere to the
statutory requirements as stated in the relevant
employment laws, ensuring the rights and interests of
our staff being properly protected.

412 BFEEER
FRN-AEBEETHERNTH  BE -
Z8 fBE ILERHE BRH RBE
e 2ol RER BF EL
KBS THE B AR LR
Bl e AARWEFEEFLENEKR
BREXLSHFZ  TEERAEREE
EIREITE °

413 BER FM
ANEBEREARBTASIRHNEES
E - ZMB IR REILRHE—FEAQF
RNIER TIESFT - B ST TIE
SMESEXMAEZEFEEF I
HMEE TEHAQN R HRBRKE @ LER
ARRABERITHEFEREBHEZ o

AR A 2 S A0 IR AR 1 RO 1R B B
R WE T RIRAR R BIA R ABA B #Y
REMLGHNESR  EEHSAEN
AERBIRERAKARKE -

BAPIARIE T 5 B B K AR AT iR
HEEMEHRF NOFHB - ARSIK
BEMAXRRRLREE T - TP
KRBT EBREBENEEER R
ARBBTHENMESEEIZER

=
# -

cEawErdcnsasrss | —t=—554% |EIIR



C VIR VERNRY VRNNNY VAR VANV VA" "I
ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE-HERERRS

4.1.4

4.1.6

Equal opportunity and diversity

The Group is committed to creating an inclusive and
non-discriminatory workplace, providing equal
opportunities for all employees regardless of gender,
age, nationality, religion, sexual orientation or physical
fitness, and giving fair consideration to all job

applicants.

We follow the principles of fairness, impartiality and
openness to recruit and promote the right employees
and never discriminate against job applicants on the
grounds of race, colour, social status, place of birth,
nationality, religion, disability, gender, sexual
orientation, trade union membership, political position
or age. We prohibit the employment of child labour in

accordance with relevant standards and regulations.

Protection of rights and interests

We continually review the employee compensation
policy to ensure that employee compensation can be in
tandem with the Company’s performance. We believe
that employees should be rewarded fairly based on
their contribution, and provide attractive compensation
and benefits to employees. In addition, each employee
may resign by giving a reasonable period’s notice.

The Code of Practice Human Resources Management
issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for
Personal Data has also been observed when handling
employment-related data.

Employee communication

Cohesion among employees is a key driving force for
corporate development, and good communication
channels with employees serve as the cornerstone of
the Group’s operations. Accordingly, we set up
channels to collect employees’ opinions, actively listen
to their opinions and suggestions, and take timely
measures in response to matters of high concern to
employees to protect their interests.

ANA4ATFERERZS T

4.1.5
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4.1.7 Staff composition 417 ETHR
As at 31 December 2021, we employed a total of 21 =25 = &2ar = B[S Sr—[a) 2 ZNN
staff, and all of them are located in Hong Kong. AAXEA2IZEER  BHEHURE
o
Senior Staff General Staff
SHRET —RET
No. of staff No. of staff
ETEH ETEH
41-50 41-505% = = 1 8
50 or above 507530 A | 8 100 12 92
Total BET 8 100 13 100
Senior Staff General Staff
SHRET —®RET
By gender No. of staff No. of staff
] EI&H BEI®H
Female 7 2 25 7 54
Male B 6 75 6 46
Total @Etr 8 100 13 100
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As at 31 December 2020, we employed a total of 23 N== e FISEE—H - 7N
staff, and all of them are located in Hong Kong. RIEXEMA23ZEE  HEHURSE
B e
Senior Staff General Staff
SiRET —®RET
No. of staff No. of staff
EI&H EIEE
41-50 41-505% 1 13 2 13
50 or above 505k LA | 7 87 13 87
Total @t 8 100 15 100
Senior Staff General Staff
ERET —®RET
By gender No. of staff No. of staff
4 5l BETIHH BIHH
Female 7% 2 25 7 47
Male B 6 75 8 53
Total BEr 8 100 15 100
4.1.8 During the year ended 31 December 2021, the turnover I8 HE_E_—Ft+t_-_A=+—HItF
rate was 8.7%. B mEAEE8T% -
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4.2.1 Management policy

According to the World Health Organisation, health is
defined as a state of complete physical, mental and
social well-being and not merely the absence of disease
or infirmity. Along this direction, we implement various
policies and measures to achieve the mission of creating
a safe and healthy workplace for the employees. We
value safety and take effective measures to reduce
safety risks. In accordance with laws and regulations,
we have formulated a set of appropriate safety
management programs, including hazard identification
and risk assessment and control, in order to reduce and
control potential occupational safety and health hazards
in business operations. We strictly abide by the relevant
safety laws and regulations. Fire sprinklers, fire hoses
and fire extinguishers are maintained in the office,
whereas the fire extinguishers are checked and
examined annually by approved suppliers and
contractors with the issuance of relevant certificates
stipulating that they are complying with the Fire Service
(Installations and Equipment) Regulations. During the
year, there was no case of the prosecution against the
Group for violation of occupational safety-related laws.
Good housekeeping is essential to the maintenance of a
healthy workplace to the employees. Maintaining good
air circulation, we employ registered company to carry
out monthly maintenance service and annual
sterilization to the air conditioners in order to prevent
any possible diseases to be transmitted through the air
conditioning system.

During the year, in view of the potential hazard arising
from the epidemic or pandemic of infectious diseases,
the Company has taken precautionary measures and
stayed alert against the disease. We have requested our
colleagues to maintain good personal hygiene.

We update and alert employees to keep good personal
hygiene and provide extra clean environment, sufficient
anti-epidemic supplies to them and the assigned
personnel for regularly disinfecting the common areas
when there was a disease outbreak.
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4.2.2

423

We implemented special procedures during the annual
general meeting in 2021 to protect all attending
shareholders, staffs and other stakeholders from the
risk of infection of the novel coronavirus disease
including social distancing and temperature checking.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group complied with the
regulatory requirements for workplace safety in Hong
Kong. We have not suffered any accidents or
complaints that have a material adverse effect on our
operations, nor were we subject to any punishment for
violating applicable laws and regulations.

During the past three years, there was no work-related
fatalities occurred.

4.3 Training and Development

4.3.1

Management policy

We firmly trust that continuous learning and
development can help staff to utilize fully their potential
and it is important to their future career development
and also supports the growth and strengthens the
competitiveness. The department heads will provide on
the job trainings to their new staff and help them to
grasp the job knowledge and duties. The job
performance appraisal will be conducted for the new
staff during the probation for assessing their
performance. Training programs will be planned for the
new staff against the performance assessment.

We provide continuous learning to the staff and
encourage them to attend online trainings or
workshops as provided by external training
organisations. To maintain our staff’s professionalism
and career development, we support our staff for their
continuous professional trainings.
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4.3.2

433

Orientation training

We provide all new staff with the orientation program
that will help them to know the Company culture, its
rules and regulations and their benefits. In order to
speed up the adaptation of new employees, they are
provided with induction training from the human
resources department when joining the Group. The
training is mainly to help them understand our
development history, corporate culture, business
philosophy, rules and regulations. On the job training
will be provided to our staff during the term of their
employment.

ESG training and other trainings

To enhance the ESG reporting, training is essential. We
mainly use the available training resources/materials
offered by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

433a ESG training

During the year, our ESG Working Group adopted
active learning through the study of useful
materials, publications, books. Books included the
authoritative book, written by Mr. Bill Gates in
2021 which sets out a wide-ranging, practical plan
for how the world can get to zero greenhouse gas
emissions in time to avoid a climate catastrophe
and his book title is “How to avoid climate
disaster”. We bought it and encouraged the staff
to borrow and read it. We also circulated useful
publications, including guidance issued from the
HKEX, and the Carbon Footprint Management
Toolkit for Sustainable Low-Carbon Living issued
by City University of Hong Kong. To obtain a
better understanding of the existing ESG
performance, we also provided copies of CG
Watch 2020-Future promise-Aligning governance
and ESG in Asia, Special report — May 2021 as
issued by CLSA to our ESG working group
members.
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Sustainable development goals report for 2021
and the International Energy Agency (IEA) report
issued in May 2021 on net zero energy system by
2050 were also circulated. The latter one aims to
ensure stable and affordable energy supplies,
provide universal energy access, and enable robust
economic growth. It sets out a cost-effective and
economically productive pathway, resulting in a
clean, dynamic and resilient energy economy
dominated by renewables like solar and wind
instead of fossil fuels. The report also examines
key uncertainties, such as the roles of bioenergy,
carbon capture and behavioral changes in reaching
net zero. These reports could give insights to our
team.

A continuing in-house training system has been
established and implemented. We encouraged our
ESG working group members and key staff to
grasp a better understanding of the ESG and keep
ourselves abreast of the new knowledge and latest
requirements.

43.3b Other trainings

Apart from orientation training, we also provide
corporate culture training and professional skills
training to enhance professionalism and achieve
continuous improvement with us. We assess the
training requirements of our staff regularly and
encourage them to receive continuous training in
their respective professions.

During the year, our Company Secretary and Chief
Financial Officer received continuous training from
their respective affiliated professional bodies and
we have also selected suitable study programs
with particular emphasis on portfolio management
and financial analysis to our senior management.
All these illustrate our strong commitment to staff
training.
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4.3.4The percentages of full-time employees trained in 2021 434 —E-—EFEZFHYEBETADEET :
are as follows:

Percentage (%)

Bak
By gender 1 B 21 55
Male B 73
Female 24 27
By employee category RESERZS
Management EIE[E 64
Senior staff =ARET 18
General staff —RET 18
The percentages of full-time employees trained in 2020 —ECEFRIEBEIE LT :

are as follows:

Percentage (%)

BSk
By gender =i B8 5%
Male = 77
Female 4 23
By employee category RESERES
Management EIE[E 54
Senior staff =SRET 15
General staff —RET 31
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4.3.5The average training hours completed per full-time 435 ZE - —FBE2BEETHZIIN
employee in 2021 are as follows: FHREAT

Average hours

per employee

BEESFHRH

By gender 4 B &l 55

Male B 22.47

Female g 26.17

By employee category EESERZ S

Management EIEE 27.96

Senior staff SHREBT 29.25

General staff —RET 2
The average training hours completed per full-time —_E_EFEEEREETKIIN
employee in 2020 are as follows: SEEREMT

Average hours

per employee

B8R ESTFIINE
By gender i B &l 55
Male B 26.45
Female pegca 16.33
By employee category EESERZ S
Management EEE 36.21
Senior staff SHRE T 19.00
General staff —RET 5.50
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4.4 Labour Standards

4.41

442

Management policy and compliance with laws
and regulations

We prohibit the employment of child labour or forced
labour. In order to avoid illegal employment of child
labour or forced labour, we will check the identity
documents of job applicants to ensure that the
information on age and nationality provided by them is
correct. We recruit workers in accordance with the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance and the Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China and prohibit any form
of forced labour and forced overtime work. During the
reporting period, there were no cases of child labour or
forced labour.

Strictly prohibiting child labour and forced labour, the
Group complies with relevant national laws and
regulations. We carefully check applicants’ ID cards to
ensure that the information provided is consistent with
his/her documents. If any child labour case is
discovered, we stop the child worker from working
immediately and bring him/her to his/her parents or
guardians as soon as possible. During the year, we were
not aware of any non-compliance of relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us relating
to child or forced labour.
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SECTION 5 OUR OPERATIONS EoH RMMEE
5.1 Product Responsibility 5.1 EmER
5.1.1 Management Policy 5.1.1 BEEBE

The Company is an investment company and does not
produce nor sell any products. Product responsibility is
found to be irrelevant to us.

ARARR/RERF > TEETTHEE
FHER EmBTEBMER -

5.2 Supply Chain Management HEEEEE

5.2.1 Management policy 5.2.1 BEEBEK
Although we are not engaged in the commerce, BERMIEETFTERAZEMERE
manufacturing or trading businesses that demand deep BEENEE £EXEZESHEE BR
involvement in supply chain management, we still P78 38 2 = BHER KRG IR EE
emphasize a strong and close relationship with our key BVERMBEYNBEER  UEREETE
suppliers and service providers to sustain a stable supply Rk rEsE - HIER KRB IREREE
chain. Suppliers and service providers are also the AEBEXBEEEPHNEZNHIEHA
important stakeholders in the Group’s business value F o oHEBFMEBTEE FEEER
chain and are closely connected with us. They mainly BESEL AT IREEEANTRE
consist of securities brokers, investment management ARSI MR - PR BEREFZY
companies, and other services providers. We maintain B MRRIER -
close contact with them to ensure good communication.

5.2.2 Green procurement 522 B

We review the needs and stock availability before a
request for purchasing. We prefer to purchase in bulk
to minimize resources utilization in transportation and
packaging wastes generated in transportation.

We also commit to engaging its supply chain to reduce
its Scope-3 indirect emissions by choosing suppliers of
purchased goods and services that have set their own
carbon reduction goal as far as possible.

Regarding supplier and service providers selection, staffs
are encouraged to select green suppliers (e.g. certified
with ISO 14001, other green awards related to energy
saving).
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53 RES
53.1 EEHE

5.3 Anti-corruption
5.3.1 Management policy

53.2

53.3

53.4

We are committed to ensuring that no bribes, payment
or advantages are solicited from or given or offered to
any persons, whether in the public or private sector, for
any purpose, which can ensure the strict adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations. We regard honesty,
integrity, and fair play as the core values that must be
upheld by our colleagues at all times.

We establish an internal control system, and will
strengthen the internal supervision, risk control and
anti-corruption management to ensure that our
business procedures are in compliance with local and
international laws on the prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering. We also
regularly review our operational procedures and
guidelines to enhance internal controls and compliance
review.

Our employees maintain business integrity in good
faith, and we have also implemented improper conduct
reporting procedures.

Improper conduct reporting

Internally, our employees are encouraged to report
improper conduct, fraud and other irregularities. The
investigation results will be submitted to our
management in the case of fraud involving non-senior
management personnel, or to the Board of Directors
and the Audit Committee in the case of fraud involving
senior management personnel.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year, the Group abided by all relevant laws
and regulations on the prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Neither the Group nor any
of its employees were prosecuted for or convicted of
corruption.

Anti-corruption training

During the year, the Personnel and Administration
department has arranged useful updates of the relevant
laws and regulations to all of the staff.

THEBRBRASBEASRAN | —8=
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SECTION 6 OUR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

6.1

6.2

Management policy

We strive to build a sustainable community by supporting
local initiatives that create effective and lasting benefits to
the community through corporate philanthropy, establishing
community partnerships, and encouraging our employees to
participate in volunteer work. We contribute to the
communities in which we operate and our policy will be
communicated to the Company’s stakeholders, including our
employees, shareholders, and business partners. We are
committed to the continual development of this policy and its
integration into our operations.

Focus areas of contribution
We strive to be a part of our communities, to serve and
contribute by promoting corporate social responsibility. Our
focus areas of community involvement are education, poverty
alleviation, health, the elderly and culture. We contribute to
Non-Government Organisations providing welfare,
educational, recreational and cultural services to the
community. We will also actively encourage staff to volunteer
their time and core skills to benefit local communities. It gives
employees the chance to
find out more about the
social and environmental
issues and reinforce our
corporate values.

Fofl RPN ESE
6.1

EEEER

RMBACLEEEE BUHBAEY
HEE BB T2MEBETE A
BEEERTEAF NS ED  Bh
BRUBEZRLE RMATALERE
MEELEBRORE  TEReERES
BEREEEEBHEERNNFSABEEEER
P B - RPIE NN TH = &2 BU%
EHEBALED -

ErERER

ARRREERBAELRN—DF &
HECEHSEEERRBREMLRE - &
MHEZ2ENEIHER/HNE KB &
B~ &E R o TR IR BT B & AF b
R AHREHERN - #E  RERXE
PR o F AP I A AE S ok B B T MR 1E 7 HH i
B AR D eE - B R AR - HfI4
TEERE THREZHERRERE K

BRI EEEE -

During the year, our CEQ, Dr Jim
Yeung, has provided volunteer
services to Manchester Metropolitan
University Alumni Chapter Hong Kong
Limited as pro-bono director and
participated in their annual cocktail
reception for Hong Kong alumni in
November 2021.

FA - ARAITERAR G ERE LT
EEEZN S M AManchester
Metropolitan University Alumni
Chapter Hong Kong Limited$Z 4% 7%
R - WRER T - —F+— A8
MOBERREEMEEE
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Our Chairman, Dr. Lam Man Chan, had been the school manager of

Po Leung Kuk Lam Man Chan English Primary School and he is keen

on the philanthropy.

RRABEFEMXEREL/REBMXEENBHRE T —HHA
RNEEFE -

We view education as the cornerstone for maintaining BMRARERERTERRERERNE
growth and development in our communities. Our goal is to Ao BMMEERIRHIFTLERALLN
support youths to become outstanding leaders and more A FEENEXRRERIEE B
importantly lifelong learners who embrace positive social XEBENTEEE BMNEFE &
values. Our Chairman is a philanthropist and contributes his ER RAEERKRILBI - BAEMX
time and donations to education. He had acted as the school BNERE  ZREENREBENEEE
manager of Lam Man Chan Primary School, which aims to B e 1 R ERBRE

reinforce student’s capacity for independent learning as well
as bi-literacy.
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIALAND HEBIFABE 8RS8 RE
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE OF THE HONG KONG EIlYRB XD

STOCK EXCHANGE

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements BHo :  BFEWERE

ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report

EBBRRCGRIE - Description AIRIEE -HER
HERERJ{EES) Wi ERBEHEHBAER

Part B: Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BER S : sHFEIH B E

Governance Structure A statement from the Board containing the following Section 1.1 Message from the
Ea A elements: Chairman
HEFSHLMER EPHATIAR 1180 =+ BE
(i) adisclosure of the Board's oversight of ESG issues; Section 1.2 Our Corporate
FEEESHRE HEREARAZTENEE Values
(i)  the Board’s ESG management approach and F1.258 B EEE
strategy, including the process used to evaluate, Section 1.3  Basis for
prioritize and manage material ESG-related issues Preparation of the
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and Report

EXgNRE HSRERERSTHERE B8F F136 REARENEE
- BRI R EREENRE LB REAME
BEE (BREHEETAEBOAR) NBIE &
(iii) how the Board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.
EZeMRRE @ NERRHEERRIEE -
I AR FE H An{e] A B 1T A RS R RAAE o
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX
ERBXCGREA
HEREARSEESD

Description

i B

Referring section
in this ESG Report
AIRIR-HER
ERmEHBAES

Reporting Principles
B ¥ R A

A description of, or an explanation on, the application of Section 1.5 Reporting Principles
the following Reporting Principles in the preparation of ~ 51.580 B ¥ R 81

the ESG report:

Tt Sk R AR AR (R 3R

Section 2.3 Materiality
R kERBRERFWOMERT Assessment

5 (E R R A : %2 360 B2
Section 2.4  Stakeholders
Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process Engagement

to identify and the

criteria for the selection of material 5$2.480 Flz=rEREE 2

ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement is

conducted, a descr
identified, and the

iption of significant stakeholders
process and results of the issuer’s

stakeholder engagement.

BB BE  HEREAREEEE  OBANEERH -

HERERERDN
ETROESE
T AT AR E 2

BREFEZEEERZMER  (NVNE
E%ﬂ%i%ﬂmﬁ%%%ﬁm&%
B ) 38 72 K A5

Quantitative: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools

used, and source o

f conversion factors used, for the

reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where

applicable) should

be disclosed.

Bt FREERSKNE RER (WMER) FTANEE -
FE - BERR/SFAEIANER  URAERNER

AR H RIRE T

B °

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report
any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any other

relevant factors aff

ecting a meaningful comparison.

Reporting Boundary
P ¥ &0

—BUME BOARERER HeREARSPRELS

HDERAREVEENEET S EMAEMTEEERLR

HMEREE 3 -

A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the Section 1.4 Reporting Period and
ESG report and describing the process used to identify Boundary

which entities or operations are included in the ESG 14508 WEE M EE

report. If there is a

change in the scope, the issuer should

explain the difference and reason for the change.

RIBEE R
E3 { EE 3TN
BREFFHRE -

ERMERERSE - M PERB
RE HENERRESNBE - FE
BOANEBEBRIRAZENESHRA -
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Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions CHEm [ TETHHER IR

ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report

EBBIAORIE - Description AIRIE-HER
HEREGHERESD) Mt ERREHBES

Part C: “Comply or explain” Provisions
CHD : [FTETHREBREIEX

A. Environmental

A IRIB
Aspect A1: Emissions
[BHEA1 : B
General Disclosure Information on: Section 3.1  Environmental
— MR E (@) the policies; and Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 253.140 RIBEME
have a significant impact on the issuer 3.1.1 Management
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges policy
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and LG
non-hazardous waste. 3.1.3 Energy
FRABERIRERBHEN MK BER conservation
BEBERVNELSH £ B
(@) BE: Kk 3.1.4 Waste reduction
(b) BTHETAGBEATENMEBERER W REY)
&L o 3.1.5 Compliance with
relevant laws and
Note:  Air emissions include NOx, SOx, and other pollutants regulations
regulated under national laws and regulations. BT MERERER
et - BERFEMEFEALLY  RalREMIBFERE
RREEFEY -
Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane,
nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons and
sulphur hexafluoride.
BEREBEE St Bk iR SfRtE
¥~ 2R R ANBACH
Hazardous wastes are those defined by national
regulations.
BEREEYEBERRAMRESE
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 3.1.6 Emissions
BB AR IRAL HE ) T8 2R K 4B R BE BB - B
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ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBBZAORIE Description ARE-HER
HEREREREES) Mk ERREHEES

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse 3.1.6 Emissions
A S A5 B 12 A 2 gas emissions (in tons) and, where appropriate, intensity BET Y

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
B (FE) ReREE (HE2) REREHRE (AN
)R (ER) B (MU SER B - SER 6

) o

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where 3.1.7 Environmental

R R B BUEIRAT.3 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, performance of
per facility). hazardous waste
FEABEEEEYRE (UEE) R (WER) %E (118 BEREDNIRE
NEBEEEN  BHERXMETHE) ° E 3]

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons) and, where 3.1.7 Environmental

FARE BUIEIZA1.4 appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, performance of
per facility). hazardous waste
FrEEEEREYEE (ETE) k (ER) % E (10 BEEEDHIRE
NEBESEN  SHERMETHE) - =~

KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to  3.1.8 Target for

RA SR B B IZAT1 5 achieve them. reduction of
R PRI B E B R R R ESE & B IR AT EREREY A5 emissions
B o BB B R

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 3.1.6 Emissions

RS AR B IZAT .6 are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set BER Y

and steps taken to achieve them.
MRIEEENBEREYN 7L - KA ET L8R
BEEERAED B EAEKEA LR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2: BRER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including Section 3.2  Resources

—RIEE energy, water and other raw materials. Conservation

BERERER(BREER  KREMERTE) K - 553.280 BIRIRE

Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, 3.2.1 Management
transportation, in buildings, electronic equipment, etc. policy
HiE: BARAURREE  #fF 2% BF ETTFREF- S
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ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBBEZAORIE Description ARE-HER
HEREREEES) il BERmEHBAES
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.  3.2.2 Energy and
A S A5 A 12 A2 1 electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity resource
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). consumptions
REREDOEER/AAELR(NE - A @R for the Group
BUATETERAE) REE (NMAGEEEM - 87 AEENRREE
JMEETHE) © IR B RE
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of 3.2.2 Energy and
RA SR B FEIEA2.2 production volume, per facility). resource
BEKEREE(MAGESEMN  BERXBTE) ° consumptions for
the Group
REENRREE
RO 7%
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 3.2.3 Energy use
B8 4B IR 1RA2.3 steps taken to achieve them. efficiency target
BRIV RER N E B ERAEDE LB ZAEK RV EERE
) P8 -
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 3.2.4 Water conservation
RABR A WIETEA2 .4 water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set B 49 A 7K

and steps taken to achieve them.
K EUGE A KR SR BERERE - AR FTET S #) A K
e B IR R AEDELB ZAERIMAZER o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in N/A
B 82 45 WFEIZA2.5 tons) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit i B
produced.

X mAAEEMHNEE (UEAE) X (WER) 8%
EBAhE -
Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3: RIERXARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on  Section 3.3  Green Office

— R R the environment and natural resources. %63.350 FETA
WIRBITAHRBERRABEREXNERTZEHECR -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Section 3.3  Green Office

R 52 B B IEAS. 1 environment and natural resources and the actions taken 3.3 FQER /N

to manage them.
M EBEHHBRBERRAERNEAZEREENE
BERTZENTH -
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ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

BRBRACORE - Description
HERERBEES) il

Referring section
in this ESG Report
AIRIR-HER
ERmEHBAES

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHEA4 : RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant Section 3.4  Measures for

— R E climate-related issues which have impacted, and those Climate Change
which may impact, the issuer. 3.4 Rz (LB FE iE
BRILEHERRAIEEHBETAEEFZENEARRK
MHEAEENBE -

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which Section 3.4 Measures for

AR A FEIZEAL 1 have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, Climate Change

and the actions taken to manage them

£53.480 RIRZ(CHFEIE

HAEERAEEHETAELZENERARIZABE

" REHTE -
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VR VAT VT VT VI VT Vi

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARS

ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX

Referring section
in this ESG Report

EBBEZAORIE Description ARE-HER
HEREREREES) Mk ERREHEES
B. Social
B. #&
Employment and Labour Practices
EBEREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1: E®
General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.1  Talent
— AR (a) the policies; and Management
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that £4.1£0 AA E IR
have a significant impact on the issuer 4.1.1 Management
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and policy
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal & TE B 2R
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other 4.1.2 Compliance with
benefits and welfare. laws and
AT RE BEREMN  TERS - - REHA- - F£ regulations
e Zilk REKEUAREMFRREND : BFRRER
(@) BUR: & 413 Recruitment and
(b) BFHETABEAZENMBBEEEER remuneration
&K o RS K 35 B
4.1.4 Equal opportunity
and diversity
TE#E RE Tt
4.1.5 Protection of rights
and interests
REN N i IR &
4.1.6 Employee
communication
HESHNER
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for 4.1.7 Staff composition
8§ 45 A5 1B 1 .1 example, full- or part-time), age group and geographical 8 TR

region.
RIS BEEE (2B RE) - Ficln Mt S
DHIEERE -
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ERBXCGREA

HERERREESD

Description
Ei::pud

Referring section
in this ESG Report
AIRIR-HER
ERmEHBAES

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 4.1.8 During the year
8§ 45 51281 .2 geographical region. ended 31
ZHR - FRARNRMESSHNEERKLE - December 2021,
the turnover rate
was 8.7%.
BE_T_—F
+=ZA=+—8
IFFE  REER
8.7% °
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BHB2: FRHERZE
General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.2  Health and Safety
—RIE (@) the policies; and EV Y- BEmEETR
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 4.2.1 Management
have a significant impact on the issuer policy
relating to providing a safe working environment and BB R
protecting employees from occupational hazards. 4.2.2 Compliance with
FARELZ 2 TEREIMRERE#RBELLEEN laws and
(@ BX: R requlations
(b) BTHBITAGEATENMEBERESR BPERER
B E R} o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 423 During the past
8 42 4 U5 1ZB2.1 each of the past three years including the reporting year three years, there
BE=ZF (BRERFE)FFRAITHRNHABRLL X - was no work-related
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. fatalities
B S AR WIE1ZB2.2 ETERETEDE - occurred.
BE=ZFWERATT
HUEW o
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  4.2.1 Management
A 8245 5 1ER2.3 adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. policy
RIRPTER AN B R R RE LT 250 - ARMBERITRER BRI

T o
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ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report

EBBEZAORIE Description ARE-HER
HERERFERS) il ERBESEHAELS

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EMEB3 : #EREA

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills Section 4.3  Training and

— R E for discharging duties at work. Description of training Development
activities. F4.36) I &R
FARATEERTIERENMBELRENBER - it 4.3.1 Management
BEAES policy

EIRBR
Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include 432 Orientation
internal and external courses paid by the employer. training
ffet - BIlEEREE - AIRFEHEENENAIEDRE - AR
4.3.3 ESG training and

other trainings
RE - -HE8hER
Al R E A 5 F

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 4.3.4 Percentage of

7 1 48 45 12B3.1 employee category (e.g. senior management, middle full-time employee
management). trained in 2021
RUERRESR(NEREEE FREEE) SN T —F2I =z
ZIEEBDL ° BRETHD

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by  4.3.5 Average training

8 §E 45 M FE1ZB3.2 gender and employee category. hours per employee
BRUFINEEERNED  BRESTAIIN TR - in 2021

T —FEHRE
B X FHRE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EHB4 : & T %8|

General Disclosure Information on: Section 4.4  Labour Standards
— R (@) the policies; and B4.4505 25 T A8
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 4.4.1 Management policy
have a significant impact on the issuer and compliance
relating to preventing child and forced labour. with laws and
BRI IEE TR H4 T regulations
(@ HR: Rk EIRER RESR
(b) BTHETAGEATENMEBERER BIER
BB # -

CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021



A A W W N h b w

ESG Reporting
Guide of HKEX
ERBXCGREA
HEREARSEESD

Description
Ei::pud

Referring section
in this ESG Report
AIRIR-HER
ERmEHBAES

KPI B4.1
8§ 45 A5 12B4 1

Description of measures to review employment practices Section 4.4  Labour Standards

to avoid child and forced labour. FE4.480 AT |
R BB A MEEABEE T RAHE T - 4.4.1 Management policy

and compliance
with laws and
regulations
EBBRNETE
EDrs)

KPI B4.2
AR AE W IE1RB4.2

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices Section 4.4  Labour Standards

when discovered.

$4.480 A T g

W ERRERBNE BB RBILAT R ZE -

Operating Practices

EERA

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

JEHEBS - BT E

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of Section 5.2 Supply Chain

—MRIEE the supply chain. Management
ERHEENRRE R ERABREE - SE5.280 HrEgEER
52.1 Management
policy
EER
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 5.2.2 Green procurement
B 5248 IR 12851 minEE D HEEREE - FERE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 52.2 Green procurement
8 $E 45 M FE1ZB5.2 number of suppliers where the practices are being 4B IREE
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
LA R HERNED  mERITTABENNHE
A URBEERITRERTE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 5.2.2 Green procurement
% 8 48 W45 1£B5.3 and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are FERE

implemented and monitored.

i E RAER RS ERANRR LS RARNED

AR BB TT RERTTE
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ESG Reporting Referring section

Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBBEZAORIE Description ARE-HER
HEREREREES) Mk ERREHEES

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 5.2.2 Green procurement
A $ 48 W F512B5.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, R ERE

and how they are implemented and monitored.
R EBREHNERREESARREMSRRENOED
AR ERABIT RERTTE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmMEE

General Disclosure Information on: Section 5 Our Operations
— R E (a) the policies; and 580 TP E
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that Section 5.1  Product
have a significant impact on the issuer Responsibility
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and ~ £5.1¢f EmEE

privacy matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

BRAMERERMBRGNEEREZE  BES  BHEL

BEEUARBRITEN
(@ BR: Rk
(b) ETHETABERTZENHEBERER
BB R o

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to Section 5.1 Product

7 2 48 45 12B6. 1 recalls for safety and health reasons. Responsibility
EERCEXEMERTER2EREEAMADKLN 516 EmAE
AL e

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints Section 5.1  Product

742 45 M FE 15B6.2 received and how they are dealt with. Responsibility
EREERERERBHORFBEUARER X - 5180 EmAE

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Section 5.1  Product

48 42 45 B 12B6.3 protecting intellectual property rights. Responsibility
fi it BB A S N AR PR R EE AR AR 1B B » 5. 16 EmEAE

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Section 5.1 Product

B §2 48 5 15B6.4 procedures. Responsibility
it B AR N M AR Fr e E5.160 EmAE

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy Section 5.1  Product

8 2 45 BB 15B6.5 policies, and how they are implemented and monitored. Responsibility
MU EEERRERLEBEE  AREERITRESR F5.16 EmAME
Tk e
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Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBBZAORIE Description ARE-HER
HEREREEES) il ERmEHBAES

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBmEB7 : RES

General Disclosure Information on: Section 5.3  Anti-corruption
— i (@) the policies; and 265.350 RES
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 5.3.1 Management
have a significant impact on the issuer policy
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money BEIBER
laundering. 5.3.3 Compliance with
BN LR 9R BEFREREN laws and
(@ BXR: Rk regulations
(b) BTFTHETAGEATENHEBERESR BFRBER
B o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 5.3.3 Compliance with
8 82 48 UIE 1EB 7.1 practices brought against the issuer or its employees laws and
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the regulations
cases. BFRRER

RBEEHAHBTARERRBRHIYEEENE)TFHA
RN E MFRER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  5.3.2 Improper conduct

B4 48 IR 1FB7.2 procedures, and how they are implemented and reporting
monitored. TEITREBR
M EE R R BRIEF  URBARITRERFE -

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 534 Anti—corruption

A 8248 W5 1EB7.3 directors and staff. training
fMmEERETRHENREFHE - REFE
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ESG Reporting Referring section
Guide of HKEX in this ESG Report
EBBEZAORIE Description ARE-HER
HEREREEES) il BERmEHBAES
Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the Section 6 Our Community
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TASKFORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURES (“TCFD”) REPORT

5.1 +H B4 B 35 B8 T{F/4H

1. INTRODUCTION TO THE TCFD

1.1

1.2

The Company’s Board of Directors believes that Climate
Change is a systemic risk and seeks to manage that risk
on behalf of its shareholders. The value of the Company
is directly related to the underlying investments. The
focus on Climate Change risk mitigation plays an
important role in how investments are managed across
all asset classes. The Board is supportive of initiatives
that contribute towards mitigating Climate Change risk
on the Company’s investments. As such, we would
consider the recommendations of the Taskforce on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD). This is the
Company's first disclosure under the framework with
reference to the specific guidance for asset owners. We
will consider to report the carbon footprints of major
investments subject to the data availability.

The TCFD developed four recommendations on
climate-related financial disclosures that are applicable
to organisations across sectors and jurisdictions,
structured around the following thematic areas:

€ Governance: The company’s governance around
climate-related risks and opportunities.

€ Strategy: The actual and potential impacts of
climate-related risks and opportunities on the
company’s business, strategy, and financial
planning, where such information is material.

€ Risk Management: The processes used by the
company to identify, assess, and manage climate-
related risks.

€ Metrics and Targets: The metrics and targets
used to assess and manage relevant
climate-related risks and opportunities.

( [TCFD] ) /&

1. TCFDES AT

1.1

1.2
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1.3

1.4

TCFD is an initiative that will be in the long-term
financial interest of stakeholders, as the Company
believes greater disclosure will lead to better investment
decisions. The Company will engage with its Investment
Manager to support such initiatives.

We support the TCFD recommendations as the optimal
framework to describe and communicate the steps the
Company is taking to manage climate-related risks and
may incorporate climate risk management into
investment processes. Investors are expected to concern
about carbon emission and started to focus on the
companies’ pledging of net-zero emission targets and
their steps to meet these targets. It is in the interest of
the industry that the market is able to effectively price
climate- related risks.

According to an ESG research paper issued by MSCI,
namely Foundations of ESG Investing: How ESG Affects
Equity Valuation, Risk, and Performance, both
stock-specific risk measures show lower idiosyncratic
risk for high ESG-rated companies, in particular with
respect to tail risks. We believe TCFD- aligned disclosure
could enhance the interest of our shareholders and
stakeholders and such disclosures will also be
mandatory by the end of 2025.

1.3
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2.

GOVERNANCE

a) Describe the board’s oversight of climate-related
risks and opportunities

2.1.1 Overall responsibility for managing the Company
lies with the Board of Directors.

2.1.2Investment Strategy is built upon a set of its
investment beliefs. One of the typical beliefs is:
‘Environmental (including Climate Change risks),
Social and Governance risks are all important
factors in investment decision making.’

2.1.3Under the direction of the Executive Committee,
our ESG Working Group is responsible for the
preparation of the TCFD- aligned disclosure. The
Investment Committee will include climate change
as a standing item on the agendas.

2.1.4Climate-related risks can be managed by
incorporating such factors in the investment
decision process and we will support the goals of
the Paris Agreement by transitioning over time the
investment approach to one that is aligned with
achieving the goals of limiting global temperature
increases to well below 2 degrees this century.

2.1.5The Investment Committee can consider select
climate-related metrics that best align with the
objectives of the Board in future, if necessary.
During the year, our Risk Management Working
Group has also included Climate Change risks into
our risk register as a principal risk.
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b) Describe management’s role in assessing and
managing climate related risks and opportunities

2.2.1Three of the committees/working group in the
management structure will be specifically
responsible for assessing and managing
climate-related risks. They are:

a) Investment Committee for investment
monitoring.

b)  Executive Committee for policy and covenant
monitoring.

¢)  Risk Management Working Group, for the
risk management framework and risk
register.

The ESG Working Group currently supports the
preparation of the TCFD aligned disclosure work.

2.2.2The Company will work with its Investment
Manager to be cognisant of climate change risks
and opportunities within the investment processes
and manage climate-related risks as applied to the
assets of the Company.
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3.

STRATEGY

a) Describe the climate-related risks and
opportunities the organisation has identified over
the short, medium and long-term

3.1.1As a diversified asset owner, the range of

climate-related risks and opportunities is

multifarious and constantly evolving. A summary

of typical risk factors is presented in Table 1

B

A

a)

BRI - P RH
51 1 B L B B B8

BVIERETZLRENEERSA

A RUEEBERR KB I EE
Z T BT E L - HAMNEAKRER
ERWER TR -

below.
Table 1 Typical Risk Factors
F1 BBNEKREZE
Short & Medium Term Long Term
SR R ER R H =B
Risks 1)  Carbon prices 1) Resource scarcity
B IRER BREZ
2)  Technological change 2)  Extreme weather events
R R PN L
3)  Policy tightening 3)  Sealevel rise
BRI EE G E B
4)  Consumer preferences
HEERL
Asset class 1)  Listed equities 1) Infrastructure
BERR THRE ki
2)  Growth assets 2)  Property
BREEE i E
3)  Energy-intensive industry 3)  Agriculture
BEREERER RE
4)  Carbon-intensive corporates 4)  Commodities
R ER R NG
5) Insurance
R
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312 B HERBEREESRIRE (LK

3.1.2Short-term risks include stock price movements

resulting from increased regulation to address
climate change. Medium-term risks include policy
and technology leading to changes in consumer
behaviour and therefore purchasing decisions —
the uptake in electric vehicles is an example of
this. Long-term risks include physical damages to
real assets and resource availability. Examples
would include increase sea level rise for coastal
infrastructure assets or supply chain impacts for
companies as a result of severe weather events.

3.1.3The Company considers Climate Change risk as a

‘Financially Material’ factor. As such, the Company
believes that Climate Change risk could have an
impact on the value of the investments and
therefore needs to be understood and managed.
For example, Climate Change risk could affect:

a) The creditworthiness of the issuers of the
fixed income assets in which the Company
invests.

b)  The dividend-paying capability, and therefore
the share prices, of investees.

3.1.4The Company has exposure to equities in the

portfolio of which pose differing climate risks
across different time horizons.

3.1.5Physical climate risks arise from both gradual

changes in climatic conditions and extreme
weather events that can result in asset damage,
resource depletion and trade disruption.
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3.1.6 Transition risks occur in the process of moving to

a low-carbon economy. These include policy
changes (e.g. abrupt imposition of carbon taxes or
emission limits), reputational impacts, risk of
stranded assets, as well as shifts in market
preferences, norms and technology.

3.1.7 Mitigating Climate Change risk can also offer

attractive investment opportunities, and the
Company believes that investing in such
opportunities is consistent with our investment
objectives. The Company encourages the further
development of asset classes that are supportive
of achieving the well below 2°C target.

In November 2021, Hang Seng Indexes Company
Limited further supported the sustainable
investment strategies by launching the HSI ESG
Screened Index and HSI Low Carbon Index.
Environmental, social and governance (‘ESG’)
issues, particularly climate change, have become
increasingly important in recent years, with
international developments such as the tabling of
new climate commitments at the recent 26th UN
Climate Change Conference of the Parties
("COP26’) accelerating awareness of the pressing
need to make sustainability a central element of
personal, business and national policy
decision-making, including those related to
investment.

The HSI ESG Screened Index applies key ESG
principles to the Hang Seng Index (‘HSI"). The HSI
constituents are screened for their compliance
with the United Nations Global Compact ('UNGC")
Principles and for involvement in controversial
product. After these two screenings, the
remaining constituents will be re-weighed based
on their ESG Risk Ratings. From 7 December 2018,
i.e. the base date of the index, to 29 October
2021, the annualized return of HSI ESG Screened
Index outperformed the HSI by 2.1 percentage
points.
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The HSI Low Carbon Index is also based on the
HSI, with constituent weightings adjusted
according to constituents’ carbon emissions
intensity. Constituents with lower carbon
emissions intensities will enjoy an increased
weighting in the Index, and vice versa. As of
September 2021, the weighted average carbon
intensity of the HSI Low Carbon Index was 66.7 %
lower compared with the HSI.

Describe the impact of climate-related risks and
opportunities on the organisation’s business,
strategy and financial planning

B EMBEBIABIE AER -
A 32 & A 0 B O BR B 508 2 98 B
ERIR D BB EE - B HEpRoe &
BRENKOBRBEASEE &
ZHRBECRE R SRS KA
WHAEEE BE-_FT—_—FN
H - BRI BRI R it
FHEREREE6.7%

3.2.1The Company will tilt away from companies that

are carbon-intensive or own fossil fuel reserves,
and tilts towards companies that generate green
revenues as far as possible.

3.2.2The Company plans to develop climate-related

metrics together with its Investment Manager in
future if necessary.
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Describe the resilience of the organisation’s
strategy, taking into consideration different
climate-related scenarios, including a 2°C or lower
scenario

3.3.1Scenarios analysis can be used to estimate the

financial impact on the portfolio assets and
develop our investment strategies with regard to
climate-related risks. However, the effectiveness
of such analysis will be much dependent on the
data availability of our investee companies.

3.3.2Subject to the data availability, various climate

scenario analysis tools and climate stress tests
methodologies may be employed to develop and
refine its top-down climate scenario testing.

3.3.3Translating the climate scenario analysis into an

investment strategy is a challenge because there is
a wide range of plausible climate scenarios; the
probability of any given scenario is hard to
determine, and; the best performing sectors and
asset classes in a 2°C scenario tend to be the
worst performers in a 4°C and vice versa. The
Turquoise and Brown scenarios as referred in the
HKEX guidance on Climate Disclosures issued in
November 2021 may be considered.
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT 4. EERE

a) Describe the organisation’s process for identifying a)  HEMLHERE R KT R R
and assessing climate-related risks ot

4.1.1Engagement activities are encouraged with 411 AR ERRARRKREEOE
investee companies to promote better disclosure BEREBEMNNER - RS 8IEA
and practices related to climate-related risks to FM - EEREHRDGETE
improve data availability and this can increase FED - BRI EMANERRE
asset owners’ ability to assess climate-related SEEEE AT L REARRERR
risks. HBe ] o

4.1.2 Any portfolio changes that take place as a result 4.1.2 tE ] B SR A5 48 B8 BB 5T (il T 41T
of the climate-change risk assessment should not MIEREETHT S KAR
be permanent. This normally represents part of an He—MRms - B2 EFHET
ongoing process — companies divested from the ETHiEE — AR A HMENRF
Company could be repurchased if their RENRREAIHEERAE - A
sustainability planning improves, and other AR g EMNEE - MARE
companies divested if they do not deliver on RGN RARBSEREE -
pledges.
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Describe the organisation’s process for managing
climate-related risks

4.2.1 Asset owners should describe how they consider

the positioning of their portfolio with respect to
the transition to a lower carbon energy supply
production and use. This could include explaining
how asset owners actively manage their portfolio’s
positioning relative to this transition. The
Company will plan to consider the impact of
climate-related risk on its exposure in the portfolio
as appropriate.

4.2.2 The Company noted that there will be meaningful

challenges with calculating the carbon footprint of
its portfolio, such as coverage and methodological
limitations.

4.2.3The prioritisation of risks is determined based on

the level of the perceived threat to the Company
which, for climate-related risk, will likely depend
on analyses including Climate Scenario Analysis.
By reference to the HKEX's guidance on Climate
Disclosures, the Company’s approach to climate
risk management will be further developed in
future, as necessary.

4.2.4The Company expects all investee companies to

manage material risks, including climate change,
and the Company believes that climate risk
management can be meaningfully improved
through stewardship activities by investors in the
long run.
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c¢)  Describe how processes for identifying, assessing
and managing climate-related risks are integrated

into the organisation’s overall risk management

4.3.1 Climate Change risk is explicitly identified as a
principal risk on the Company’s Risk Register, as
overseen by the risk management working group
and reported to the Board. However, there is an
acknowledgement that it is difficult to measure
with a single number.

4.3.2 The Company delegates authority to its Investment
Committee to identify, assess and monitor the
climate-related risks of the investment portfolio
together with our Investment Manager.
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5.

METRICS AND TARGETS

Disclose the metrics used by the organisation to
assess climate-related risks and opportunities in
line with its strategy and risk management process

5.1.1The carbon risk metrics can be typically analysed

as below:

° Portfolio carbon footprints

o weight of portfolios invested in companies
with fossil fuel reserves

o weight of portfolios invested in companies
with thermal coal reserves

o weight of portfolios invested in companies
whose products and services include clean
technology

As at 31 December 2021, we had no investments
in oil companies with fossil fuel reserves, nor
investments in coal mining companies with
thermal coal reserves. In our portfolio as at year
end date, the top three companies in generating
aggregate GHG emissions were Tencent, China
Life and China Mobile.

The major reason was their respective heavy uses
of electricity in their operations, for example, the
data centers of Tencent. Regarding emission
intensity, we noted that there was no consistency
in the measurement unit, resulting in difficulties
of making comparison. Generally, there were
three common measurement units in use and they
were per floor area, employee and revenue,
respectively.
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5.1.2 N EHERERE - ARRRE

5.1.2In considering the carbon risk metrics, the Company

remained aware of the limitations of the available
metrics and the underlying datasets. There were certain
data gaps caused by companies failing to report GHG
data, or by companies reporting unreliable GHG data.
The results should, therefore, be treated with some
degree of caution.

b) Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2, and if appropriate,
Scope 3 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, and the
related risks

BRI IREEE SRS E
BRI o D ARWEBERER

BEEUE - SERE T EAERE
ik BRETHEEED - AtE
HEBSERRE —TIRENEE -

5.2.1 Carbon footprints of an investment portfolio
usually include the emission intensity of individual
investees, if data are available.

5.2.2Based on the latest ESG/Sustainability reports
(mainly of their financial year 2020) of our top 10
portfolio companies, we have prepared a summary
of their carbon footprints. To facilitate a review
on the GHG emissions of the significant
investments holding the Group, relevant
information was extracted from such ESG reports
and provided below for easy reference. The
Company has not independently verified the
information published by such listed issuers. All
figures cited below are approximate ones only.
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Top 10 Equity Investments held by the Group

FEE+KIRE
2020 2019
2°8f 2395
Scope 1 Scope 2 Scope 1 Scope 2
Direct Indirect Emission Direct Indirect Emission
Company Name  Stock Code Note Emission Emission Intensity Emission Emission Intensity
e RpKH i HE1ERER HELHRER HiEE SE1EEHR EELHEHR HiaE
(intC0.¢) (intCO.e) (intCO.e) (intC0.e) (intC0.¢) (intC0.e)
(E-RE SRR (WsERE cRkE RcRER (wicEhee
S e A e e =22
g=it) g=it) g=it) g=it) gEit) Eit)
1 China Oriented ~ 1871.HK 5.2.2.1 3,878 878 0.07 3,688 880 0.05
Bl per thousand per thousand
RMB_Revenge RMB Revenug
STTARE STTARE
BEE(.07 BEE0.05
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0237 0232
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5221 China Oriented International Holdings Limited 5221 BREBERERQE

("China Oriented”) (stock code: 1871.HK)
Energy consumption in China Oriented’s daily
operations mainly include petrol, diesel (direct
energy) and purchased electricity (indirect energy).
During the year 2020, China Oriented’s total
energy consumption was 54,844.98 GJ, with an
energy consumption intensity of 0.81 GJ per
thousand RMB revenue. Among them, the direct
energy consumption was 51,160.65 GJ, and
indirect energy consumption was 3,684.33 GJ.

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions generated by
China Oriented included direct emissions from
fuel combustion of vehicles (Scope 1) and indirect
emissions from the use of electricity (Scope 2).
During the year 2020, the China Oriented’s total
GHG emissions amounted to 4,757.00 tCO,e,
suggesting an increase of approximately 4.00% as
compared to 2019, and the emission intensity was
0.07 tCO,e per thousand RMB revenue.

Fuel consumption of vehicles was a major
component of China Oriented’s energy
consumption. They adopted various measures to
save energy and improve efficiency. They carried
out training, publicity and education activities
related to energy conservation and emission
reduction from time to time to enhance the
awareness of all employees and encourage energy
conservation and emission reduction in day-to-day
operations. At the same time, they strived to
create a green, environment-friendly, low-carbon
and energy-saving office environment.
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5222 Miji International Holdings Limited (“Miji

International”) (stock code: 1715.HK)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Miji
International’s activities contributed to 179.2
tonnes (2019: 229.3 tonnes) (0.01 tCO,/m?) of
carbon dioxide equivalent (carbon dioxide,
methane, nitrous oxide and hydrofluorocarbons)
emission. Same as the previous two years, Miji
International did not receive any complaints or
warnings on greenhouse gas emissions during the
year ended 31 December 2020, and targeted to
achieve the same performance in 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Miji
International consumed 173,890 kWh of electricity
(766.0 kWh per employee) in connection with its
daily business operations, which contributed to
141.1 tonnes (2019: 162.7 tonnes) of carbon
dioxide equivalent emissions. To reduce the
emissions arising from electricity consumption,
Miji International encouraged its employees to
switch off the lights and other electricity
appliances when they left the office and
production premises. Miji International targeted
that its electricity consumption in 2021 would not
exceed the level consumed during the year ended
31 December 2020.

5222 K

BEREREGRAT ([REE
B2 1) (Bﬁh}ﬁ%ﬁ 1 1715.HK)
HE-_ZT-_TF+_A=+—
HIEFE @ ABBEBENEEEL
179.2W8 (—Z— A4 : 229.30F)
HFFEH KOOI —_AILIRE S
(Z&|fehix - B - Eltma Rk
SEFACY) BEAL - BB 1T R @
FEAR - KEEBREE=Z
—EFE+_A=+—HILEFEYL
EEER T REBE R EMIE R
FEL A -T - —FEHEN%
FHEIXR -

HE-_Z-_ZF+_A=1+—H
LEFE - ﬂ?zlli%a%% giE
JH#E173,890F L & (&1L
lEB766. 0T L&) » EAE141.1
W (ZZE—NF 16270 =&
fbixE 28R - BRI EERE
EENER - KEEREBIES
BEMAEREESEEESE
BREMERE - KBEBEBER=Z
Z—FWMEER  ENHERETE
BERBEE-ZZE=-ZF+=A
=t FEMHEREE -

cEowerdensasnas | —e-—554 [JEEIR



TASKFORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (“TCFD") REPORT
RIFHEBEYHEREIFINA ([TCFD] ) HE

5223 Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”) (stock 5223 BERIERAER AT (THE L)

code: 0700.HK)

In 2020, Tencent determined the energy
management baseline in every office building in
Shenzhen, formulated the energy consumption
assessment benchmark and adopted energy-saving
measures such as “management + technology +
policy”. They also controlled the cost by switching
off various energy consumption systems (such as
air conditioning, lighting and direct drinking water
systems) from back-end or onsite, optimising
energy-saving management for our operations
usage, and conducting technological
transformation to improve the air conditioning
terminals and AHU control system of Tencent
Binhai Towers. The cost saved in 2020 was
approximately RMB13 million, which was more
than 10 million kWh based on the average
electricity price. As a result, their facility
management team had won the Tencent's annual
cost savings award. They would formulate the
Tencent’s energy management standards based
on these measures, and implement and
continuously optimise the energy management
practices in various regions.
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5224

5225

Huasheng International Holdings Limited
(“Huasheng International”) (stock code: 1323.HK)
Significant emissions from Huasheng
International’s business operation were mainly
related to petrol consumption for Huasheng -owned
vehicles. Other emission sources included
electricity consumption, freshwater processing,
sewage treatment, paper disposed at landfill and

business air travel.

In 2020, Huasheng International produced a total
of approximately 13,586 tonnes of carbon
emissions (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide). Huasheng International is aware of
significant emissions generated from petrol
consumption for their vehicles. The increased use
of liquefied natural gas (LNG) powered vehicles
will improve air quality and public health as well
as reducing carbon dioxide emissions. Through
continuous efforts in reducing petrol consumption,
Huasheng International believed that it would lead
to a dwindling level of GHG emission and progress
towards a better stewardship in ESG management.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
("HKEX") (stock code: 0388.HK)

HKEX knew that responsible corporate practices,
and the small changes that they all made as
individuals, could make a big difference to their
business and our communities. As they were
gradually making progress on reducing energy
use, HKEX commissioned an external review of
their TKO Data Centre energy management to
assess their energy usage and generated ideas for
more efficient hosting services, further developing
our operations and customer support best
practices. In the UK, the LME office premise had
used 100% renewable energy since March as part
of their continued efforts to reduce its carbon
footprint.
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5.2.26

In addition, starting in 2020, HKEX offset the
indirect GHG emissions arising from their business
air travel by purchasing internationally -recognised
carbon credits. Apart from carbon offsetting, they
also encouraged their staff to utilise the
communication and collaboration solutions from
the Future Workspace to reduce travel.

China Life Insurance Company Limited (“China
Life”) (stock code: 2628.HK)

China Life committed to low carbon operations
and strived to reduce the impact of resource
consumption on the environment. In accordance
with the principle of “classified recycling,
centralized storage and unified treatment”, China
Life properly handled all kinds of waste, harnesses
the industry features of financial institutions,
supports the national green modernization drive
and promotes the environment-friendly way of
production and life style. In 2020, they donated
100 used office computers to No. 6 Town of
Ulangab in Inner Mongolia and Qianling Village of
Linxia in Gansu Province to help solve the shortage
of computers at local schools and reduce resource
consumption.

In 2020, China Life carried out active efforts to
conserve energy and reduce emissions, using a
total of 851,772.14 kWh new energy such as
wind power, solar power and hydropower, which
reduced greenhouse gas emissions nearly 720
tons of CO, equivalent.
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5227 China Mobile Limited (“China Mobile”) (stock

code: 0941.HK)

China Mobile kept improving energy efficiency
and reduced greenhouse gas emissions by
promoting the management cycle of goal setting,
strict monitoring, and continuous improvement
during the whole process of production and
operation.

They compiled the 5G energy-saving technology
white paper, which clarifies the directions for
introducing energy-saving technologies in the next
three years, and guides the industry to
continuously reduce energy consumption of
equipment. At the same time, they prepared the
5G energy-saving technology manual to give
relevant suggestions for different scenarios.

They continued to promote the application of 4G
energy saving technology such as symbol power
saving, channel shutdown, carrier wave shutdown,
and small base station shutdown technologies.
They piloted new energy saving technologies such
as sub-frame silent mode, channel silent mode,
light sleep mode, and deep sleep mode of 5G
network.

They launched the campaigns of National Energy
Efficiency Promotion Week and National
Low-carbon Day, and call on stakeholders such as
employees and customers to join in the energy
conservation and low-carbon initiatives on Weibo
and WeChat. Also, they organized activities such
as carbon emissions calculation, expert interviews,
and green life photography exhibitions to promote
best practices and spread the idea of low-carbon
and green development.
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5228 AREEE (TR (BRBAR

5228 Xiaomi Corporation (“Xiaomi”) (stock code:

1810.HK)

Xiaomi adopted measures such as energy saving,
water conservation and resource recovery in order
to continuously improve and enhance their
resource management. They also increased the
use of renewable energy and applied sustainability
concepts across product life cycles. And they were
fully committed to working with various partners
to explore and develop a business model for
sustainable growth.

Based on their operating model, energy was
mainly consumed at offices, Mi Homes and data
centers. They took a series of measures, including
energy efficiency improvement and the use of
renewable energy, to reduce carbon emissions in
these areas.

Total Comprehensive Energy Consumption for 2020
was 48,608.45 MWh.

Total GHG Emissions for 2020 was 31,347.06t.
Due to its operational features, the significant air
emissions of Xiaomi were GHG emissions arising
mainly from natural gas and electricity generated
from fossil fuels.
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c¢)  Disclose the targets used by the organisation to
manage climate-related risks and opportunities
and performance against targets

5.3.1The ability for diversified investors to set
meaningful climate targets is inhibited by the
paucity in credible methodologies and data
currently available.

5.3.2 In the long run, the Company plans to set
meaningful targets if possible, that are in line with
the Company’s investment and climate objectives,
including to align its portfolio with achieving the
goals of the Paris Agreement. The Company will
consider in future, the additional analysis and
recognised industry frameworks which allow it to
set meaningful climate-related targets.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
EERTHRERZEE

DR. LAM MAN CHAN
MIRE L

CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Lam Man Chan, aged 72, joined the Company on 11 February 2014. He has over 30 years of management
experience and in depth knowledge of the electronics industry. He was graduated from the World Electric Engineering
College in 1969. Dr. Lam holds an honorary degree of Doctor of Science from Armstrong University in the United States.
He is currently the chairman of Ngai Lik Group Limited (“Ngai Lik”). He is responsible for the formulation of corporate
strategy and overall direction of Ngai Lik. Dr. Lam has invested in different industries, including securities broking, finance
business, hotel development, motor cycle business and properties investment. He was granted the Young Industrialist
Awards of Hong Kong in 1994 and the World Outstanding Chinese Award in 2005. He was once a standing committee
member of Qingyuan Region Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC") and a
committee member of Guangdong Provincial Committee and Dongguan Regional Committee of CPPCC. Dr. Lam had
been the chairman and executive director of Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (now known as Yuan Heng Gas Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 332), a company publicly listed on the Stock Exchange, during the period from 1992 to 2010. Dr.
Lam is the husband of Ms. Ting Lai Ling who is the Project and Administration General Manager of the Company.
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MR. LEE KWOK LEUNG
FERLE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung, aged 68, joined the Company on 8 May 2014, He is a licensed person to carry out type 9 (asset
management) and Type 4 (Advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO since 2003 and 2018 respectively. He
has over 15 years of relevant experience by serving as one of the responsible officers of Silverstone Investments Limited
(“Silverstone”) for Type 9 (asset management) for the period from 2003 to December 2020 and licensed representative
for Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activity under SFO for the period from 2018 to December 2020. Silverstone
has been the investment manager of the Company for the period from 2015 to December 2020 providing investment
advisory services to and managing investment portfolios for professional/institutional investors mainly in Greater China
and Hong Kong to the Company.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

EERTHRABAZERE

Mr. Lee is currently the responsible officer of Success Advance
Investments Limited (“Success Advance”) for Type 9 (asset
management) and the licensed representative for Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activity under SFO. Success Advance is the
new investment manager of the Company since 25 January 2021
which carries out Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activity under SFO providing investment
advisory services to and managing investment portfolios for
professional/institutional investors mainly in Greater China and
Hong Kong to the Company.

Mr. Lee has strong experience in portfolio construction, portfolio
management, risk assessment and investment due diligence.
Furthermore, Mr. Lee had been the Managing Director of BOCI
Direct Management Limited from 1992 to 1999. In this private
equity fund, he was responsible for the overall management of the
fund.

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of
Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1076), a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), since 2013.

Mr. Lee is currently an executive director of Mayer Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 1116) (“Mayer Holdings”). a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and was appointed as the Chairman of
the Board of Mayer Holdings on 22 February 2022.

Mr. Lee was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
of EV Dynamics (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 476) with effect
from 16 November 2021, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee had once been an independent non-executive director of
Guoan International Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 143) and Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (stock code: G11), for the period from 1
June 2020 to 27 August 2021.
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DR. NG CHI YEUNG SIMON
REEHBL

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung Simon, aged 64, joined the Company on 26 November 2013. He is also the Chairman of Nomination
Committee and a member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Ng is a solicitor in
Hong Kong (non-practising). He has been a consultant of Rowland Chow, Chan & Company, a law firm in Hong Kong,
for the period from 2003 to 31 December 2020.

Dr. Ng holds a bachelor’s of laws degree from the Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in 1986, a
master degree in Chinese and Comparative Law from the City University of Hong Kong in 1997 and a doctoral degree in
worship studies from the Robert Webber Institute for Worship Studies in June 2013.

Dr. Ng had been a Part-time Lecturer of the Department of Professional Legal Education of The University of Hong Kong
for the period from September 2013 to December 2020.

Dr. Ng had once been an independent non-executive director of a publicly listed company in Hong Kong, namely, Century
Sage Scientific Holdings Limited (stock code: 1450) for the period from 13 June 2014 to 29 September 2021.

Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-executive director of a publicly listed company in Hong Kong, namely, Winfair
Investment Company Limited (stock code: 287).

BYFIHUTES
RESML 64 R -T-ZF+—A-TAAMAFAR - RAAFTAAREZZEGIAURSAAELRE
REMESERE - RMLABTERHCERE) - HA_TT=FE_F_FET_A=1+-RPPAEH X
TR AT RO RS -

2

= o
(=)
B

SH LR — NN FEBFEBEManchester Metropolitan University) K22+ 247 - R — NNt FEBFBR T AZFEH
EREBEZEZBETEM - RN ZZE-ZF RN ABFERFEMEFH T EE(Robert Webber Institute for Worship
Studies)S=RFE1{F B4 -

RIBE-—ZFNAZ_ZT_ZFST_AHH RELEREBRBEAEFEEER I REIHEM -

RZE—MENA+=ZHE_ZT-—FAA-+ABHE SR TEAE-—HEAQARLTAF  BIHLERERER
NEN(RDRER - 1450) 2 B JEHITES -

RELBAR—HBBRARLTRA AKEEEXEERAR (BMOAR  287) 2 BIUIFFAITES -

wEowerdcneasnan | —e=—554 [KEEIR



BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
EERTHRABAZERE

MR. TAM YUK SANG, SAMMY
B4 4

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang Sammy, aged 58, joined the Company on 31 December 2013. He is also the Chairman of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member of Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Tam graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Accountancy, and holds a Master of Science degree in Professional
Accountancy from University of London. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Tam is currently the director of Essentack Limited, a corporate strategy and management advisory company. Mr. Tam
is currently an independent non-executive director of Huajin International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2738), a
company whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

BYFHUTES
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Florence Ng, aged 58, joined the Company on 31 December 2013. Ms. Ng is also a member of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Ms. Ng is a solicitor qualified in Hong Kong since
2011, focused in corporate and mergers and acquisitions transactions. Ms. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
San Francisco State University, a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London and a Master of Laws degree
from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms. Ng also holds a Fintech Programme certificate from the University of Oxford.

Ms. Ng has been appointed as an executive director of Mega Matrix Corp. (formerly known as: AeroCentury Corp.)
(trading symbol: MTMT), a Delaware corporation listed in the New York Stock Exchange, United States since 1 October
2021, and currently serves as its chief operating officer since 25 March 2022. Ms. Ng served as its vice president of
operations and business development from 1 November 2021 to 25 March 2022, and its general counsel from 20
September 2021 to 1 November 2021.

BYFHTES
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
ESRTHERZEE

DR. YEUNG CHEUK KWONG
BEXEL

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong, CFA, aged 59, joined the Company on 7 July 2014. Dr. Yeung holds a Doctor degree of
Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong with a distinction award, a Master degree in Finance from
the City University of Hong Kong with distinction, a Bachelor degree of Science (Economics) from the University of
London, a Master degree in Corporate and Financial Law from the University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor degree of
Laws from Manchester Metropolitan University.

Dr. Yeung is an adjunct professor of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law, the PRC. He also published a paper in
Asia-Pacific Journal of Financial Studies in 2018.

THAR
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Dr. Yeung has held senior management positions for about 30
years. He has extensive experiences and knowledge in mergers and
acquisitions, corporate finance, investment in various asset classes,
such as fixed income securities and equities, as well as tax
planning.

Dr. Yeung is a CFA charterholder of the CFA Institute, a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, and an Associate Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong has become a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Securities & Investment Institute since 22 November
2021.

Dr. Yeung was one of the licensed representatives of Silverstone
Investments Limited which carries our type 9 (asset management)
and Type 4 (Advising on Securities) regulated activities under SFO
for period from 2016 to January 2021. Dr. Yeung is currently one
of the licensed representatives of Success Advance Investments
Limited, a corporation licensed by SFC to carry on Type 9 (asset
management) and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities under the SFO since 24 May 2021.

Dr. Yeung was the executive director and chief financial officer of
Great Wall Electronic International Limited (now known as EPI
(Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 689) from 1995 to 2000, a
company publicly listed on the Stock Exchange. He was also the
executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary of
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (now known as Yuan Heng Gas
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 332) from 2000 to 2010, a company
publicly listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Yeung is currently a deputy managing director and Group CFO
of Ngai Lik Group Limited, a private company controlled by Dr.
Lam Man Chan, Chairman and the deemed substantial shareholder
of the Company. Dr. Yeung is a non-executive director of China
Oriented International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1871) a
company publicly listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Yeung has
been an executive committee member of Hong Kong Electronics
Industry Council under the Federation of Hong Kong Industries
since 2015. In January 2021, he was appointed as a pro-bono
director of Manchester Metropolitan University Chapter Hong
Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRES

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is principally engaged in investment in equity and
debt securities of listed and unlisted companies. During the year,
there were no significant changes to the Group's principal
activities. Further discussion and analysis of these activities
including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the group and an indication of likely future developments in the
group’s business can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 14 to 19 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this Report of Directors.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND RESTRICTIONS
China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an
investment company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) under
Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company may change
the Company’s investment objectives and policies from time to
time. The Company is also subject to the investment restrictions
set forth in the Listing Rules and its Bye-laws.

Details of the major investment objectives, policies and restrictions
of the Company are set out as below:

The Company is an investment company with the primary objective
of achieving capital appreciation as well as generating income
from interests and dividends by investing in listed and unlisted
companies in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Hong
Kong and Macau (collectively, “Greater China”), United States,
Asia-Pacific Region and any other appropriate countries/capital
markets as the Board may direct from time to time. The Company
also intends to invest in unlisted companies with the potential to
seek a listing on the Stock Exchange or any overseas stock
exchanges.
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The Group has adopted a diversified investment approach and has REBCERZ LR E T WIEINT T4
added the use of derivatives for the purposes of hedging the ERZER UEHIgE484 - s T BB
investment portfolio. Below are the key details of policies: T

Investment will normally be made in the form of equity
securities, equity related securities (including but not limited
to convertible notes, preference shares, options, warrants
and/or futures contracts) and/or debt securities in listed and
unlisted companies in Greater China, United States,
Asia-Pacific Region and any other appropriate countries/
capital markets engaged in different industries including (but
not limited to) manufacturing, bio-technology, services,
telecommunication, technology, infrastructure,
pharmaceuticals and property sectors, aiming at maintaining
a balance in the Company’s exposure to different industry
sectors.

The Group may, where the Board considers appropriate, use
or invest in derivatives for hedging purposes. In this
connection, the Group may buy, write or sell warrants,
covered warrants, options or traded options on its underlying
investments. The Group may also short-sell shares, buy or sell
futures contracts on stock indices or shares (if any) as a
means to hedge against adverse price movements of its
investments.

When considering and identifying potential investments, the
Group will seek to identify entities with a record of positive
profit growth, strong management, and high levels of
technical expertise, and research and development
capabilities as well as management commitment to long-term
growth. At the same time, the Group is also flexible in
considering investments in companies or other entities which
are considered by the Board and the investment manager of
the Company as being special or in recovery situations with
return potential.

As to the period of investment, the investments are usually
intended to be held for capital appreciation. The actual
holding period will depend on the return from investment
and the potential of listing on the Stock Exchange or other
internationally recognized stock exchanges. The Group will,
however, realise investments where the Board believes the
realization would be in the best interests of the Group or
where the terms on which such realisation can be made are
considered by the Board as particularly favorable to the
Group.
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The above investment policies may be amended by the Board from
time to time without approval by the Company’s shareholders, but
subject to the investment restrictions as set forth below or as
applicable to the Company from time to time.

Under the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules relating to the listing of
investment companies, certain restrictions on investments are
imposed on the Company. The Board has resolved that the
Company may not:

1. either itself or through its wholly-owned subsidiaries or in
conjunction with any connected person take legal, or
effective, management control of underlying investments and
in no event will the Company itself or through its
wholly-owned subsidiaries own or control more than 30% (or
such other percentage as may from time to time be specified
in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers as being
the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in such company or other entity, except in
relation to such wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company;

2. invest in any company or entity other than wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company if such investment will result in
more than 20% of the net asset value of the Company
(calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Company’s Bye-laws) being invested in such company or
entity as at the date the investment is made;

3. without the prior approval of the Shareholders by ordinary
resolution, buy or sell commodities, commodity contracts or
precious metals, except that the Group may purchase and sell
future contracts on stock indices and securities which are
secured by commodities or precious metals; and

4. invest more than 30% of the Company’s assets outside
Greater China to the extent of contravening its primary
objective of achieving capital appreciation by investing in
listed and unlisted companies in Greater China.

The Company has to comply with investment restrictions 1 and 2
above at all times while it remains listed as an investment company
under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Investment restriction 3 can
be changed subject to Shareholders’ approval and investment
restriction 4 can be changed without Shareholders’ approval.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 178 to 259. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements and restated and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 260. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of its own
shares during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Donations to charitable organisation by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$45,000.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 182.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no distributable
reserve because its accumulated losses amounted to be about
HK$338.4 million.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the below section headed “Share Options” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme"”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 31 July 2012 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors of the Company and
eligible participants (as defined in the Scheme), and will expire on
30 July 2022.

Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to directors of the
Company (including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors) and its eligible participants to subscribe
for shares in the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme was 4,609,646, representing
approximately 3.26% of the issued shares of the Company as at
the date of the 2021 Annual Report.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in time without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors in excess of
0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders.
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Options granted must be taken up on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of HK$1.00 for the options
granted. Options may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant of the share option to a period to be notified by the Board to
each grantee at the time of making such offer, which shall not
expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and will not be less than the higher of (a) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant.

SHARE OPTIONS

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to, inter alias,
directors and employees of the Company or its subsidiaries and
other participants to subscribe for shares in the Company.

During the year, 956,490 share options lapsed and no share
options were granted, exercised and cancelled. There are 885,638
shares options outstanding as at 31 December 2021.
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The movements of the options granted under the Scheme during BIEZAERE ZEBRERFRAARR —_ZE = —

the year and as at 31 December 2021 were as follows: FH-_A=Z+t—BZ#HUT :
No. of share options
BEREYE
Adjusted
number
after the
completion Granted,
of Capital exercised
Reorganisation and
Adjusted Asat and Rights cancelled Lapsed Asat
exercise price 1January  Issue during during the during the 31 December
Grantee Position Date of Grant Exercise period (Note) 2021 the year year year 2021
R ERARERE i
Z32-F  EARMRE FARE R i
BERA R RHRH TR BRRTER -A-B 2BHEHE Rit# ERm%¥ +=A=+-H
HKS
BT
Lee Kwok Leung Executive Director ~ 29/11/2018 29/11/2018 to 28/11/2021 2.0409 1,600,000 188,936 - (188,936) -
ZER EE ZE-N\Et-B ZE-\Ft-AZthBE
ZTAH “R-F+-A-TNA
16/09/2019 16/09/2019 to 31/07/2022 1.1601 1,600,000 188,936 - - 188,936
“I-NF ZE-NENATRRE
NATRA ZRIZELAET-H
Ng Chi Yeung, Simon  Independent 29/1172018 29/11/2018 to 28/11/2021 2.0409 200,000 23617 - (23,617) -
g Non-erecutive — —F—/\E+—f ZF-\FT-A-thBE
Director ZthA “E--F+-AZ1/\H
BUFHIESE 16092019 16/09/2019 to 31/07/2022 1.1601 200,000 23,617 - N 23,617
“EoNE “E-NEAATARE
NATRA ZRICELA=T-H
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy  Independent 29/1172018 29/1172018 to 28/11/2021 2.0409 200,000 23,617 - (23,617) -
ks Non-executve  ZB—-\E1-f ZE-\ET-ATNAZ
Director “tAH “E--F4+-A-t)H
BUERTES 160092019 16/09/2019 to 31/07/2022 1.1601 200,000 23617 - - 23,617
ZENEAR ZE-AERATARE
THA CRICELA=T-H
Florence Ng Independent 291172018 29/1172018 to 28/11/2021 2.0409 200,000 23,617 - (23,617) -
R2H Non-eecutve ~ —E—-\E+—f ZE-\E+-AthBEE
Director ~thA ZEo-E+-AZ1/\H
BUENTES  16/09/2019 16/09/2019 to 31/07/2022 1.1601 200,000 23,617 - - 23,617
ZE-NERA ZE-AEAATREE
THRA S )
Yeung Cheuk Kwong ~ Chief Executive 291172018 29/1172018 to 28/11/2021 2.0409 2,500,000 295,213 - (295,213) -
BER Officer Z3-\Et-F ZE-\E+-A-thAZ
Bes ZthA “R--F+-A-TNE
16/09/2019 16/09/2019 to 31/07/2022 1.1601 2,500,000 295,213 - - 295213
ZE-NERA ZE-AEAATREE
178 ZRIELAST-H
Other employees na 29/1112018 29/11/2018 to 28/11/2021 2.0409 3,100,000 366,064 - (366,064) -
“ENEt-R ZE\ET-ACTARE
ZTAH “RC-E-fZ1)\R
EfofEg TER 16/09/2019 16/09/2019 to 31/07/2022 1.1601 3,100,000 366,064 (35,426) 330,638
ZE-NERAE ZE-AEAATREE
178 ZRIZEYAET-H
Total 3t 15,600,000 1,842,128 - (956,490) 885,638
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Note:

During the year, the Company has implemented the Capital Reorganisation
effective on 17 March 2021 and Rights Issue effective on 12 July 2021.
Accordingly, the exercise prices of share options granted on 29 November
2018 and 16 September 2019 were subsequently adjusted to HK$2.0409
and HK$1.1601 respectively. The number. of outstanding share options has
also been adjusted.

Details of the capital reorganisation are set out in the announcement dated
29 January 2021, circular dated 18 February 2021 and announcement
dated 15 March 2021 respectively.

Details of the Rights Issue are set out in the announcement dated 20 May
2021, prospectus dated 16 June 2021 and announcement dated 9 July
2021 respectively.

The closing price per share on 13 September 2019 (being the date
immediately before date of grant on 16 September 2019) was HK$0.136
(before adjustment for the Capital Reorganisation).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Dr. Lam Man Chan
Mr. Lee Kwok Leung

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
Ms. Florence Ng

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Dr. Lam Man Chan
and Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offers themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2021, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the Listing Rules, below were the interest and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of part XV of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited:
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Number of Shares held

FERGEE
Name of Number Percentage
Directors and Chief Long Short of share of issued
Executive Officer Position Note Nature of interest position position  options held share capital
EER FiisBiRE HERTRAE
TRAHKS B A1 K REME iR KR e Ak
Lam Man Chan Chairman and 1 Beneficial owner 39,313,770 - - 27.80
(“Dr. Lam") Non-executive Director BB A

MXE(HEL]) EEFRFATES
Lee Kwok Leung Executive Director 2 Beneficial owner - - 188,936 0.134
FER WITES BExnEAA
Ng Chi Yeung, Simon  Independent 2 Beneficial owner - - 23,617 0.017
2 =i Non-executive Director E=HmEA

BYERITES
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy  Independent 2 Beneficial owner - - 23,617 0.017
ENBE Non-executive Director EmlEA A

B IFMITER
Florence Ng Independent Non-executive 2 Beneficial owner - - 23,617 0.017
REE Director BEniEA A

BYERITES
Yeung Cheuk Kwong  Chief Executive Officer 2 Beneficial owner - - 295,213 0.209
BEX THARE EREAA
Notes: Wit -
1. On 21 July 2021, Sinowin (PTC) Inc. transferred its entire interest in 1. R-ZE-_—F+H=+—H - Sinowin (PTC) Inc.

Goodchamp Holdings Limited to Dr. Lam and, together with HSBC
International Trustee Limited which is the trustee of Richmond Trust,
ceased to have interest on the shares of the Company after the share
transfer. Consequently, Dr. Lam is the sole shareholder of
Goodchamp Holdings Limited. He also has the beneficial interest in
the 39,313,770 shares of the Company and his wife, Ms. Ting Lai
Ling, who is one of the management team members of the
Company, is deemed to have an interest on such shares of the
Company.

These represented the shares options granted by the Company.
Details have been set out in the section with the header “Share
Options”.

#% H $ Goodchamp Holdings Limited 2 fT 5 & &
EEREMEBE L MREEE - %2 F%ERichmond
TrustZ 25 AHSBC International Trustee Limited
BERARAIRNEERER METHAILKA
Goodchamp Holdings Limited 2 M — % ER » 1% IR
$39,313,770R AR EIRG B EE R R - M
EETEBRZT (AR aEBEBKEZ —) HR
ER EIA R BIRD R ER E

2. WREARDFAEHZBERE - BEFHEIHN L
SCIRERLHE ] —&h e
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DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as was known to the directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and
chief executive of the Company) has, or is deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO are set out below:

EERERNIGESF 2ER

BRiR A MR E30B AR SR B IEE
Sh - REREMER  HEEFAWETEZE
BRARREFRUEEKTEEMATEBALRRF
Befn SR S5 M 2 A+ AN QB IR RT SLAE AR
R BEEFAREMEMEAEEBERZE
TR o

FERRREMATARS REBR
2B

R-F-—#+-A=+—R RARAEER
EBTRABMM LT AL (FRIEEXHA
ARETEEREBTHMARMRE 2 HS) R
ARAZBORBBRG T - HERREAEA
ARGV RIEES R RAEPIEIBETELE
22 FoMEIAR -

Capacity/Nature Percentage
Name of shareholders Note of interest Long position Short position of holding
BRAE Hrat Bip #ERMHE FE xE ikRaott
Goodchamp Holdings Limited 1 Beneficial owner 39,313,770 - 27.80
E=EAA
Lam Man Chan 1 Beneficial owner 39,313,770 - 27.80
MR R BEmEBA
Ting Lai Ling 1 Beneficial owner 39,313,770 - 27.80
TE® E=HEAA
Note: /Z/?E‘LE .

1. On 21 July 2021, Sinowin (PTC) Inc. transferred its entire interest in
Goodchamp Holdings Limited to Dr. Lam and, together with HSBC
International Trustee Limited which is the trustee of Richmond Trust,
ceased to have interest on the shares of the Company after the share
transfer. Consequently, Dr. Lam is the sole shareholder of
Goodchamp Holdings Limited. He also has the beneficial interest in
the 39,313,770 shares of the Company and his wife, Ms. Ting Lai
Ling, who is one of the management team members of the Company,
is deemed to have an interest on such shares of the Company.

1. W-ZZE-—HF+HF=-+—H " Sinowin (PTC)
Inc.#% & R Goodchamp Holdings LimitedZ Ff
ERZEZEMNE L MREEE ZQA
E2Richmond TrustZ 5% 5 AHSBC International
Trustee Limited B AR R DB 2 - M
1§+ F It Ak AGoodchamp Holdings Limited 2
— PR - IR 39,313, 770 A AR FEE
EXEs MEZTBERLZL (AAGEREK
RE 2 —) WRIER AR BN TG o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the directors
and chief executive of the Company are not aware of any persons
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy for the Directors of the Company are
decided by Remuneration Committee, with reference to his
respective qualifications and experiences, duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s performance and the prevailing
market situation. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details
of the scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

INDEPENDENCY OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Except as detailed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws, every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Group has maintained
directors’ liability insurance, which provides appropriate cover for
legal actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

RESIGNATION AND APPOINTMENT OF THE AUDITOR OF

THE COMPANY

During the year, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has
resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect from 28 July
2021, because the Company and Deloitte could not reach a
consensus on the audit fee for the financial year ended 31
December 2021. With the recommendation of the audit committee
of the Company, RSM Hong Kong has been appointed as the new
auditor of the Company with effect from 29 July 2021 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte, and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company.

Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
audited by RSM Hong Kong who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The changes in directors’ information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out below:

1.

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung resigned as the Chairman and retained
as executive Director of Mayer Holdings Limited (stock code:
1116) on 15 January 2021. Subsequently, he was appointed
as the Chairman on 22 February 2022.

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of EV Dynamics (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 476) with effect from 16 November 2021, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee Kwok Leung retired as an independent non-executive
director of Guoan International Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 143) and
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (stock code:
G11) on 27 August 2021.

Dr. Ng Chi Yeung, resigned as an independent non-executive
director of a publicly listed company in Hong Kong, namely,
Century Sage Scientific Holdings Limited (stock code: 1450)
29 September 2021.

Ms. Florence Ng has been appointed as an executive director
of Mega Matrix Corp. (formerly known as: AeroCentury
Corp.) (trading symbol: MTMT), a Delaware corporation listed
in the New York Stock Exchange, United States since 1
October 2021, and currently serves as its chief operating
officer since 25 March 2022. Ms. Ng served as its vice
president of operations and business development from 1
November 2021 to 25 March 2022, and its general counsel
from 20 September 2021 to 1 November 2021.

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong has become a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Securities & Investment Institute since 22
November 2021.

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong was appointed as licensed
representative of Success Advance Investments Limited, a
corporation licensed by SFC to carry on Type 9 (asset
management) and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activities under the SFO on 24 May 2021.

On behalf of the Board

China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited
Lam Man Chan

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZEMBEES

RSM

To the Shareholders of
China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited
(Continued into Bermuda with limited liability)

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 178 to 259, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined that there are no key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 26
March 2021.

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Ng Wai Kwun.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
21 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt T8 FHT
Gross proceeds from operations CIEATS AR 8 137,280 168,901
Revenue =
Dividend income from financial assets at BARnBEEAER
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([{& AR EFAER]) 2
TREEZBRBYEA 472 904
Interest income from financial assets at BAnEHAERZ
FVTPL TREEZHMBWA - 293
Interest income from debt instrument at BERARBEFAEMEEKZE
fair value through other comprehensive ([Z AR EF AEMEEK
income ("FVTOCI") m)ZEBITAZFBKA 13 87
Total revenue @l e 485 1,284
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets BARBEFAEBRZZ
at FVTPL cRMEEWRZ(BE)FHE 1,096 (20,157)
Other income Hup A 9 1 1,115
Other gains and losses Hhlas R EE 10 8,938 (93)
Administrative expenses THRAX (18,603) (24,544)
Other operating expenses Hfbis & (1,426) (1,426)
Share of results of associates FEMREEE NRIFAE (22) (46)
Loss from operations EEEE (9,531) (43,867)
Finance costs A& B AR 12 (48) (61)
Loss before tax PR AIE 18 (9,579) (43,928)
Income tax expense FTgHi X 13 - -
Loss for the year attributable to ARARBEEAEBLFESE
owners of the Company 14 (9,579) (43,928)
(Restated)
(=E751)
Loss per share attributable to ARAREE A
owners of the Company EiEEREE 18
Basic (HK cents) EAR B (7.59) (39.0)
Diluted (HK cents) g OBl) (7.59) (39.0)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AelRaREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 i Z T - —F+ - A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—EF=-—F TE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT
Loss for the year FEEE (9,579) (43,928)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hit2mEWE(&8) :
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss: AEHHEE B HE -
Exchange differences on translating foreign HMEFINEBEE
operations PE 5 Z 58 (1) 27
Fair value gain/(loss) on debt instrument BAREFAREMEZEKE Y
at FVTOCI EBTAZ AR ERSE(EB) 1 (74)
Release of FVTOCI reserve upon disposal AHEEETEmMBEARE
of debt instrument BT NE b 2 TE W A R 25 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FEHEM 2wz (EE)
net of tax (BEHIBRTIE) 25 (47)
Total comprehensive loss for the year KNRHEE ABEFEE
attributable to owners of the Company EHEBESE (9,554) (43,975)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR EwR

At 31 December 2021 R=ZZE=-—F+=-A=+—H

2021 2020
—EBEC—F —ZEZFF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iokza TiExT FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB MK 19 9,434 10,282
Debt instrument at FVTOCI BAREFAREMEEKZEZ
BB IR 20 - 1,745
Financial assets at FVTPL BARETABREZEMEE 21 24,208 33,480
Interests in associates N TEANEI A 23 - 480
33,642 45,987
Current assets mBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFAEBERZEMEE 21 18,631 26,776
Other receivables, prepayments and H b G IE - TBRIA
deposits FiLe 24 1,921 4,395
Bank and cash balances SRITRIRS &% 25 35,273 18,379
55,825 49,550
TOTAL ASSETS BESE 89,467 95,537
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2021 2020

—E-—F C—T-TH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iokza Ti&xT FET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners ADRHE AEIGRE:S
of the Company
Share capital fig 2 26 1,414 94,282
Reserves % 28 82,115 (9,395)
Total equity RSB 83,529 84,887
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals fExt R~ 4,287 8,490
Secured bank loan BB TER 29 1,651 2,160
Total liabilities EEHEEH 5,938 10,650
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExREERE 89,467 95,537
Net current assets mBEERE 49,887 38,900
Net assets BEEFE 83,529 84,887
(Restated)
(&)
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFEGERT) 34 0.59 0.90

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2022 and are RZTZZF=ZAZ+—BEESSHE I H

signed on its behalf by: THEEREKEE
Lam Man Chan Lee Kwok Leung
PRI 1 ZE#R
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEREEEEmR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALRHE AR
Share-based
Share Share Contributed  payments Translation FVTOCI Accumulated

capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total

BARE

AR

Ripf 2ENE
kx  RGEE HARR it EXfR it BiBR @it
Note HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Mt TiEn Ti#n TiEn Ti#n TiEn Ti#x TiEn Ti#x
Asat 1 January 2020 RZEZE5-F-H 94,282 75,416 225,806 1,287 (103) 48 (267874 128862
Loss for the year EEHE - - - - - - (43,928)  (43,928)
Other comprehensive incomef(loss) £ 2 k% /(B8 - - - - 7 (74) - ()

Total comprehensive loss and FELABRAEL

changes in equity for the year BEXEY - - - - 2 (74 (43928) (43,975
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-E5+-F=1-H 94,282 75,416 225,806 1,287 (76) (26)  (311,802) 84,887
Loss for the year FEFE - - - - - - (9,579) (9,579)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) £t 2 &M/ (B8) - - - - (1) 26 - 25
Total comprehensive loss for the year £ 2 EEEEE - - - - (1) 26 (9,579) (9,554)
Lapse of share options BRELT - - - (873) - - 873 -
Capital reduction e e 26(1)(b) (93,339) - 93,339 - = - - -
Transfer to contributed surplus BRAABS 28(b)ii - (75416) 75416 = = = = =
Issuance of shares upon rights issue  {RE %4715 2602) 4an 1,125 = = = = - 8,196
Changes in equity for the year EnEREY (92,868)  (67.691) 168,755 (873) (1) 26 (8706)  (1358)
As at 31 December 2021 R_E--E+-fA=1-A 1,414 1,125 394,561 414 (77) - (320,508) 83,529
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= N — |
FSEELAE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z T - —F+ A=+ —HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F TECTF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
iokz3 TFExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXKFBRERNE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI &R (9,579) (43,928)
Adjustments for: FLATIEB A :
Bank interest income H|ITH B WA 9 (1 (30)
Dividend income from financial BAREFAEZZ
assets at FVTPL SRMEEZRBIA 8 (472) (904)
Interest income from financial BEAnEFABTZZ
assets at FVTPL EHMEEZFEWA 8 = (293)
Interest income from debt EAnEFAEMEE KR
instrument at FVTOCI ZEBIEZAMEWA 8 (13) (87)
Finance costs Bh & Bk 2N 12 48 61
Depreciation E 19 848 895
Gain on disposal of property, HEWXE  WER
plant and equipment BLalE 10 (8,935) -
Loss on write-off of property, WM - BEMEHEZ
plant and equipment BEERLEERESIS 10 = 26
Impairment loss of intangible asset EREEREER 10 - 120
Derecognition of debt instrument at BIFERIE A R BT AR
FVTOCI PHmCEBIA 10 25 -
Net (gains)/losses on financial BAREFAERZE/ME
assets at FVTPL ERER)ERFE (1,096) 20,157
Share of results of associates JEAG B & A R E A 22 46
Operating loss before working CBEESEY K EEIR
capital changes (19,153) (23,937)
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAAEFABRZER
assets at FVTPL BEZFISHIA 136,795 167,617
Proceeds from settlement of financial EERANRBEFABRREZER®
assets at FVTPL BEZHERIE = 8,000
Payments for purchases of financial BEERARBEFABRZ R
assets at FVTPL BEZNR (118,282) (157,224)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, — E {th fEUL kI - BT 0B R i%
prepayments and deposits SR8 ) 2,474 (2,041)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals FEETR (R L),/ hn (4,203) 433
Interest income received 2 A2 A 14 410
Dividend income received 2 AR S A 472 904
Net cash used in operating activities EEE£KFFAZRLBHE (1,883) (5,838)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEHETMER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E—F —EEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iokz3 T#ET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEXERLSRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE KWELRE
equipment 19 - (53)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BMELERHEZ
plant and equipment FT1§RIA 8,935 -
Proceeds from disposal of debt HERAABEFAREMEE
instrument at FVTOCI Wz BB TR ZFABHIE 1,746 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—EREBAREREAE 35(a) - 399
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — A E R A FTIS B 23(a) 458 -
Capital injection to an associate A —fE & RN ETE = (290)
Net cash generated from investing activities & ZEFEA IR ©FH 11,139 56
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Gross proceeds from Rights Issue HARFTE RIB AR 26(2) 9,428 -
Payments for Rights Issue expenses HRFEEZ 2R 26(2) (1,232) -
Repayment of secured bank loan EEBEMRITER (509) (496)
Finance costs Bh & A AR (48) 61)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBEL (FTA)Z
financing activities e FE 7,639 (557)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRB2FEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS G RE 16,895 (6,339)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [E R & H) & (1) (48)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FzR2RALEED
AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR 18,379 24,766
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZRERRZEY
AT THE END OF YEAR 35,273 18,379
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRB2FEHEB AW
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances IRITRIB&H 35,273 18,379
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z T - —F+ A=+ —HILFE

China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company continued into
Bermuda as an exempted company under the laws of
Bermuda. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Flat 18, 9/F,
Block B, Focal Industrial Centre, 21 Man Lok Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in investments in equity
and debt instruments. The principal activities of its significant
subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and with the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting year of the Group. Note 3 below provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting years reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & EZ T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. MR EETERMERE
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS £ g

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting year of the Group.

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group's results and financial position for
the current or prior years have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting year.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied any new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2021. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property,
Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous
Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 — 2020 Cycle

1 January 2022

(a)
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current

Amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements - Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and
Errors - Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes - Deferred Tax Related to
Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning
on or after

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

1 January 2023

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

what the impact of these amendments and new

standards is expected to be in the period of initial

application. So far it has been concluded that the

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

on the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z — T - —HF+ _ A=+ —HILFE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The area where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements is disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated translation reserve relating to that
subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z — T - —HF+ _ A=+ —HILFE

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by
other entities, are considered when assessing whether
the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill which is included
in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BERNRSARBHAEAAAEARE
N2 B -BEBRATES TJEAE? "
2GR EER R ZRK R 2 B
i FE42 ) 3k K R 2 5 4 - BRI AJ1T{E
KRB BEERERZFERY
2 PREMEBREZIEBERRE
EAR - TRFEAEEEEABEKR
FENETUEE - £:E—HERE
REERDEEEARENR  BEA
AREEEREMB LREARED
TTERDBZEENTEEE 2T -

RBERRZREDRAERZER
*/—\ﬁﬁf’zi&%)\ﬁﬁ » B IR KA T
R RBBERRZAHEMNEER
BENRERKEBERZAAER
B MBREXNABLEAEED G L
AEIZAIHBEERBBEZARF
B AIEEEZEBAREAR B8

DA AREZEEE - WASE DG

AREBEERABZ AR FESRE
B AEMSEZZBENES
BmER e



The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of
losses not recognised.
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The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying
amount of that associate (including goodwill) and any
related accumulated translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),
which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s

financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the entity
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when the
fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(iii)

REREBRE
AEBMBERZNEERMHA
FIMARRZZ2FIEH - RIEE
BRPBARRBIZAT A BRE
RARARZZ25EH :

— BHRBRRBERARE
5 2 & B B B A R S B
B R EE BT E
Y

- WARFEXREHFYE
K E - fRIFULFYEX
TRAEERERBRN R
SBEHmAZERZ REt
FEOANERBERLT K
ARFAXERZZHAHZ
ERBE K&

- FAERUEmMEEZERZ
BN E M 2 W m AR
RERNBRERBARG -

RiGRER  REEEEMERE
B mEL 2 X ZBEARAEI
BERREFEZAD - URHM
2HEKEAER LN BRERFEN
Rit - BEHBINEBE - %F
ERZBEINGABRREENDE
RAHEREBZ D -



Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land, held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For ownership interests of properties which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the
leasehold land and building elements are allocated in
proportion to the relative fair values unless such
allocation cannot be made reliably, in which case, the
entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of lease
term or 4%

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease
term or 20%
Office equipment, 20%
furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles 33.3%
Yacht 33.3%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method

are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible asset
Intangible asset representing a club membership with

indefinite useful life that is acquired separately is carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

Recognition and derecognition of financia
instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in

the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

4.

BEX

(d)
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The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
measured subsequently in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. B AEHEE (&)
(g) Financial assets (continued) (9 E®MEE (&)
Debt investments BERE
Debt investments held by the Group are classified into AREEZBEZEHEREDBAEINTE
one of the following measurement categories: R—{EFTEER

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the —

collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is calculated
using the effective interest method.

- FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows —

of the investment comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for the recognition in profit or loss of expected
credit losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.
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Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
until the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to accumulated
losses. It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised
in profit or loss as revenue.

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses ("ECL").

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Other payables are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

BETADNEAREBEMGAAR
BERZEETHBNSERZ 2EMNG
#) e RRRBIT 2w TATIIETI
BZPTERERERBEITRAAR -

o as 10 E m B AR A 2 AR A IR AN SR
TEHARER 2 AFNRELE (TE
BEREREFZTRIZER)EBEER
PR T LARERR ©

M EBWAR B E &R R BN ROLHE
R o BRI AE BRI E 2 IR S AR AN EH
BZEREEME ERMEXEARN
BEREAE SREREEREZS
MEEME ERMNXERNREEZ
BIHROR (APRREARERR BB BHR) -

P8 A T P ER MR B A 3R 2 N B S
B T LA RR o

TREMARESHERERAR | ZE—FFH



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long

service leave are recognised when they accrue to

employees. A provision is made for the estimated

liability for annual leave and long service leave as

a result of services rendered by employees up to

the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(if)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution

retirement schemes which are available to all

employees. Contributions to the schemes by the

Group and employees are calculated as a

percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The

retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit

or loss represents contributions payable by the

Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

(iii)

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier

of the dates when the Group can no longer

withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when

the Group recognises restructuring costs and

involves the payment of termination benefits.
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The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments
to certain directors and employees. Equity-settled
share-based payments are measured at the fair value
(excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of
grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest
and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset. Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use or
sale is included in the general borrowing pool for
calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(r)

Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is

reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

4.

(r)
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Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written
down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.
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The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on other
receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of other receivables.

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for the financial
instruments when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into

account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly since initial recognition:

12 0 L M 4 0 ()
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an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,

the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial

asset has increased significantly since initial recognition

when contractual payments are more than 30 days past

due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.

CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Eiw LA ZERWA - BEHON
RBHEB30ORE AEESHETS
BMEE 2 EE R B V16 TR IA KR
I BREAKEBEFHAGER
BRI EBEEMIEERBKREZE
- BIERIE o



Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there are no past
due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 4. & A&t ()

(u) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (u)
Definition of default
The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

FEREERMEE
TRMEEA-BINLBOEMN (Y
ZEMEEZMATRKBESZREBK
TR E) BEREREERE - 2/
EEEERECERERARTIIE
2z I BsEEUER

- BOAIBFHIZEAUMBRE
o

- BREHMMEDOBHEM)

- BHFLZERAREH TG
MHABBZEBEHANER - [
BFIBREERATERTER
ZBE

- HFLBAsERARESE MM
BEH &

- REREEZABRMBSAMBRE
BB -

1 85 BUR

HLEERKE AR (BREHA
ERBRIEABRERFE) A%
EMETREE KEREZEBRR
(HAE)  BWMHZEREEA D
AEASEWOEFETRBIITE
B o EMKRENIBREER -

THEEEAREASRERARAR | B —FF5HK



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the
current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are
not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

HWASRERBESHE LRAZEX
HEBMT MAEHEALENZR
HETTER  YREBEBRLELA
Sfhatly - M@l ReeEERHELE
BMZABEERRE NEBEEEE
BEX BESUBTEBREHASHZ
REK -

& ZEBEMERH 2 A BEETK
SoRBERI SEfAAt B R RE - RIRRIER
BN Z A e R - BRIB
BEEMINFELABERE - BRF—
R ZERRFHEEELETERT
FERSZBEEMRE  TERE/K
REE - FRIEEEN R Z ARt
1B A 45 Bl o

HAKERHE R ARSI
ERSIELNRECERRLTGEL
BEMREEBRBHREER  WRK
RIEEMBRE - LIFABER W
EHRFEBEARGNEGA VR
RMTENBE -

FREMERESREEARAT | —B-—FFH



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z — T - —HF+ _ A=+ —HILFE

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$9,434,000 (2020:
HK$10,282,000).

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, equity price risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and interest rate risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks, if any, are set out below. The management of the
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manners.

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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The Group is primarily exposed to equity price risk
through its investment in listed equity securities and
listed debt instruments, if any. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on
equity securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below was determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2021, if the prices of the respective
listed equity securities (2020: listed equity securities)
had been 10% (2020: 10%) higher/lower, loss after tax
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$4,284,000 (2020:
HK$6,026,000) as a result of the changes in fair value
of listed equity securities (2020: listed equity securities).

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities and
from its financing activities, including equity instruments
and deposits with banks and financial institutions,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.
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Financial assets at amortised cost

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the financial assets
at amortised cost include bank balances, other
receivables and deposits.

Bank balances

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating
assigned by international credit-rating agencies, for
which the Group considers to have low credit risk. For
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances at 12-month ECL by reference to information
published by external credit rating agencies relating to
average loss rates of respective credit rating grades and
concluded the ECL on these balances are insignificant.

Other receivables and deposits

Other receivables and deposits are considered to be low
credit risk when they have a low of default and the
issuer have a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. For the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
assessed the ECL for other receivables are insignificant
and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks and debt
investment, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. BEEKRERE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk d) REBESEK

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associate
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivery of
cash or other financial assets. During the period of
COVID-19 pandemic, liquidity risks become the typical
major concern. The Board has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework to
meet the Group’s funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities
is as follows:

MBE T RN AR BRI IAR
NREKHEMEMEEZ T AEBE
NESHBEERRETMERNHEZ
Rk - R2019BRASHEBEHRE
RBETRRBKARLN T ERE -
EXecHERERDESARERE
BER URNEAKEESRRDES
EEBE °

AEBERERBAMMER IR E
THE UEREFEHNRSHE
mERRARERRDESRE -

REASEFTESREBEZANR
BRREREBETZEMBASNAT -

On demand
or less than

1 year Total
DPHR—F FoH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET
As at 31 December 2021 R-EZ-—F4+=-A=+—H
Accruals fEEtR X 4,287 4,287
Secured bank loan (Note) BB TER (M) 1,651 1,651
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-_FF+-A=+—H
Accruals FEET R 8,490 8,490
Secured bank loan (Note) BIEBIRITER (M) 2,160 2,160

Note: Secured bank loan with a repayment on demand clause HiaE -

is included in the ‘on demand or less than 1 year’ time
band in the above maturity analysis. Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The directors believe that such secured bank loan will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement.

BERERER G B EMRT
ERELRB AT ATEE
KHAOR—F | ZRHEBER 7
AARAEEZHBHRE  EER
RIBIT IR ITREREES
SKENRER - ERAE - Z A AR
RITEFFIZRE R BHEME 2T
TERAHEE -

TREMARECHERERLR |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R E B R Ak Y AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ T - —F+ A=+ —HILtFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. BIEEMEIE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) mu@]ﬁ%ﬂﬁfﬁ (#&)
The maturity analysis of secured bank loan subject to a BIEFEFERGERLEETEEX
repayment on demand clause based on scheduled EBRGERZERMETETETZD
repayments is as follows: HAES T :

Between Between

Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
PR—F —EMFE WMELF L

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FiERT

As at 31 December 2021 N=—E=—%f
+=—H=+—H
Secured bank loan BERWHRTER 557 557 604 1,718

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZEZEHF

+=A=+—H
Secured bank loan BHEMIRITER 557 557 1,160 2,274
(e) Interest rate risk (e) F=m= B

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates AEEBZESRENXRE R X EHEY
to the above variable-rate bank loan. It is the Group's BRTEZEH AEBIHE AR
policy to maintain its borrowing at commercial loan BEESREEERFXREE - kB
rates, which include a floating rate of interest within AEHEEAZZHAE  EMEBED
reasonable ranges so as to minimise the fair value AEFNERRE ANEEB RN EE T
interest rate risk. The Group currently does not have an FIRE R - A - ERERYE
interest rate hedging policy. However, management BRERER - WHRIBFEHIREARN
monitors interest rate exposure closely and will consider REKE  ZERBNEMNETE -

other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The effect of changes in interest rates is not expected F RSB C AT ERETES
to be significant to the consolidated financial SR BRIRTEIRGIEEBETE
statements. The Group has no other significant N REBVEEMBEATELE
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for bank LAl AEFEZKRARKELR SR
deposits and secured bank loan, the Group's income EABIATTEFNNREHZE -

and operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. MBERERE (&)

(f)  Categories of financial instruments as at 31 December ) R=-B=-_—F+=-H=+—H
2021 ZEMITAEER
2021 2020
—EF=-—F TE-THE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets: ERBEE:
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI: BRARBEAEAM
THWRZEREE

Debt instrument B ITA = 1,745
Financial assets at FVTPL: BEARERABECSREE:

Mandatorily measured at FVTPL BHEIE AR B AELR 42,839 60,256
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1Z¥E K At B 2 S FEE 36,150 21,060
Financial liabilities: tEaE:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHEKATECEMAR 5,938 10,650
(g) Fair values (99 DARE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets BEMBIRAREIRE 2 AEES

and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated MEEMeHABZERERAERKH

statement of financial position approximated their NAERE -

respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ERRNE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AEHE
ERMSESEEZRREFRX ST
,\FPEMZHX&L.:%E\LEF)’TEZHZnJriEI
TARBEFERAAABERE
TBZE% ux@ﬁfﬁg%&ﬂvﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ)ﬂ
BETEZBABELS BB :

P>
o

) HFPFF ™
D>2r

F-RBABE : RFERAHRASEES
MziEREERBEAER
AT S 2 ME (R
FHE) o

F2RBABE : F AT ERRE
BEBERZEEXAER
BIASNZ B N8R

FIRBABE : BEXRBEZTUEER
BWAHE -

AEEZBRABANBEARBERE
FEHNERERRLEZBAREZAMA
REERBRPETZEAREL -
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy as at 31 (@) R—EB=-—F+=-H=+—H
December 2021: ZAREEBREE
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERAAERE: @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
F1R F248 #3% It Sl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TEL Tign
Description it
Recurring fair value measurements: BEMDMENE:
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREIABRZEBAE
- Listed equity securities —FakAES 42,839 - - 42,839
Fair value measurements using: Total
RARAEHE &%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
E1 EVi 3 “T-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHL Tix TR
Description it
Recurring fair value measurements: ~ EE#QAEE:
Financial assets SHEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREABRRZEREE
- Listed equity securities - FRAES 60,256 - - 60,256
Financial asset at FVTOCI BAREHALNZE
YasbmEE
- Listed debt security —- ERAES 1,745 - - 1,745
Total izt 62,001 - - 62,001
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED) 7.

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value
based on Level 3:

N

N REFE (&)
(b) BEFEIRBRAAETECEE
R -

Financial assets at FVTPL -
unlisted equity investments

BARBERFARSZEMEE

—JELTRAERE
2021 2020
—t —T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFi&T FHET
Description Fi it
As at 1 January n—A—H - 8,196
Total gains or losses recognised RERER M=
in profit or loss (#) EIBAREM#H) = (111
Exchange loss (e R = (21)
Purchases BE = 4,000
Settlements F = (12,064)
As at 31 December R+-_A=+—H = -

(#) Include gains or losses for assets #) BEERBREPRRABEEZ

held at the end of reporting period g 25 Bk 5 18

= (111)

The total gains or losses recognised in profit or loss
including those for assets held at the end of reporting
period are presented in the net gains/(losses) on
financial assets at FVTPL in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

RIBmER 2 Wk BRARE (BRR®RE
HMRAFHEEZ Wams BB EFRABER
NENRBAABFABBZZEREER
a5, (B18) FH
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GROSS PROCEEDS FROM OPERATIONS 8. &&E

2021 2020
—EF-—F T THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T TFA&ETT
Gross proceeds from disposal of HEEARBEFABEZEREE
financial assets at FVTPL 2B RIBAEE 136,795 167,617
Dividend income from financial BRARBEFABREZEMEEY
assets at FVTPL i B U A 472 904
Interest income from financial BARBEHFABSZEREEY
assets at FVTPL LB U A = 293
Interest income from debt instrument BARBEFAEMEE RS Z
at FVTOC| BB ITAEZHEWA 5 87
137,280 168,901
OTHER INCOME 9. Hzl A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TFA&ETT
Government grants received (Note) W B T 4 Bh (B 73 - 1,085
Bank interest income SRITF B UA 1 30
1 1,115
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group Krit: HEZZE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—HItF

recognised government grants of approximately HK$1,085,000
in respect of COVID-19 related subsidies, of which about
HK$1,026,000 related to Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government.

B REEHM2019TRESHEBAE
B 7E R B 4 B) 491,085,000 7T 0 E
fF #91,026,000/8 7% & B B H BT
EBAREZ TRLEIE -

rETHAREeREnERAT | —t=—r7% [EEEIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE R m AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & EZ T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES HtWEzREER
2021 2020
—E-—F TECTF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
Fi&xT FET
Loss on write-off of property, ME Y E - BB MEE BB
plant and equipment = (26)
Exchange gain PE 5 M 2= 28 53
Impairment loss on intangible asset EEEREESE - (120)
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE  WER&E W=
plant and equipment 8,935 -
Derecognition of debt RIETERIR AR
instrument at FVTOCI Hthzmlm o EBIA (25) -
8,938 (93)
11. SEGMENT INFORMATION a5 2 E ¥

The Group's principal activity is investment in equity and debt
instruments. For the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of performance, the management regularly
reviews and manages the Group's investments on a portfolio
basis. Information is regularly provided to the management
and mainly includes fair value of respective investees and the
related investment income. Therefore, no segment
information is presented other than entity-wide disclosures.

The Group’s revenue is generated from operations in Hong
Kong. The Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial
assets at FVTPL) are located in Hong Kong.

AEBEZETZXHERHR/RENBRARE

BTHE -BEBERDEMFEREMS - BE
BERMGEETHEAREEARE 2K
B -EHRERERTECEHNIERTER
BEREHSRZAABERRERA - Eiit
BARBERSSERETREN  UES
Sy BRE L o

AEEZBBZRETEZEE AKEZ
FRBEE (BAnBEF A BRZEREE
BN RN EE o
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e

Interest on secured bank loan BEFIETER

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of Bermuda during the year (2020: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and People’s Republic
of China (“PRC") Enterprise Income Tax was required since
the Group had no estimated assessable profit for the year
(2020: Nil).

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, Profits Tax rate for
the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of the qualifying
group entity established in Hong Kong will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above that amount will be subject to the
tax rate of 16.5%. The profits of the group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered Profit Tax rate regime will
continue to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of
25% (2020: 25%).

2020
= St ¥

=

HK$'000
TATT

(61)

AEERFABABRBRERDIER 2

EARBE(ZT_FF &) -

MR AREY EFEEHHERDEN (ZF

—EFCE)  MBAREENSR LB E
ARKAME (THE ) EMSHA R -

REBENESHMAS  REBKILZEERE

& #2152,000,0007% 7T FE &R Tt )t A1) 2 F 15
MR 738.25% » FB L Ll & 78 2 )& F

BIHEI16.5%RH ° TRHAEMEHMmAS 2
SEER G FEBIZTHE16.5%RM °

PECEMSRINIEH L% (ZE T
0 25%) FTHR e -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13.

The reconciliation between income tax expense and product

Fﬁ SHBE X (&)
SHAYHERHAIGERERAMRE 2&
Zﬁ%@?-

of loss before tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is as
follows:

2021 2020

—B-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Fi&xT FAT

Loss before tax bR B A ES 18 (9,579) (43,928)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits EHEBFEHIE16.5%

Tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) —TTF 165%) T EZHIE (1,581) (7,248)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBRA 2 %52 (1,557) (328)
Tax effect of expenses that are not TR MBHRE BB EE

deductible 279 76
Tax effect of utilisation of tax AL ARBRTIEEE 2

losses not previously recognised B e (1,321) -
Tax effect of share of results of associates D{HEEE RN R EBE 2RI 2 4 8
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMBEEZRETE 2,646 7,438
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREEZBE 2 HRETE

not recognised 1,530 54

PTS L X

Income tax expense

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$472,485,000 (2020:
HK$465,549,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The estimated tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$2,611,000 (2020:
HK$1,438,000). No deferred tax asset was recognised as it
was not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

RBEPR AKEEERDARES
8472,485,0008 L (ZE = F
465,549,000/ 7T ) Al AR 85 R 2K Fl o
FR 7 0 BRI R 2 s R 2ROR - B ot A A A
RIEETIE & B o {51 5118 /85 18 ] /& (R &7

+
EEE o

RBMEBRR AEEBAINHE R EE
2,611,000/ 70 (=T —F 4 : 1,438,000/%
JC) ° BRI BEE B AU FE AR Bl s Il g HK 88
ARz ARG ES - A s
WRELENRIEEE -
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14. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 14, ZATHEEAE(LEEEIE
THE COMPANY

The Group's loss for the year attributable to owners of the KRB AEAEBEAEEFEFEESHNG
Company is stated after charging the following: TF|EE :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Auditors’ remuneration Z BRI & 400 1,500
Depreciation e 848 895
Donation B 45 51
Impairment loss on intangible asset EREERBEERE
(included in other gains and losses) (Gt AH MUz L ERE) - 120
Brokerage commission expenses (Note) KoM ms (BaE) 319 401
Investment management fees (Note) WEEIBE (Hit) 505 560
Custody services fees (Note) AERBE (AiT) 52 59
Note: They were de minimis continuing connected transactions of Kzt . WIEA ETHBIE14AATIMNET ﬁ,/:,\;—
the Company under Rule 14A.73(1) of the Listing Rules. RERKE 2 KRABHEBERS °
15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERAIMAX
2021 2020
—EF=-—F e S
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ET FAT
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e TEAL RERL 11,469 16,381
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEA T 8l = 296 277
11,765 16,658
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RR R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 15. EERFBEX (&)
Five highest paid individuals EREEHFAL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FAXEERAARAGZRFALTHERGAE
included two (2020: two) directors whose emoluments are E(ZE_ZEF  WME)  WEZ2ME M
reflected in the analysis presented in note 16. The 162 DR - 82 =% AT+
emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three) individuals —ETFZR)2HERIINAT

are set out below:

2021 2020
—EF-—F T THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&xT FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances b A AW 1k] 6,939 6,892
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BERERETEIH R 70 60
7,009 6,952
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e BRIATEHE :

Number of individuals

AB
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E-TF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7L £2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 7T £4,000,0007% 7T 1 1
3 3
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. BEEA R A

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments () EERTHEARZ#H S
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BEER TR ATHEHIHE Y
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, disclosed BHE-_ZT-_—FR-ZT-FTF+=A
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the =+ —BIFEEEERITR A
Companies Ordinance is set out below: 2T

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

RTRRALATAENBL ARG ESRHCAARUME

Employer's contribution

Salaries and to a retirement benefit
Fees allowances scheme Total
e HeRzy BIGETI B2 BERR it

201 2020 201 2020 201 2020 2021 2020
ZEC-F -E-FE ZEI-F o ZBI-FE -3ofE CEC-E -E-%E

HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tn  FEx TR  TEr  TEn  fEn  TER  Tin

Chairman and IERFUTES
Non-executive Director
Lam Man Chan 9 1,654 1527 508 59 19 11 2,181 2,134
Executive Director yrEs
Lee Kwok Leung a8 - - 573 573 - - 573 573
Independent BukifEs
Non-executive Directors
Ng Chi Yeung Simon REW 178 178 3 - - - 178 178
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy Bt 178 178 - - - - 178 178
Florence Ng 223 178 178 = - = - 178 178
534 534 = - - - 534 534
Chief Executive Officer e
Yeung Cheuk Kwong BEX - - 3,720 3,690 26 21 3,746 3,711
2,188 2,061 4,801 4,859 45 32 7,034 6,952
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ T - —F+ A=+ —HILtFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEANRA = (F)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments (a)

(continued)
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the chief

executive or any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2020: Nil).

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year (2020: Nil).

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (b)

arrangements and contracts
Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

EERITHARNE (F)

REBEHBEMTRERSITAESEE
NERME  EAFEMNARERK
RMAZR B & 2 ZE S E A B
B(ZZ_ZTF &) -
FRABETERAR ST MESRET
A (ZE-_ZTF : |\) o

EERRG  RHEREHNHZ
EE

Brira MR EI7AAREESN
WEFZEMERRS ZHRELD
DIARRRBEFRZETHTI A RARE
EEREFHEINETERLHEE
BERNFRIFNEMNFHFEZE
RFIz -

17. DIVIDEND 17. BRE
No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during AKRABIRBE-_TE-_—F+_-_A=+—H
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil), nor has any HFFETERNSEZRGRE(ZEF
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting &) FECAREEZNREHRE
period. IR o
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The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$9,579,000 (2020: HK$43,928,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
126,241,050 (2020 (restated): 112,561,313) after adjusting
the effect of Share Consolidation on 17 March 2021 and
Rights Issue on 9 July 2021.

Basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
has been adjusted retrospectively to reflect the effect of
Share Consolidation on 17 March 2021 and Rights Issue on 9
July 2021. Details of the Share Consolidation and Rights Issue
are set out in Note 26.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the
Company’s outstanding share options. Diluted loss per share
was the same as the basic loss per share for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

BREABBNRAQAEEAEBGLSF
BB 49,579,000 T (Z T 2 F :
43,928,000 70) REHE T -_—F=H
+EHEBRODEHE T —F+ANBH#HKE
2B % 2 LB IR T8 80126,241,050
R((ZZEZFF (LE5) :112,561,3138)
BE-_Z-_TF+_A=Z+—ALFEZ
BREABEEEEHAZ  URBR=-F
T F=RAR+ttAROEHRERTE—F
tANBHRBZEE - BRHEHFRERZ
SFIFER AT FE26 o

A SE AR A B R RIT R AR R B AT HEE
BELTRAR BE_T-_—FR-_FT_F
FH+ZA=+—RALFEZEREEEIE
HERERNEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ -BERZE

Leasehold Office
land and Leasehold furniture Motor
buildings ~ improvement and fixtures vehicles Yacht Total
BELH g HOE - &
kT NELEE REE RE i EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TEL TEn TETL TATL TATL
Cost L
Asat 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF-F-H 13,257 1,702 652 5334 16,687 37,632
Additions RE - - 53 - - 53
Write off ik - (26) (15) - 47) (89)
As at 31 December 2020 RZB-BE+-fA=1-
and 1 January 2021 AR-E--%-7-A 13,257 1,676 690 5334 16,640 37,597
Write off g - - (94) - - (94)
Disposal tE - - - (282) (16,150) (16,432)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--%
+ZRA=1+-H 13,57 1,676 596 5,052 490 21,01
Accumulated depreciation FHAERAE
and impairment
Asat 1 January 2020 R-2-%%-F-H 2,872 1,672 576 4,762 16,600 26,482
Charge for the year EnENk 530 15 37 254 59 895
Write off i - (1) 4) - (47 (62)
As at 31 December 2020 WZB-E5+-A=1+-
and 1 January 2021 BR-E--%-7-8H 3,402 1,676 609 5,016 16,612 27315
Charge for the year ERE MR 531 - 35 254 28 848
Write off ik - - (94) - - (94)
Disposal ik - - - (282) (16,150) (16,432)
As at 31 December 2021 R-B=-%
+ZA=+-H 3,933 1,676 550 4,988 490 11,637
Carrying amount RE(E
As at 31 December 2021 R-B--%
+ZE=+-H 9,324 - 4 64 - 9,434
As at 31 December 2020 WZE-E%
+-A=t-H 9,855 - 81 318 28 10,282
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the leasehold land and RIE - —EFER B _FBF+-_A=+—

B AEESRGRITERZERMER
HELHRETF -

buildings were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loan.
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20. DEBT INSTRUMENT AT FVTOCI 200 BAREFAHEMEZEHKRFEZE

mIA
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Debt security listed in Hong Kong BB LTEBES = 1,745
As at 31 December 2020, the maturity date of the listed debt RZBEZZEF+_A=+—H LWEH
security was beyond one year and was dominated in United BHECHNHBY A —FA L WAETE
States Dollar. 8 -
21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 21, BAREFABERZZERERE
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, EEEFTRAES
at fair value BARBAE 42,839 60,256
Analysed as: DT
Current assets mENEE 18,631 26,776
Non-current assets IERBEE 24,208 33,480
42,839 60,256
Fair values of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are BEELETBRABEFZARBEFEERTS
primarily based on quoted market prices. WwE -
As at 31 December 2021, an amount of HK$24,208,000 RZBEZ—F+ZRA=+—H8 ' 2EAkR
(2020: HK$33,480,000) was classified as non-current assets BEAE L $5A24,208,0008 L (ZE=F
as the management of the Group expected that such amount F 1 33,480,00087L) - RERASBEER
might not be realised within twelve months after the BRAEZESHETTENRRERE+ =
reporting period. & A A #38 -
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NDTES T0 THE CONSDUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

22. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY 2. AEEHEZTIEREZEHR
THE GROUP
Particulars of top ten investments held by the Group as at 31 REBR_ZE-Z—FR_ZFE_ZTF+_A
December 2021 and 2020 disclosed pursuant to the Listing Zt+t—HEBEZTREEZERTRE L
Rule 21.12(1) are as follows: MREIE2112(NIEWRBEWT
2021 —E-—F
Percentage of
investment
attributable
Net assets Fair value to the
Nature of Interest attributable Invested (losses)/ Carrying ~ Dividend ~ Dividend Group's total
Name of investment business held to the Group amount gains amount received cover assets
- AREAEE
, fisla AKEERL AME ElERE2
RERH EHME BAt  BERE REE (F8) /H&ﬁ R ElRE  REHLE ARl
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%)

Fi#n Tién Fin Fién Fién

Financial assets at FVTPL

BORETAREZ 2 REE

Listed eqmt investments

LR

China Oriented International Holdings Note a 10.50 21,307 12,700 (1,990) 10.710 - N/A 11.97
Limited (“China Oriented”) ) )

HPERERERAR (M%) Hita TR

Mij International Holdings Limited Note b 297 5,646 18,040 (8,695) 9,345 - N/A 10.45
("Miji International") . ‘

ARERERERAR (TRHER]) Mt RER

Tencent Ho\dmgs Limited ("Tencent") Note ¢ 0.0001 1,11 7,550 (2,982) 4,568 16 8.60 5.11

EAZRERLA (TEA]) it

Huashen%lntemanonal Ho\dmgs Limited Note d 0.04 39 629 2,362 2,991 14 433 334
("Huasheng International”) )

SRERERERAR (£RER]) Hitd

JD.com, Inc. ("JD.com") Note e 0.0003 963 3,187 (447) 2,740 - N/A 3.06

RREERHERAT (REEA)) Hite TR

Ho(ng Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited Note f 0.0004 395 2,520 (243) 2,211 46 2.10 2.55
"HKEX")

BERSRERHERAR (TRRA]) it

China Life Insurance Company Limited Note g 0.0004 2,468 2,242 (692) 1,550 91 271 1.13
("China Life")

HEASRBRABRAR ([REAR]) Hitg

China Mobile Limited (“China Mobile") Note h 0.0001 2,103 1122 (318) 1,404 101 379 1.57

hTEBHERLRA ([PEBH)) Hith

Alibaba Group Holding Limited Note i 0.00005 615 2,560 (1,371) 1,189 - N/A 133
("Alibaba Group”) ‘

MEEEEERRERAT Hiti RER
(MEEESE))

Xiaomi CorForation ("Xiaomi") Note | 0.0002 397 1877 (743) 1,134 - N/A 127

IREE (1K) ity TR

53,027 (15,119) 37,908 268
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22. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD BY ), REEREAEZITEREZEY

THE GROUP (CONTINUED) (48)
2020 —E-FEF
Percentage of
investment
attributable
Net assets Fair value Dividend/ to the
Nature of attributable Invested (losses)/ Carrying interest Dividend ~ Group's total
Name of investment business  Interest held  to the Group amount gains amount received cover assets
3 T
‘ | figks REEEE 0 DA 2k BlEHE2
REAR 5HEE Al BEEE REE (BB)/ h& BEE Re/HE RegE BAY
(%) HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 (%) (%)
AR TR TR AR TR
financial assets at FVTPL
FLRL T ERl 2 BAE
Listed equity investments
LiRFRE
China Oriented Note a 10.50 24,820 12,700 (2,494) 10.206 - A 10.68
2k Hita TR
Tencent Note ¢ 0.0002 1435 8,543 (83) 8,460 24 9.78 8.86
& Hitc
Mij International Note b 297 6,386 18,040 (9,585) 8,455 - VA 8.85
e Kb TR
Huasheng International Note d 0.21 1,646 3,180 2822 6,002 - A 6.28
ERER Hiid TR
Alibaba Group Note i 0.0001 795 3,731 (242) 3,489 - N/A 3.65
CELRIT K S
HSBC Holdings plc 0.0004 6,461 3,665 (204) 3441 - A 3.60
EERRERLA AEH
Smart-Core Holdings Limited 045 3,106 4,030 (1.277) 2,753 88 5.67 288
HEBRERRA
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited 0.0001 4,090 2,012 252 2,264 - N/A 237
TETIARORNERAA AER
BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited 0.0008 2,150 1,992 (112) 1,880 115 22.60 197
hREE (ER)ERAA
Debt instrument at FYT0C]
FAR G2 EN B EH IR
Listed debt instrument
IHEBIE
China Cinda Finance (2014) Limited N/A N/A 1,773 (28) 1,745 87 N/A 183
ki iR iyl
59,666 (10,971) 48,695 314
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

A brief description of the business and financial information FZREHRAAZEBNUBEN (REE
of the investee companies, based on their published annual EHEFREPHSRE XEAETRER
and interim reports, results announcements and management BRE)um TR

accounts, is as follows:

China Oriented was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1871.HK). China Oriented and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
driving training services in the PRC. For the six months
ended 30 June 2021, the unaudited consolidated profit
attributable to owners of China Oriented was
approximately Renminbi (“RMB") 4.0 million and its
unaudited consolidated equity attributable to owners of
China Oriented was approximately RMB214.2 million.

Miji International was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1715.HK). Miji
International and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the development, manufacturing and selling of
premium kitchen appliances in the PRC. For the six
months ended 30 June 2021, the unaudited
consolidated loss attributable to owners of Miji
International was approximately RMB16.8 million and
its unaudited consolidated equity attributable to owners
of Miji International was approximately RMB156.7
million.

Tencent was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0700.HK). Tencent and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
value-added services, online advertising and fintech and
business services. For the six months ended 30 June
2021, the unaudited consolidated profit attributable to
equity holders of Tencent was approximately RMB90.4
billion and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to owners’ equity holders of Tencent was
approximately RMB926.9 billion.
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MARASESFEMAY - ERGR
B P EMR £ (BRMDARSE - 1871,
HK) c AR REMBR R EEZRPEH
NEREEREZIRE -HEZZT
Z—FRNAZ=ZFTBLANER  mHE
BABLEREEZGEBINNAAR
([ AR ]) 4,000,0007T * [A) %
EABMREERGARZNAAR
#214,200,0007T °

KEEBERAEESFEMK Y - &
A& 10 PO BS 22 BT E AR £ (B9 (R 5% -
1715.HK) ° SR B B BR J2 A KI /8 2 7]
FEEFEHERERE RERHFE
mmEERAE BHEETEZ-Z—FRX
A=+HILEABA KEBEE#ES
ANEEARCEZRZABEBONAAR
#:16,800,0007T ' KEBEE#EE A
EIEARCEZEEERNA/RARE
156,700,0007T °

BN SESEMA - ERHR
B A2 B =Mk £ (B9 5% : 0700.
HK) - AR ENB AR E B ER
HISERY  BERESURSRER
MERE - BE_T=-_—F~A
=t+HIEANEA BAKREZEA
EEREEZEERFNOABARE
90,400,000,0007T ' AR BESRF B A
EHAKEZGRERZNABARYE
926,900,000,0007T °



Huasheng International was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1323.HK). Huasheng
International and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the (i) production and sales of ready mixed
commercial concrete business, (ii) wholesale and retail
of household consumables business; and (iii) provision
of money lending business and education business. For
the six months ended 30 September 2021, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to the
owners of Huasheng International was approximately
HK$21.3 million and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to the owners of Huasheng International
was approximately HK$934.9 million.

JD.com was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9618.HK). JD.com is a leading
technology-driven e-commerce company transforming
to become a leading supply chain-based technology and
service provider. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the audited net loss attributable to the ordinary
shareholders of JD.com was approximately RMB3.6
billion and its audited consolidated total shareholders’
equity of JD.com was approximately RMB245.6 billion.

FEE

ERBEERASHE MK
%ﬁmwQ%IWLmUhﬁkﬂ-
1323.HK)  EREE K HEK B QA
FERFOEERBEREN LB
TEL (W ERTEREBEELE
% RONREREEGSRBBEES -
HEZZ - —FNAA=THIEA~HE
A ERBEBRERS ABGREEZS
A A #) 521,300,000 7T 0 HE K E
BHAEAEBERECEZGEEROR
934,900,0008 7T °

RREERFASHSEMAK T

kﬁm%xﬁiﬁimUhﬁﬁﬁ-
9618.HK) « REEE B —HELNE
MERB) B AR - WIEEA AELD
AIESE AR TR -
BE-ZT-_—F+-A=+—HLHF
E RREBRLTBRIRREEGELEEZ
B F 5N A A R®3,600,000,000
T RREBEKEREERRERS
#EEH A AR 245,600,000,0007T °

BMERECHERERLAR | —FB=—FFRK



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

HKEX was incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0388.HK). The principal activities of HKEX and its
subsidiaries own and operate the only stock exchange
and futures exchange in Hong Kong and their related
clearing houses, a clearing house for clearing over-the
counter derivatives contracts in Hong Kong, an
exchange and a clearing house for the trading and
clearing of base, ferrous and precious metals futures
and options contracts operating in the United Kingdom
and a commodity trading platform in the Mainland. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of HKEX
was approximately HK$12.5 billion and its audited
consolidated equity attributable to shareholders of
HKEX was approximately HK$49.6 billion.

China Life was incorporated in the PRC and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 2628.HK). China Life and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the writing of life, health,
accident and other types of personal insurance business;
reinsurance business for personal insurance business;
fund management business permitted by national laws
and regulations or approved by the State Council of the
PRC. For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of China Life was approximately RMB41.0
billion and its unaudited consolidated equity
attributable to equity holders of China Life was
approximately RMB471.4 billion.
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BREANBEBEMAL  HBRHR
Bt A2 FrE MR £ (AR 9 1R 9% - 0388.
HK) - BRI REMBAR 2 ZE %
BREBIKLEEBE ——RKRE
REEZXSMREBBEER
EEALE " REEBINMTEED
BHMBEER  ERBKLE —RZH
FIk—REEMEERZBEEELRS
B ZesBrEcERENEES
B AREAMEE —HERR ST
B HE_T-_—F+=-H=1T—8H
IEFE  BRXAREEAGCEZLR
& i ) 49 412,500,000,0007%8 7t 4
R REGEEZGEERTOR
49,600,000,000% 7T °

HEASHRPBRAMKT - HEHR
Bt X ETEMR £ (RG99 : 2628.
HK) - PBIASREMBARIZZH
EANERRE - BERRR - BIMGER
DEZBATFRBEL  AFRBZ
BRERER  BZOERE AR sk
BBt B2 BEREBE - BE
TE-—FEXAZ=ZTRHIANEARF
BASAAIRREGEREEZEE R
4 A AR %41,000,000,0007T ©
B ASAARRELREEZGEE
=4 A AR EA471,400,000,0007T °



China Mobile was incorporated in the Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0941.HK). China Mobile and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
telecommunications and related services in the
mainland of China and in Hong Kong. For the six
months ended 30 June 2021, the unaudited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
China Mobile was approximately RMB59.2 billion and
its unaudited consolidated equity attributable to equity
holders of China Mobile was approximately RMB1,178.0
billion.

Alibaba Group was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9988.HK). Alibaba Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in core commerce,
cloud computing, digital media and entertainment, and
innovation initiatives. For the six months ended 30
September 2021, the unaudited consolidated net
income attributable to the ordinary shareholders of
Alibaba Group was approximately RMB50.5 billion and
its unaudited consolidated total equity of Alibaba
Group was approximately RMB1,097.9 billion.

Xiaomi was incorporated in Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1810.HK). Xiaomi and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development
and sales of smartphones, internet of things (“loT"”) and
lifestyle products, provision of internet services and
investments holding in the PRC and other countries or
regions. For the six months ended 30 June 2021, the
unaudited consolidated profit attributable to equity
holders of Xiaomi was approximately RMB16.1 billion
and its unaudited consolidated equity attributable to
equity holders of Xiaomi was approximately RMB136.0
billion.

FREBHREBEMRT - RGN
Bt X BT AR £ (B0 5% : 0941,
HK) - FEBE R EMNBRAREEZR
FREA R ESNEREERSRIEH
REEE - BE_T-_—F A=+
HIEAN@EA REBHBRERE A
BEREEZREERFNOABARE
59,200,000,0007T * Bl % &) i% # 5
EABRREEZGAEZNABAR
#1,178,000,000,0007T °

MERREERFERSFMAT
ERGRERFTER LT (RGN :
9988.HK) - WEEEE£B K EMMB A
AIFERERLEE EFE  HTF
HERIREUREIFER -BHEZT
Z—FAA=+HIEAEA WER
EEELBRRREEREEZES
WA FRE X A AR #50,500,000,000
B MEEEEEERRRREN
REBEZEREETBENRARE
1,097,900,000,0007T °

NKRFAEREFEMAT - RGN
Bt FTEMR £ (BR DR - 1810.
HK) o NRREMRB AR EZR A
B & E b B SR 8k i [ A 5 A B K 8
ERETFH - WA ([loT)) B4
EEEEMm RHETBEARSE LK
EmREK -BHE-_ZT=-—F <A
=+tHIERNBEAR  PNRBREFEA
EEACEZREESNNAARE
16,100,000,000 7T * /NK AR EFF B
AEEREEZGERENAARE
136,000,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RS AR Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ T - —F+ A=+ —HILtFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

23. RIBE N R zEm

2021 2020
—F-— —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Unlisted investments, at cost (Note a) FELETERSE - WA (B ita) 9,000 9,552
Share of post-acquisition losses and other  D{EWER EE L Et 2 mIkzE
comprehensive income, net of dividends MERERRE
received (4,530) (4,602)
Impairment loss (Note b) BB EE (HiFb) (4,470) (4,470)
- 480
Notes: B
(@)  Amounts comprised (i) 30% shareholding in Superb Kingdom (a) AR IEEIEG) 9,000,000k (ZE =
Limited (“SKL") of HK$9,000,000 (2020: HK$9,000,000) and L 4F 1 9,000,000 T) WERBEBREAR
(i) 29% shareholding in ClII Capital Limited (“Cll Capital”) of B(RBRE]) Z30%RERMHEET(ZE

HK$Nil (2020: HK$552,000), included in the acquisition cost is
goodwill of HK$4,613,000 (2020: HK$4,613,000) in

ZZF : 552,000/ L) A KCI Capital
Limited ([ Cll Capital]) Z29%R%#E - W&

acquisition of equity interest of SKL in Year 2016. MABERN - —NEWBBEREY
72 B 84,613,000 T (ZE ZFF :

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed

4,613,000/ 7T) °

BHE—Z-—F+-_A=+—HILFE"

of the 29% equity interest in ClIl Capital Limited to a third NEE R — £ E =T HEHNCI Capital 2
party at a consideration of HK$458,000. The disposal was 29% % 1 - X {E B£458,00008 T - S
completed on 20 April 2021. Before the disposal, the ER-_FE-—FNA - +HEK - ZIEE

investment was previously accounted for as an investment in
an associate using the equity method of accounting. There was

B B R R AR A AR S
DA ZRE - 4B 3 A B A

no material gain or loss on the disposal. HEE o
2021
—E-—%F
HK$’000
FBxT
Proceeds from disposal & RS sE 458
Less: carrying amount of 29% equity interest B RKEBRFE N 2 B Capitalz
in Cll Capital on the date of loss of 29% [ #E 2 BREE
significant influence (458)
Gain or loss on disposal HEWRESEREER -
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23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Amount represents the impairment loss recognised in prior
years for the equity share investments in SKL.

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 are as follows:

Place of incorporation
and principal place of

23. REEE AR zEm ()
Kttt : (%)

(b) BEREFAERBEE ZBEARENBEFE
ERZBERE -

RZEZ—FR=ZZE=_TF+=_A=1+—
B AEEZBEQABZFHBOT

Percentage of ownership
interest/voting

Name business Issued and paid up capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
AR AL B IEHERER  RRE/ER
3 TEEENE BRITRMERE PEEZER TEER
2021 2020
i s
SKL Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,098 30% 30%  Sale of LED lighting
BE &k E£i%1,000,0987% 1T products
HELEDRBER
Cll Capital Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 - 29%  Inactive
Bk L3mAR 1,500,000 T mEE

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of
the amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

TRINRAEE D EPAAERNTELTE
ARZBERRZSHEN  MABRSED
RAEEEANR -

2021 2020
—E-—F T -TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
As at 31 December: ®+=A=+—8:

Carrying amounts of interests R A - 480

For the year ended 31 December: BE+-—HA=+—HLEE:
Loss from operations EiEEE (22) (46)
Loss for the year FEERE (22) (46)
Other comprehensive income Hh2mEKam = -
Total comprehensive loss FHEEBE (22) (46)

tEEREREcRERERAR | —e=—=54 [EK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 24, HWEWRIE s ERRERRE
DEPOSITS
2021 2020
—E-—F —TECTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Other receivables and deposits Eqth e W B MR & 877 2,681
Prepayments TE FRIE 1,044 1,714
1,921 4,395
25. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 25. RITRRESHEER

Bank and cash balances of the Group comprised bank
balances, cash and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less held by the Group.

The bank and cash balances were denominated in the
following currencies:

AEBZBROTRBECERBEALEERA
ZRTESR A2 MRIAAS=EA X

AT 2 EHISRITIF 3K

RITRIRSERAT I EHEE :

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FiExT FAET

HK$ BT 29,788 14,627
RMB AR 169 187
us$ ETT 5,102 3,307
Other Hib 214 258
35,273 18,379

The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

R ARSEHMINEAZHBICOMNEEE
RO RC(EE - EERMEEERTE)R

R o
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March 2021, a capital reorganisation was approved with effect
from 17 March 2021. Details of the capital reorganisation are
set out in the Company’s circular dated 18 February 2021 and
the Company’s announcement dated 15 March 2021. It

comprised the following changes to the capital structure:

rETHeREeREnERAT | —t=—57% [EZEIR

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Number of Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of shares of
HK$0.10 each HK$1 each HK$0.01 each Par value
BREE BREE SREE
0.108 72 18712 0.0187 2
EERHE @RS A EERA ffE
‘000 '000 '000 HKS$'000
TR TH TR T
Authorised: EE
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 WZ2Z%4-A-F ZFCFEfC
and 1 January 2021 A=t-BR-E--5-F-8 2,000,000 - - 200,000
Share consolidation (Note Ta) Rinas W) (2,000,000) 200,000 - -
Capital reduction (Note 1b) RAHE (i) - (200,000) 200,000 (198,000)
Capital increase (Note 1¢) RAE Wit - - 19,800,000 198,000
As at 31 December 2021 RZE--5+-f=1-8 - - 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 RZ2-FF-F-F ZFCFE{C
and 1 January 2021 R=t-BR=%5--£-f-H 942,822 - - 94,282
Share consolidation (Note 1a) RiAAH 1) (942,822) 94,28 - -
Capital reduction (Note 1b) RAEE it 1p) - (94,282) 94,282 (93,339)
Issuance of shares upon Rights Issue (Note 2) EREETRG W) - - 47141 471
As at 31 December 2021 R-E--2+-f=+-A - - 141423 1414
Notes: Miat -
1. Pursuant to a special resolution of the Company passed on 15 1. REARGR-_ZE-_—F=A+HBEEBE

ZHEBREER RASRALCHE B
——FEZAt+EBAER - BRAEHZFHE
HRAATAMA-—_E-_—4=-A+N\A
ZBHUEARARBBAE-T-_—F=A
TREAZAE - RASHEBEA THRKA
ZBE 2o E



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

Notes: (continued)

1.

(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share consolidation

Every ten issued and unissued shares of par value of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company were
consolidated into one share of par value of HK$1.00
each.

Capital reduction

The par value of all the then issued and unissued share
capital was reduced from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.01
each by cancelling the paid-up capital of the Company
to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of all the then
consolidated shares. The issued and fully paid capital
was thus reduced by approximately HK$93,339,000
represented by the multiplication of approximately
94,282,000 shares and HK$0.99.

Authorised capital increase

The authorised share capital of the Company was then
increased from HK$2,000,000 divided into 200,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each to HK$200,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each.

Issuance of shares upon Rights Issue

During the year, the Company implemented the rights issue on
the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares at
the subscription price of HK$0.2 per rights share (the “Rights
Issue”). The Company received net proceeds of approximately
HK$8,196,000 from the Rights Issue and 47,141,062 rights
shares were issued.

Regarding capital risk management, the Group’s objectives

are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concern in

order to provide returns for stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders,

return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets

to reduce debt.

Hiat - (3&)

1. (#&)

(a) RK#Hrest
RRAFBEBTRABITRAFEH
EEI0BTZE+REHBAHAST
fREE1.00% 72 —IRAR D ©

(b)  BEASHIR
FTABEREETRAETZRAZ
AEBEBIHEARAEHER
K BERBEAHEROZE K
FE450.998 7T - MEAER1.00% TR
F00NBIL - BEEITRARZKEARA
M #ll 5 993,339,000 7T * KR L
94,282,000% A% 17 £20.99/% JT 18 3k
THER o

(c) EERAIEM
XA AE E IR AN B 1% $32,000,000
BT (5 A200,000,0000%
B ®EO0.018 ot 2 & 1) 1
fNZE200,000,0008 T (59 A&
20,000,000,0000% & fi% ™ {80.017%
TLZ D) e

2. HEREBBITRD

FRN - ARRIEGEEMRIEB R EE

— R R 2 B AR EE S IRER

RSB0 2B THEITHR (THR]) - AREIA

AU B TS SR IE JF 5E498,196,000/8 7T -

A BE1TA7,141,062 I AL AL A% 1D -

REARBRERNE - ALEEEAER
HEGERT  RROEREEN  REH
SEEARM - LURD BARRA - BEFH
S8 (4 S M TR -

REFHAAEREARE  AEEAEAR
FARRIREZRESHE  MRREEER
BT EEENNE -
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Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors its
capital structure primarily on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as debt divided by total equity. Debt is
calculated as “borrowing” (representing secured bank loan
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Total capital is calculated as “total equity”, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The gearing
ratios as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Borrowing BE
Total equity 4B NE
Gearing ratio BEREBELH R

The only externally imposed capital requirements for the
Group is to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the 25% threshold of public float should be
complied with throughout the year.

AEBEZAEMABREEZENERE
B REREREARBZT R - IR
WEBR AR E - BEHNAERME
B (AR E B ARRRERMREERRT
ER) - @EARTE EREA VB RE
iRz [#@fEs] R_F-_—Fh_FT—
EE+_A=t+—RZEABELENET:

2020
— BT

—= =

HK$'000
THET

2,160
84,887

2.54%

AEBEEBETHANBEMNZEARR
ERRFRBRM bW - A HE

BEDVB%NRIFFIRE o

BREBEARRABZARMEHRBARARARE
FHA 5% RARFREZFIEERERE
BEFEESET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE  27. XA T2 M R B R B
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY =)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AA T 28BN IEKER

As at 31 December

W+=BA=+—H
2021 2020
—EBEC—F —ZEZFTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiE&x FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #7% - B R % E 43 68
Investments in subsidiaries REBRARIZIRE 2,273 9,664
Debt instrument at FVTOCI BAREBETAEMEZEKRSZERIA - 1,745
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABZZSREE 13,498 23,274
15,814 34,751
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & UK B A 52X 18 44 72
Financial assets at FVTPL HARBEAEBRZZEREE 18,631 26,776
Other receivables, prepayments E i EUFRIE  FENRIE ML &
and deposits 1,698 4,089
Bank and cash balances BATRES 34,172 13,439
54,545 44,376
Current liabilities REAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B B A B 18 723 9,508
Accruals FEEtF X 3,968 8,334
Total current liabilities mBEEEE 4,691 17,842
Net current assets MENEEZRE 49,854 26,534
NET ASSETS BEERE 65,668 61,285
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27.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Statement of financial position of the Company
(continued)

N

=

td
N

RAZHBRRBERR B
25 (%)
/N

(a) RAFzHBMRRER (A)

As at 31 December

®+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—EF=--—F TE-TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hit T THET
Equity Rz
Equity attributable to NATIHER NELER
owners of the Company
Share capital &N 26 1,414 94,282
Reserves #HE 28 64,254 (32,997)
TOTAL EQUITY RESAEE 65,668 61,285

Approved by the Board of Directors on 21 March 2022
and signed on its behalf by:

Lam Man Chan

FRICH

Director

EE

RZE-_—_F=ZA-+—BEEFZ
o THTIEERRES .

Lee Kwok Leung
ZER
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

27. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE  27. KA T2 R B E R 15

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) BE (EF)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company by AABZREREEH
Share-based
Share Contributed  payments FVTOCI Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BANE

ROKR HARMEE
Ryl  BARR fif  hafG  RHER Eh
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

As at 1 January 2020 W-2-%%-F-H 75,416 225,806 1,287 47 (296,129) 6,427
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (39,350) (39,350)
Other comprehensive loss EzEER - - - (74) - (74)
Total comprehensive loss and EE2EFBREENER

changes in equity for the year - - - (74) (39,350) (39,424)
As at 31 December 2020 R-B-FE+-A=+-A 75,416 225,806 1,287 (27) (335,479) (32,997)
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (3,840) (3,840)
Other comprehensive income Ef2EME - - - 2 - 2
Total comprehensive loss for the year  £E 2 EEREHE - - - 2 (3,840) (3.813)
Lapse of share options BRELN = - (873) = 873 -
Capital reduction RAH - 93,339 - - - 93,339
Transfer to contributed surplus ERGA\BE (75.416) 75,416 - - - -
Issuance of shares upon rights issue iR 1,125 - - - - 1,125
Changes in equity for the year FREZEE (67,691) 168,755 (873) 21 (2,967) 97,251
As at 31 December 2021 WZE--F+-A=1-H 1,125 394,561 414 - (338,446) 64,254
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The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their par
value per share. The application of share premium
account is governed by Section 40 of the
Companies Act of Bermuda.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus mainly represents (1)
accumulated amounts transferred from share
premium account in previous years and (2) the
total amounts of credit transfer after capital
reorganisation.

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
4(p) to the consolidated financial statements.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 4(c)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

FEE

AEEZ HESELEBE2IINER

AE

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BRKEeMERERLA | =

&ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ% ERAR AR

IR 10 % 8

B £ (B 46 DA R H B B AR TED (B
ZEREBETRMOMEE ZGE
BB EAXBRE(AT
E)BAOREE -

BARE
BABRTIERMNBEFEER
MEEBERIFTEAZSERQ)K
REREER ERBEE -

R AR A5 TR A 4

B3 R R R B AR A TS 3R
KM FAP) B AR A E M)
EPEA R 2 & 5 T HERR
ZERSAF D H BB R RITE
BREZANE-

BE 7 8

[ R R BB INERS I
BERMELEZBINEZRE ° %
ffh s TR A & B 75 R B R4 () i)
ez et BREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

28. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28. f#fE (&)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) b) REE<MHEERBR(E)
(v) FVTOCI reserve vy BEAREsAEMEZEKSE
#E

The FVTOCI reserve represents cumulative gains
and losses arising on the revaluation of debt
instruments at FVTOCI that have been recognised
in other comprehensive income, net of amounts
reclassified to profit or loss when those debt
instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy in note 4(g) to the consolidated financial

BRARBEFAEMEE B EFER
REEFRANEFAELMEZE
WEHZEETAMEETERE
b 2B S R Z Bt K
B MBRREEZFRANER
AHMEEKE BB TARE
MDBEEBRR &8 - ZHER
REVBREMFHMB S

statements. ETRIEE -
29. SECURED BANK LOAN 29. BEMARITER
The secured bank loan is repayable as follows: FERRITERZERARAT -
2021 2020
—2=-—F —ZET-THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFExT FAET
Within one year —F R 522 509
More than one year, but not exceeding —FAEBETBBRE
two years 535 522
More than two years, but not more than MENEBERZRASE
five years 594 1,129
1,651 2,160
Portion of bank loan that are due for ERR A —FRETBREERE
repayment after one year but contain a BIERZHEPERTERGIAR
repayment on demand clause yam)
(shown under current liabilities) (1,129) (1,651)
522 509
Less: Amount due for settlement within W T A ARNEEESRE
12 months (shown under current (BINREBEE)
liabilities) (522) (509)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months + —{f A& jE & E & 58 = -
The 10-year instalment loan contains a repayment on demand Z+FEOBERWAEBNEREE KR B
clause which is repayable on demand and has been secured EAEREREERERE  TUAREBRAE
by a mortgage over the Group’s office premise (Note 19), MEZIZBEER  BFRBITBATLRE
bearing interest at 2.5% (2020: 2.5%) below the prevailing BRI 5B (TR - FF 2 5FE)FE o

Hong Kong dollar prime rate per annum.
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The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 31 July 2012 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors of
the Company and eligible participants (as defined in the
Scheme), and will expire on 30 July 2022.

Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to directors
of the Company (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) and its eligible
participants to subscribe for shares in the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme was approximately
4,609,646 (2020: 38,995,000), representing approximately
3.26% (2020: 4.14%) of the issued shares of the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance
by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up on or before the relevant
acceptance date, upon payment of HK$1.00 for the options
granted. Options may be exercised at any time from the date
of grant of the share option to a period to be notified by the
Board to each grantee at the time of making such offer,
which shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of
grant.

RAT 2 ERER & ([T 8] TR ER
TR+t AT —HBBAZARRM
K EXZENARKTARAIESRE
ERs2EE(EXRZTE) RBFE - %
FEIER —_E-_—F+-A=F+HEM-

RIEZTE EEGARARAES (B
FRTEFRBULFUTES) RAERS
HER A RBEAR ARG 2 BEE

R-Z-_—F+=-A=+—H8  REZTE
AR 21T 2 IR 1D 42 B 4) 794,609,646H% (—
T — T4 : 38,995,000/%)  EARQ A D EH
TN #I3.26% (B -FF : 4.14%) °

EARCARRRRRESLHER - BIBZETE
ARERLCEREMSERNDBEE 15
FBBA RN AT EREEETRGKB10% - £
REARNBIRREBRAER - I EER
E @ B A T PTRE B AR i R 2 BR 19
H B - TMSHBBAR AT MEEEETR’RD
1% ° WA EBRRABYLIERITEZRE
FBIB AN ERA0.1% sk EER 85,000,000
BT B - BESLEARRRELE -

BR B ELARBREZEMB B ZA
B RN A ERBRES1.008 T
ZHRE - BERETARLIPEEESRS
REOZAZNORANE S ARA RN
BT - IR AR AR TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ T - —F+ A=+ —HILtFE

30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

The exercise price is determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion and will not be less than the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of grant.

As a result of the Share Consolidation and Rights Issue,
adjustments were made to the exercise price of and the
number of the outstanding share options under the Scheme

TT@fﬁE%%ﬁ?ﬁ%@W EBE - RETEE

RIATESE : (AR RBBRHNERH A H
BB rEm A RERMBETE :
(L)YARRBBRMNEER L BB AEE %
BB X e 2 B B MERARTFHIK
ME : R(ORRFBRHRE L A2 EE -

ERBD G O R - 8T | RITRE
ZEBREZTEERBEN IR T ——
FZA+tBR-ZE-_—FtA+-HK

in the following manner with effective on 17 March 2021 AT AR
and 12 July 2021 respectively.:
Before the completion of After the completion of
the Capital Reorganisation the Capital Reorganisation
RAE AT A A RAEARR %
Number of Adjusted number
outstanding Exercise price of outstanding Adjusted exercise
Date of grant Exercisable period share options per share share options price per share
fe RAT I 2 BBEHRTEZ AEE2
A THEH BRENA BRITEE BREXE BRTEE
29.11.2018 29.11.2018 to 28.11.2021 7,800,000 HK$0.241 780,000 HK$2.41
“E-N\F “E-N\Ft-A 024137 2MEBTT
+-A=thA ZthBEZZ-_-¥
+—A=+/\H
16.09.2019 16.09.2019 to0 31.07.2022 7,800,000 HK$0.137 780,000 HK$1.37
“T-nF “E-AFAATRA 013787 13787
AATRA E-E--#4+R
=t+—H
15,600,000 1,560,000
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30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

the Rights Issue

30. RGP (&)

Before the completion of

After the completion
of the Rights Issue

i 2 B iR %
Adjusted
Number of Exercise Adjusted number exercise
outstanding price per of outstanding price per
Date of grant Exercisable period share options share share options share
HEE2
B RATHEZ e R AT AEE2
RHAH TR BRENA BROTER BREXNE BRTER
29.11.2018 29.11.2018 to 780,000 HK$2.41 921,064 HK$2.0409
28.11.2021
ZT-)N\F ZE-N\E+-A 241ETT 2040977
+—A=thA “thBE=%
——%t+-H
—+/\H
16.09.2019 16.09.2019 to 780,000 HK$1.37 921,064 HK$1.1601
31.07.2022
ZE-AFNARTARRE ZE-AFARTRA 13747 1.16017% 7T
HE-Z--%+t
A=1+-H
1,560,000 1,842,128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 —Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 30. R (E)
Details of the movement of share options during the years FRNERESSHEBOT

are as follows:

2021 2020
—E--& a3
Number Weighted Number Weighted
of share average of share average
options  exercise price options exercise price
EEEY T
BREXA fTiEE BhREHA TRE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning FURARITE

of the year 15,600,000 0.189 15,600,000 0.189
Adjustment resulted from share FRRME G AR

consolidation during the year (14,040,000) 1.890 - -
Adjustment resulted from Rights % Fftf Ffr 3| B2 %

Issue during the year 282,128 1.601 - -
Lapsed during the year FREM (956,490) 2.008 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year ~ ERMAKITH 885,638 1.160 15,600,000 0.189
Exercisable at the end of year FERAIFITE 885,638 1.160 15,600,000 0.189
The options outstanding at the end of the year had a FEREBARITEBREZ MEFGH#TELD
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.58 year FHIA0.58F (Z T T : 1.25%) » 17{%
(2020: 1.25 years) and the exercise prices are HK$1.160 EBAE1.1608 T (ZE % : NF0.137/%
(2020: ranged from HK$0.137 to HK$0.241 (unadjusted)). TTE0241B 7T (REFHEK)) -

m CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2021



31.

32.

33.

PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the significant subsidiaries of the Company as

at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Particular of issued

3 FEMBARZHE
FR-IE-ZTFF+_A=+—
B ARREEHBRAIZHBMOT

A

Percentage of

ownershi

p

interest/voting

power/profit sharing

Name of Company operation share capital Indirect Principal activities
BB BT EREEREDRRE/EF
DEEE REEME BRTRAE PERZADHL TEXRHB
2021 2020
—E--% -—ZT-FF
Greater Sino Ventures British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$2,100,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong
RERLES/AE  LBR2,100,000ET REAZR
Nicefield Asia Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$15,000,000 100% 100%  Asset holding
IEENERAR BB/ ER %A% 15,000,00075 7T BEEE

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the office premise with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$9,324,000 (2020: approximately
HK$9,855,000) was pledged for an instalment loan.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Hong Kong retirement scheme

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined the
mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for
all the eligible employees of the Group in Hong Kong.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries up to a maximum of
HK$1,500 and they can choose to make additional
contributions. The employer’s monthly contributions are
calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries up to a
maximum of HK$1,500. The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s mandatory contribution upon their
retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

32. EEEHR
R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8 EEELAE
9,324,000/ 7T (ZE =—F £ : 499,855,000
BIT) CMAEYMEE T —ED HERIMIE
I o

33. RREANEFE
& BRI S
H-ETTFE+_A—ARK AEEAH
REEZEAEREBMAR LT
Si B (TREeral) -

BERESE  EEVAREAFH 25%
(_EBR1,500/8 7T) fE 3R - I AT 2R
BMIMIR -BEEZ2EARRAREEAFTZ
5% (_EBR1,500/70) © 8 B A F E655% &
KEFEH  BERK T2 ERITIERENE 7]
ZHE100%EE S 28 HIH R -

rEapEnEeReEsRAn | —e=—558 BN



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &#Z T -—F+ A=+ —HILFE

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in
the PRC are required to participate in a retirement scheme or
other similar defined contribution provident fund operated by
the respective local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the scheme/fund.

Employees employed by the Group’s operations in Macau
SAR are members of government-managed social benefits
schemes operated by the Macau SAR government. The Macau
SAR operations are required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the social benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
social benefits schemes operated by the Macau SAR
government is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

During the year, the Group had ceased salary payments for
the eligible employees in the PRC and Macau because of the
travel restrictions and pending for the reopening of the
border between Hong Kong and Mainland China.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme, MPF Scheme and Macau Retirement
Scheme which might be used by the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions. There were no such forfeited
contributions available as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit or
loss of HK$296,000 (2020: HK$277,000) represented
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group in
respect of the current accounting year.

AEEETHEEENBRARZEERS
B PR B0 07 T IR T 2 IR KT Bl S E
MBLUZRERRLAESES - ZFHX
TN EREMTE R 2 RERT XA
RfEHR 2 ST 8K ©

RERAKERRAMABITRR 2 EESD
7B 2 18 B 19 R PR Bl 17 R [ BT P 2 o
VABRFEREZHERAFTEZKE - &
FIRIITREEESHABARZLER
MEH BB AR A RN A
T RIR o AR B BB PR B 1T R BURS A
Mz ERMNFAEAAR IR -—BEER
RIFZEHEMFR R EHER -

FR-ERKERS > AEEFLERPER
BPZAERREESXNFHS BEEE LA
FEAMIKEBEASLE

HE-ZT-—FR-Z-_FF+-A=1+—
HIEFE @ AEEL RN BERRTS -
BB EI RRPFIRREE T Al ge A&
ERERBEREBHRFKFEZHR -RZT
T RZFEZEFFT A=+ —HULE
AR B2 Uz R -

AEBRASHFER LTS EA 2 H
R HEERGABRIR I E RN AEE
296,000/ 7L (ZE=F4F : 277,000/ 7T) °
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The calculation of the net asset value per share at the end of
the reporting period is based on the Group’s net assets of
approximately HK$83,529,000 (2020: HK$84,887,000) and
approximately 141,423,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in issue as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020
(restated): 94,282,200 ordinary shares, as adjusted to reflect
the Share Consolidation on 17 March 2021).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of
its 100% equity interest in Marvel Pacific Limited (“Marvel
Pacific”), a wholly owned subsidiary, at a consideration of
Australian dollars 70,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$399,000). Marvel Pacific held the Group's listed equity
securities investment in Australia. Upon completion of the
disposal, Marvel Pacific ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company and there was no material gain or loss on the
disposal. The asset over which deconsolidated was
approximately HK$399,000 and net cash inflow arising on
the disposal was approximately HK$399,000.

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

At the beginning of year F1)
Cash flows ReneE
At the end of year FR

Fﬁ&iﬁﬁﬁkZ%%ﬁE%ﬁm&ﬁEA—
T+ _AZ+—BHzZBEEFEN
83,529,000,%75 — T T4 : 84,887,000/
JC) K #7141,423,0000% &A% E{E0.018 L 2
ERTEER(ZCE-EF+-_A=+—H
(4REFI]) 94,282,200/ @M% - gﬁ%u&
M- —F=-A+tBAzZRNEH)E

BHE-_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HILF
ER Zli;%lﬂii%izﬁ% AHERE
EMBARELEBRARB([EE])Z
100% J#4E - REA70,00008 7T (B
M #9399,0008 L) - BEFEAEE
RBRMZ EMRABELHRE - RS
% BETBAARRZHER
A ABNETEEESE A REE
B o TR IEA B 2 B E 4 /399,000
B MEEEEZBRESRAFEY
399,000/ 7T °

TRHFNAEERELZHAELER
BE2EBFE BRAS MRS E
PHo-MERPELZABNEEEZ
RenBIXARKBSRENTEELF
/D\Eﬁil/\hii%q: \*Ez%lﬂé/ﬁ@}iﬁi

N=g=}
JLE °

2020
—E-EF
HK$'000
FAET

2,656
(496)

2,160
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZ T - —F+ A=+ —HILtFE

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. ARBE
As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any AZ_EBE-_—F+_-_R= —I— H  K&EBI

significant contingent liabilities (2020: Nil). BEMEARIABE(ZZ_ZTF : \) o

37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 37.. EXBBEAEIREZREERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(@) Transactions with related parties and connected (a) BEAIRZIRBEERS
persons
In addition to those related party transactions and BRGEMERREMESMER

balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated FBEBATR G N ZESRI  KES
financial statements, the Group had the following RERNGEBEEATHEITTIRS

transactions with its related parties and connected

persons during the year:

2021 2020
—E2Z—F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBx FET
Investment management fees ENREMNEEERE :
paid and payable to:
Success Advance Investments Limited FRIRRBEAR AR ([5R]D
("Success Advance”) (Note (i) (H15£0)) 505 -
Silverstone Investments Limited IRARERRAR(THRA]
(“Silverstone”) (Note (i) (K15£0)) = 560
Brokerage commission expenses paid BfiEEFSFERRA A
to Topper Dragon Securities Limited ([geED) z&eMemx
("Topper Dragon”) (Note (ii)) (B ati) 319 401
Employee benefits expense paid EfRNEEMEERARX
and payable to:
Ting Lai Ling (Note (iii)) TR (K7t (i) 2,272 2,279
Wong Ying Pang (Note (iv)) = EME (K73t () = 459
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37. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 3. EXRBEAETXRZIRBEBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) (48)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) = 12 B 5K B 3R
The key management personnel of the Group comprise mﬁlzﬁﬁﬁfgﬁké @EF&%%%
all directors and the chief executive officer. Details of BROHBE - HE et BHEN
their emoluments are disclosed below: T
2021 2020
—gZ—F TE-THE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees wae 2,188 2,060
Salaries and allowances & KMOERA 4,801 4,860
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes R K #& 75+ 2] 4L 5% 45 32
7,034 6,952
Notes: B

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Pursuant to Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules, any
investment manager, investment adviser or custodian (or
any connected person thereof) is regarded as a
connected person. Silverstone ceased to serve as the
Company’s investment manager with effect from 6
December 2020. Success Advance has been appointed
as the Company’s new investment manager with effect
from 25 January 2021. Mr. Lee, Executive Director of the
Company, and his son, Mr. Lee Wang Ho, are
responsible officers of Success Advance.

Ms. Lam Mee Yee (“Ms. Lam”), daughter of the
Chairman and Non-executive Director, Dr. Lam, is the
controlling shareholder of Topper Dragon. Subsequent
to the year end date, Dr. Lam and Ms. Lam disposed of
their entire shareholding in Topper Dragon.

Ms. Ting Lai Ling, wife of Dr. Lam, acted as the Project
and Administration General Manager of the Company
and received employee benefits in exchange for services
rendered to the Company.

Mr. Wong Ying Pang, Simy, son-in-law of Dr. Lam
received employee benefits in exchange for services
rendered to the Company.

() BELWHEAEI14A08E  TAIEEL
BRHEERAEEA (IS 2 EME
BAD)HERABEAL -RABZZ
—EF+ - ANHBRIEETIAQRERE
& BEER T -_—F—A=-+AAH
BEZTAARRRIFKELE - XATEH
TESEFAEREFEGELEERERY
BEAB-

(i) EERFJATEEMBLIZLEMERR
T (ML) BEElE 2 EBRBCR - REHE
iz MELEMLLIEHEEFEZH
B 5 BP AR A -

@iy MELZZFTERLTIEEARFZIAR
RITHRABZE W ERARTIRMEZIR
BUEE BB A -

(iv) MELZLZBEEREBLEERARRFREHR
Z MR WHE BAEH -

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. MEHWREIE
The net losses on financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December RZBZ—F+ZA=T—HBREZERA
2021 to the date of approval of these consolidated financial REFABZZEREE KRS0 H®
statements amounted to approximately HK$10,362,000. FAERHIL - BEIFEEL /10,362,000
BT °
39. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 39, BEEXE

Certain comparative figures in the consolidated financial
statements have been restated to conform to current year’s
presentation.

REMBHRRAETHERBFETEN
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hF R F R

RESULTS ¥EiE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HALEFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SR —T-TF —T-hF ZT-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAT FHT FHET FAT
Loss before tax M Fi & E R (9,579) (43,928) (49,958) (53,840) (45,339)
Income tax expense Frisfi - - - - -
Loss for the year attributable AR TIHEA AFE(L
to owners of the Company FEEE (9,579) (43,928) (49,958) (53,840) (45,339)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SERAaE
As at 31 December
W+=—B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SEIF 2 -TF —T-AFE —T-N\F —tF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FHET FHET FAT
Total assets BEEME 89,467 95,537 139,575 152,081 194,322
Total liabilities ABEEsE (5,938) (10,650) (10,713) (10,040) (12,247)
Total equity ey 83,529 84,887 128,862 142,041 182,075
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- CHINA INTERNET INVESTMENT FINANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEEERESEMEERTIRLE
(Continued into Bermuda with limited liability)
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